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Part 1 Interpretation
1.1 Definitions of terms used throughout this Definitions 11 Definitions_of terms used throughout this
Instrument Instrument

In this Instrument

“Canadian financial institution” has the same
meaning as in section 1.1 of NI 45-106;

“connected issuer” has the same meaning as in
section 1.1 of National Instrument 33-105
Underwriting Conflicts;

“debt security” has the same meaning as in section
1.1 of NI 45-106;

“eligible client” means a client of a person or
company if any of the following apply:

(a) the client is an individual and was a client
of the person or company immediately before
becoming resident in the local jurisdiction;

(b) the client is the spouse or a child of a client
referred to in paragraph (a);

(c) except in Ontario, the client is a client of
the person or company on September 27, 2009
pursuant to the person or company's reliance on an
exemption from the registration requirement under
Part 5 of Multilateral Instrument 11-101 Principal
Regulator System on that date;

“exempt market dealer” means a person or
company registered in the category of exempt
market dealer;

1.1 (1) In this Instrument

“Canadian financial institution” has the same
meaning as in section 1.1 of National Instrument 45-
106 Prospectus and Registration Exemptions;

“connected issuer” has the same meaning as in
section 1.1 of National Instrument 33-105
Underwriting Conflicts;

“fully-managed account” means an account of a
client that is managed by an adviser through
discretionary authority granted by the client;

“IDA” means the Investment Dealers Association of
Canada;

“marketplace” has the same meaning as in section
1.1 of National Instrument 21-101 Marketplace
Operation;

“MFDA” means the Mutual Fund Dealers
Association of Canada;

“permitted client” means

(a) a Canadian financial institution or a
Schedule Il bank;

(b) the Business Development Bank of
Canada incorporated under the Business
Development Bank of Canada Act (Canada);

+4+—1———In this Instrument

"Canadian financial institution" has the same
meaning as in section 1.1 of NatienaHnstrument-NI

45-106-Prospectus-and-Registration-Exemptions;

"connected issuer" has the same meaning as in
section 1.1 of National Instrument 33-105
Underwriting Conflicts;

'debt security” has the same meaning as in section
1.1 of NI 45-106;

"eligible client" means a client of a person or
company if any of the following apply:

(a) the client is an individual and was a client

of the person or company immediately before
becoming resident in the local jurisdiction;

(b) the client is the spouse or a child of a client

referred to in paragraph (a);
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the person or company on September 27, 2009
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“lIROC” means the Investment Industry Regulatory
Organization of Canada;

“investment dealer” means a person or company
registered in the category of investment dealer;

“managed account” means an account of a client for
which a person or company makes the investment
decisions if that person or company has discretion
to trade in securities for the account without
requiring the client’s express consent to a
transaction;

“marketplace” has the same meaning as in section
1.1 of National Instrument 21-101 Marketplace
Operation;

“MFDA” means the Mutual Fund Dealers
Association of Canada;

“mutual fund dealer” means a person or company
registered in the category of mutual fund dealer;

“NI 45-106”" means National Instrument 45-106
Prospectus and Registration Exemptions;

“permitted client” means any of the following:

(a) a Canadian financial institution or a
Schedule Il bank;

(b) the Business Development Bank of
Canada incorporated under the Business
Development Bank of Canada Act (Canada);

(c) a subsidiary of any person or company
referred to in paragraph (a) or (b), if the person or
company owns all of the voting securities of the
subsidiary, except the voting securities required by
law to be owned by directors of the subsidiary;

(d) a person or company registered under the
securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as
an adviser or dealer, other than a scholarship plan
dealer or a restricted dealer;

(e) a pension fund that is regulated by either
the federal Office of the Superintendent of Financial
Institutions or a pension commission or similar
regulatory authority of a jurisdiction of Canada;

(f) an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction
that is analogous to any of the entities referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (e);

(9) the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction
of Canada, or any crown corporation, agency or
wholly-owned entity of the Government of Canada
or a jurisdiction of Canada;

(h) a municipality, public board or commission
in Canada and a metropolitan community, school
board, the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de
I'lle de Montréal or an intermunicipal management
board in Québec;

0] a trust company or trust corporation
registered or authorized to carry on business under
the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada) or
under comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of
Canada or a foreign jurisdiction, acting on behalf of
a fully-managed account managed by the trust

"exempt market dealer" means a person or
mpany registered in th ry of exem

mark ler;

"IDAIIROC" means the Investment Dealers

Asseeiation_Industry Regulatory Organization of
Canada;

"investment dealer" means a person or company
registered in th ry of investmen ler;

which a person or company makes the investment
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"marketplace" has the same meaning as in section
1.1 of National Instrument 21-101 Marketplace
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(c) a subsidiary of any person or company
referred to in paragraph (a) or (b), if the person or
company owns all of the voting securities of the
subsidiary, except the voting securities required by
law to be owned by directors of the subsidiary;

(d) a person or company registered under the
securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as
an adviser or dealer, other than as a scholarship
plan dealer or a restricted dealer;

(e) a pension fund that is regulated by either
the federal Office of the Superintendent of Financial
Institutions or a pension commission or similar
regulatory authority of a jurisdiction of Canada or a
wholly-owned subsidiary of such a pension fund;

(f) an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction
that is analogous to any of the entities referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (e);

(9) the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction
of Canada, or any Crown corporation, agency or
wholly-owned entity of the Government of Canada
or a jurisdiction of Canada;

(h) any national, federal, state, provincial,
territorial or municipal government of or in any
foreign jurisdiction, or any agency of that
government;

0] a municipality, public board or commission
in Canada and a metropolitan community, school
board, the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de
I'lle de Montréal or an intermunicipal management
board in Québec;

company or trust corporation, as the case may be;

0 a person or company acting on behalf of a
fully-managed account managed by the person or
company, if the person or company is registered or
authorized to carry on business as an adviser or the
equivalent under the securities legislation of a
jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction;

(k) an investment fund that is advised by a
person or company registered as an portfolio
manager under the securities legislation of a
jurisdiction of Canada;

) a registered charity under the Income Tax
Act (Canada) that obtains advice on the securities to
be traded from an eligibility adviser, as defined in
National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus and
Registration Exemptions, or an adviser registered
under the securities legislation of the jurisdiction of
the registered charity;

(m) an individual who beneficially owns,
directly or indirectly, financial assets, as defined in
National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus and
Registration Exemptions, having an aggregate
realizable value that, before taxes but net of any
related liabilities, exceeds $5 million or its equivalent
in another currency as certified by the individual;

(n) a person or company that is entirely
owned, legally and beneficially, by an individual or
individuals referred to in paragraph (m), who hold its
or their ownership interest in the person or company
directly or through a trust the trustee of which is a
trust company referred to in paragraph (i); or

(o) a corporation that has shareholders' equity

(b) the Business Development Bank of
Canada incorporated under the Business
Development Bank of Canada Act (Canada);

(c) a subsidiary of any person or company
referred to in paragraph (a) or (b), if the person or
company owns all of the voting securities of the
subsidiary, except the voting securities required by
law to be owned by directors of the subsidiary;

(d) a person or company registered under the
securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as
an adviser or dealer, other than as a scholarship
plan dealer or a restricted dealer;

(e) a pension fund that is regulated by either
the federal Office of the Superintendent of Financial
Institutions or a pension commission or similar
regulatory authority of a jurisdiction of Canada_or a

wholly-owned subsidiary of such a pension fund;

() an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction
that is analogous to any of the entities referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (e);

(9) the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction
of Canada, or any erown_Crown corporation, agency
or wholly-owned entity of the Government of
Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;

(h) any national, federal, state, provincial
territorial or municipal government of or in any
foreign jurisdiction, or any agency of that

government;

@) a municipality, public board or commission
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() a trust company or trust corporation
registered or authorized to carry on business under
the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada) or
under comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of
Canada or a foreign jurisdiction, acting on behalf of
a managed account managed by the trust company
or trust corporation, as the case may be;

(k) a person or company acting on behalf of a
managed account managed by the person or
company, if the person or company is registered or
authorized to carry on business as an adviser or the
equivalent under the securities legislation of a
jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction;

(h an investment fund if one or both of the
following apply:

(i) the fund is managed by a person or
company registered as an investment fund manager
under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of
Canada;

(i) the fund is advised by a person or
company authorized to act as an adviser under the
securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada;

(m) in respect of a dealer, a registered charity
under the Income Tax Act (Canada) that obtains
advice on the securities to be traded from an
eligibility adviser, as defined in section 1.1 of NI 45-
106, or an adviser registered under the securities
legislation of the jurisdiction of the registered
charity;

(n) in respect of an adviser, a registered
charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) that is

of at least $100 million on a consolidated basis or its
equivalent in another currency;

“registered firm” means a registered dealer, a
registered adviser, or a registered investment fund
manager;

“registered individual” means an individual who is
registered

(a) to trade or advise on behalf of a registered
firm,

(b) in the category of ultimate designated
person, or

(c) in the category of chief compliance officer;

“related issuer” has the same meaning as in section
1.1 of National Instrument 33-105 Underwriting
Conflicts; and

“Schedule Il bank” means an authorized foreign
bank named in Schedule Il of the Bank Act
(Canada).

(2) Except in Part 8, in Alberta, British
Columbia and Saskatchewan, a reference to
“security” or “securities” in this Instrument includes
“exchange contract” or “exchange contracts”.

Definitions — mobility exemptions

8.20 In this Division,

in Canada and a metropolitan community, school
board, the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de
I'le de Montréal or an intermunicipal management
board in Québec;

(i) a trust company or trust corporation
registered or authorized to carry on business under
the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada) or
under comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of
Canada or a foreign jurisdiction, acting on behalf of
a fully-managed account managed by the trust
company or trust corporation, as the case may be;

(ik) a person or company acting on behalf of a
fulh-managed account managed by the_person or
company, if the person or company is registered or
authorized to carry on business as an adviser or the
equivalent under the securities legislation of a
jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction:

i the fund is managed by a person or

company registered as an investment fund manager
under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of
Canada;

i fund i .

securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada;
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advised by an eligibility adviser, as defined in
section 1.1 of NI 45-106, or an adviser registered
under the securities legislation of the jurisdiction of
the registered charity;

(o) an individual who beneficially owns
financial assets, as defined in section 1.1 of NI 45-
106, having an aggregate realizable value that,
before taxes but net of any related liabilities,
exceeds $5 million;

(p) a person or company that is entirely owned
by an individual or individuals referred to in
paragraph (o), who holds the beneficial ownership
interest in the person or company directly or through
a trust, the trustee of which is a trust company or
trust corporation registered or authorized to carry on
business under the Trust and Loan Companies Act
(Canada) or under comparable legislation in a
jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction;

(q) a person or company, other than an
individual or an investment fund, that has net assets
of at least $25 million as shown on its most recently
prepared financial statements;

(r a person or company that distributes
securities of its own issue in Canada only to
persons or companies referred to in paragraphs (a)

to (q);

“portfolio manager” means a person or company
registered in the category of portfolio manager;

“principal jurisdiction” means

(a) for a person or company other than an

“eligible client” means, for a person or company, a
client of the person or company if the client

(a) is an individual and was a client of the
person or company immediately before the client
became a resident of the local jurisdiction, or

(b) is a spouse or child of a client referred to in
paragraph (a);

“NI 31-101” means National Instrument 31-101
National Registration System;

“non-principal jurisdiction” means, for a person or
company, each jurisdiction of Canada that is not the
principal jurisdiction of the person or company;

“principal jurisdiction” means, for a person or
company, the jurisdiction of the principal regulator;

“principal regulator” means

(a) for a person or company other than an
individual, the securities regulatory authority or the
regulator in the jurisdiction of Canada in which the
person or company’s head office is located, and

(b) for an individual, the securities regulatory
authority or the regulator in the jurisdiction of
Canada in which the individual’s working office is
located; and

“working office” has the same meaning as in NI 31-
101.

((h-(m) _in respect of a dealer, a registered charity

under the Income Tax Act (Canada) that obtains
advice on the securities to be traded from an
eligibility adviser, as defined in NatieraHnstrument
i i i 3’
5 gg. espe.etusa dRegistratio E.;.Ee pte. 50
of thejurisdiction-of the registered-charity; section
1.1 of NI 45-1 r an adviser register: nder th

. | charity:

n in respect of an adviser, a registered

charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) that is
advised by an eligibility adviser, as defined in

ion 1.1 of NI 45-1 r an adviser register:
under the securities legislation of the jurisdiction of

(mQ) an individual who beneficially owns;

directhy-or-indirectly; financial assets, as defined in
NationaHnstrument-45-106-Prospectus-and
Registration-Exemptions;_section 1.1 of NI 45-106

having an aggregate realizable value that, before
taxes but net of any related liabilities, exceeds $5
million-or-its-equivalent in-another currency as
certified by the individual;

(Rp) a person or company that is entirely
owned;-legally-and-beneficially; by an individual or
individuals referred to in paragraph (mo), who held
its-or-their-holds the beneficial ownership interest in
the person or company directly or through a trust,
the trustee of which is a trust company referred-to-in

WWW

Loan Companies Act (Canada) or under
comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of Canada or
a foreign jurisdiction;
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individual, the jurisdiction of Canada in which the
person or company’s head office is located, and

(b) for an individual, the jurisdiction of Canada
in which the individual’s working office is located;

“registered firm” means a registered dealer, a
registered adviser, or a registered investment fund
manager;

“registered individual” means an individual who is
registered

(a) in a category that authorizes the individual
to act as a dealer or an adviser on behalf of a
registered firm,

(b) as ultimate designated person, or

(c) as chief compliance officer;

“related issuer” has the same meaning as in section
1.1 of National Instrument 33-105 Underwriting
Conflicts;

“restricted dealer” means a person or company
registered in the category of restricted dealer;

“restricted portfolio manager” means a person or
company registered in the category of restricted
portfolio manager;

“Schedule 1l bank” means an authorized foreign
bank named in Schedule Il of the Bank Act
(Canada);

(eq)——a-corporatien a_person or company, other
than an individual or an investment fund, that has

shareholders'equity net assets of at least $100

crilerensennoalidalod bonis o ile s o n iy
another-eurrency;25 million as shown on its most
recently prepared financial statements;

r rson or company that distri

w. E - hs (
to (q);

"portfolio manager" means a person or company
registered in the category of portfolio manager;

"principal jurisdiction" mean

(a) ___fora person or company other than an
individual, the jurisdiction of Canada in which the
person or company's head office is located, and

(b) for an individual, the jurisdiction of Canada
in which the individual's working office is located;

"registered firm" means a registered dealer, a
registered adviser, or a registered investment fund
manager;

"registered individual" means an individual who is
registered

(@) totrade oradvise) in a category

h horizes the individual ler or an
adviser on behalf of a registered firm,

(b) inthe-categery-ofas ultimate designated
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“scholarship plan dealer” means a person or
company registered in the category of scholarship
plan dealer;

“sponsoring firm” means the registered firm on
whose behalf an individual acts as a dealer, an
underwriter, an adviser, a chief compliance officer or
an ultimate designated person;

“subsidiary” has the same meaning as in section 1.1
of NI 45-106;

“working office” means the office of the sponsoring
firm where an individual does most of his or her
business.

person, or

(c) in-the-categery-ofas chief compliance

officer;

"related issuer" has the same meaning as in section
1.1 of National Instrument 33-105 Underwriting
Conflicts; and

registered in the category of restricted dealer;

"restricted portfolio manager" means a person or
company registered in the category of restricted
portfolio manager;

"Schedule lll bank" means an authorized foreign
bank named in Schedule Ill of the Bank Act
(Canada)-;

) £ in Part 8 in A Bt
Columbiaand-Saskatchewan.areference-to

Definiti " .

8.29 l t is D.V.S.e 3y
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paragraph-(a);

ln_g QE neans 'a;e'a ;'Stu' eAt33-40

"scholarship plan dealer" means a person or
mpany registered in th ry of scholarshi

lan ler;

whose behalf an individual acts as a dealer, an

underwriter, an adviser, a chief compliance officer or
an ultimate designated person;

"subsidiary" has the same meaning as in section 1.1
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of NI 45-106;

"working office"

has-the-same-meaning-as-in-N-314-
464+-means the office of the sponsoring firm where
an individual does most of his or her business.

1.2 Interpretation of “securities” in Alberta,
British Columbia, New Brunswick and
Saskatchewan

In Alberta, British Columbia, New Brunswick and

Saskatchewan, a reference to “securities” in this

Instrument includes “exchange contracts”, unless
the context otherwise requires.

New Provision

1.2 Interpretation of “securities” in Alberta,
British Columbia, New Brunswick and

Saskatchewan

Instrument includes “exchange contracts”, unless
the context otherwise requires.

1.3 Information may be given to the principal
regulator

(1) In this section, “principal regulator” means
(a) for a registered firm whose head office is in

a jurisdiction of Canada, the securities regulatory
authority or regulator of that jurisdiction, and

(b) for a registered firm whose head office is
not in Canada, the securities regulatory authority or
regulator of,

(i) if the firm has not completed its first
financial year since being registered, the jurisdiction
of Canada in which the firm expects most of its
clients to be resident at the end of its current
financial year, and

New Provision

13 Inf - ! - —
regulator

1 In this section, “principal regulator” means
a for a reqistered firm whose head office is in
jurisdiction of Can h rities r |

hori rr lator of that jurisdiction, an

(b) __for aregistered firm whose head office is
not in Canada, the securities regulatory authority or
regulator of,

(i) if the firm has not completed its first
financial rsin ing register he jurisdiction
of Canada in which the firm expects most of its

- . fi
75 ial
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(ii) in all other circumstances, the jurisdiction
of Canada in which most of the firm’s clients were
resident at the end of its most recently completed

financial year.

(2) Except under the following sections, for the
purpose of a requirement in this Instrument to notify
the regulator or the securities regulatory authority,
the person or company may notify the regulator or
the securities regulatory authority by notifying the
person or company’s principal regulator:

(a) section 8.18 [international dealer];
(b) section 8.26 [international adviser];
(c) section 11.9 [registrant acquiring a

registered firm’s securities or assets];

(d) section 11.10 [registered firm whose
securities are acquired].

3) For the purpose of a requirement in this
Instrument to deliver or submit a document to the
regulator or the securities regulatory authority, the
person or company may deliver or submit the

ii in all other circumstances, the jurisdiction

f Can in which m f the firm’s clients wer
residen he end of its m recentl mpl
i ial

(2) Except under the following sections, for the
purpose of a requirement in this Instrument to notify
the requlator or the securities regulatory authority,
the person or company may notify the regulator or

h rities r lator hori notifying th

person or company’s principal regulator:
( ion 8.18 [ . 1
(b) section 8.26 [international adviser];

c section 11.9 [reqistrant acquiring a
registered firm’ riti r ;

(d)___section11.10 [registered firm whose 7

(3) For the purpose of a requirement in this

Instrument to deliver or submit a document to the

regulator or the securities regulatory authority, the
person or company may deliver or submit the

document by delivering or submitting it to the person men livering or mitting i h rson
or company’s principal regulator. r company’s principal regulator.

Part2 Categories of registration for individuals

21 Individual categories Individual categories 2.1 Individual categories

(1) The following are the categories of 2.7 An individual, if required to be registered to | 274—Anr(1 The following are the categories

registration for an individual who is required, under
securities legislation, to be registered to act on
behalf of a registered firm:

act on behalf of a registered firm, must be registered
by the regulator in one or more of the following
categories:

of reqistration for an individual-f_who is required,

under securities legislation, to be registered to act

on behalf of a registered firm;-must-beregistered-by
. : followi

10
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(a) dealing representative;

(b) advising representative;

(c) associate advising representative;

(d) ultimate designated person;

(e) chief compliance officer.

(2) An individual registered in the category of
(a) dealing representative may act as a dealer

or an underwriter in respect of a security that the
individual’s sponsoring firm is permitted to trade or
underwrite,

(b) advising representative may act as an
adviser in respect of a security that the individual's
sponsoring firm is permitted to advise on,

(c) associate advising representative may act
as an adviser in respect of a security that the
individual’s sponsoring firm is permitted to advise on
if the advice has been approved under subsection
4.2(1) [associate advising representatives — pre-
approval of advice],

(d) ultimate designated person must perform
the functions set out in section 5.1 [responsibilities
of the ultimate designated person], and

(e) chief compliance officer must perform the
functions set out in section 5.2 [responsibilities of

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

dealing representative;

advising representative;

associate advising representative;

ultimate designated person;

chief compliance officer.

solocerion:

(a) dealing representative;

(b) advising representative;

(c) associate advising representative;
(d) ultimate designated person;

(e) chief compliance officer.

(2) An individual registered in the category of

ling representative m ler

or an underwriter in respect of a security that the
individual ing firm { itted
underwrite,

(b) advising representative may act as an
adviser in respect of a security that the individual's
sponsoring firm is permitted to advise on,

i vising representative m
as an adviser in respect of a security that the
%w - ! :

4.2(1) [associate advising representatives - pre-

approval of advice],

(d) ultimate designated person must perform
the functions set out in section 5.1 [responsibilities
of the ultimate designated person], and

(e) chief compliance officer must perform the

11
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the chief compliance officer].

3) Subsection (1) does not apply in Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario, the same categories of
registration for individuals as in subsection 2.1(1)

W@wt . ficer]

3 Subsection (1) does not apply in Ontario.

Note: In Ontario, the same categories of

are set out under section 25 of the Securities Act registration for individual in ion 2.1(1
(Ontario).] r nder ion 25 of th rities A
(Ontario).]
2.2 Client mobility exemption — individuals Notice of change of principal regulator Notice-of-change-of-prineipal-regulater
2.2 lient mobility exemption - individual
(1) The registration requirement does not 8.22 (1) A person or company relying on

apply to an individual if all of the following apply:

(a) the individual is registered as a dealing,
advising or associate advising representative in the
individual’s principal jurisdiction;

(b) the individual’'s sponsoring firm is
registered in the firm’s principal jurisdiction;

(c) the individual does not act as a dealer,
underwriter or adviser in the local jurisdiction other
than as he or she is permitted to in his or her
principal jurisdiction according to the individual's
registration in that jurisdiction;

(d) the individual does not act as a dealer,
underwriter or adviser in the local jurisdiction other
than for 5 or fewer eligible clients;

(e) the individual complies with Part 13
[dealing with clients — individuals and firms];

() the individual deals fairly, honestly and in
good faith in the course of his or her dealings with

section 8.23 [mobility exemption — registered firm] or
section 8.24 [mobility exemption — registered
individual] must file a completed Form 31-103F3, as
soon as practicable, if

(a) for a person or company, other than an
individual, the person or company changes its head
office to another principal jurisdiction, or

(b) for an individual, the location of the
individual’s working office changes to another
principal jurisdiction.

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply if a
person or company is required to file Form 31-
101F2 under NI 31-101.

8.24 If the local jurisdiction is a non-principal
jurisdiction, the registration requirement does not
apply to an individual if

(a) the individual is registered in his or her
principal jurisdiction as a dealing, advising or
associate advising representative,

104F2 underNI-31-101-

8 o ‘ T incinal
jurisdictionthe(1) The registration requirement does
not apply to an individual if all of the following apply:

(a) the individual is registered-in-his-or-her
principaljurisdiction as a dealing, advising or

12
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an eligible client;

(9) before first acting as a dealer or adviser for
an eligible client, the individual’s sponsoring firm
has disclosed to the client that the individual, and if
the firm is relying on section 8.30 [client mobility
exemption — firms], the firm,

(i) is exempt from registration in the local
jurisdiction, and

(i) is not subject to requirements otherwise
applicable under local securities legislation.

(2) If an individual relies on the exemption in
this section, the individual’s sponsoring firm must
submit a completed Form 31-103F3 Use of Mobility
Exemption to the securities regulatory authority of
the local jurisdiction as soon as possible after the
individual first relies on this section.

(b) the individual’s registered firm is registered
in its principal jurisdiction,

(c) the individual is trading or advising in
securities with an eligible client,

(d) the individual does not trade or advise in
securities in the local jurisdiction other than as it is
permitted to in its principal jurisdiction according to
its category of registration,

(e) in the local jurisdiction, the individual
trades or advises in securities for no more than five
eligible clients, and

(f) the individual complies with section

8.25 [mobility exemption conditions].

Mobility exemption conditions

8.25 For the purposes of paragraphs 8.23(e)
and 8.24(f) the person or company must

(a) disclose to an eligible client, before it relies
on an exemption in section 8.23 [mobility exemption
— registered firm] or 8.24 [mobility exemption —
registered individual], that the person or company

(i) is exempt from registration in the local
jurisdiction, and

(i) is not subject to requirements otherwise
applicable under local securities legislation, and

associate advising representative;_in the individual's

(b) the individual's registered_sponsoring firm
is registered in its_the firm's principal jurisdiction;;

(c) the individual is-trading-er-advisingin
does not isei ities actas a
dealer, underwriter or adviser in the local jurisdiction
other than as ithe or she is permitted to in its-his or
her principal jurisdiction according to its-categery-of
the individual's registration;_in that jurisdiction;

{e)——(d) the individual does not act as a
dealer, underwriter or adviser in the local
jurisdiction;-the-individual-trades-oradvises-in

s £ i for 5
fewer eligible clients;-and;

{(e) the individual complies with section-Part 13
dealing with clients - individuals and firms];

Mobili . s

8:25—Forthe-purposes-of-paragraphs-8-23(e)
and-8-24(H-the-person-or-company-must

(f) the individual deals fairly, honestly and in
good faith in the course of his or her dealings with
an eligible client;

{a)——disclese-o
Q) before fi . ! , f
an eligible client, before-itrelies-on-an-exemption-in

13
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(b)

act fairly, honestly and in good faith in the

course of its dealings with an eligible client.

ndividual ng f . ot

- indivi if firm | :
section 8:238.30 [client mobility-exemption—
. firm oF 8.24 | o :

exemption - firms], the firm

(i) is exempt from registration in the local
jurisdiction, and

(i) is not subject to requirements otherwise
applicable under local securities legislation;-and.

Cairly: . Eith |
(2) If an individual relies on the exemption in
this section, the individual's sponsoring firm must
submit a completed Form 31-103F3 Use of Mobility

rities regulator hori
| jurisdiction n ibl
individual fi i - ;
23 Individuals acting for investment fund New Provision 2.3 Individuals acting for investment fund
managers manager:
The investment fund manager registration The investment fund manager registration

requirement does not apply to an individual acting
on behalf of a registered investment fund manager.

requirement does not apply to an individual acting
on behalf of a registered investment fund manager.

Part 3 Registration requirements — individuals

Division 1 General proficiency requirements

3.1 Definitions Definitions 3.1 Definitions

In this Part 4.1 In this Division 44+——In this Bivision-Part

“Branch Manager Proficiency Exam” means the
examination prepared and administered by the
RESP Dealers Association of Canada and so

“Branch Manager Proficiency Exam” means the
examination prepared and administered by the
RESP Dealers Association of Canada and so

"Branch Manager Proficiency Exam" means the
examination prepared and administered by the
RESP Dealers Association of Canada and so

14
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named on the day this Instrument comes into force,
and every examination that preceded that
examination, or succeeded that examination, that
does not have a significantly reduced scope and
content when compared to the scope and content of
the first-mentioned examination;

“Canadian Investment Funds Exam” means the
examination prepared and administered by the
Investment Funds Institute of Canada and so
named on the day this Instrument comes into force,
and every examination that preceded that
examination, or succeeded that examination, that
does not have a significantly reduced scope and
content when compared to the scope and content of
the first-mentioned examination;

“Canadian Investment Manager designation”
means the designation earned through the
Canadian investment manager program prepared
and administered by CSI Global Education Inc. and
so named on the day this Instrument comes into
force, and every program that preceded that
program, or succeeded that program, that does not
have a significantly reduced scope and content
when compared to the scope and content of the
first-mentioned program;

“Canadian Securities Course Exam” means the
examination prepared and administered by CSI
Global Education Inc. and so named on the day this
Instrument comes into force, and every examination
that preceded that examination, or succeeded that
examination, that does not have a significantly
reduced scope and content when compared to the
scope and content of the first-mentioned
examination;

“CFA Charter” means the charter earned through

designated by that Association;

“Canadian Investment Funds Exam” means the
examination prepared and administered by the
Investment Funds Institute of Canada and so
designated by that Institute;

“Canadian Securities Exam” means the examination
prepared and administered by the CSI Global
Education Inc. and so designated by that
corporation;

“CFA Charter” means the charter earned through
the Chartered financial analyst examination program
prepared and administered by the CFA Institute and
so designated by that institute;

“Canadian Investment Manager designation” means
the designation earned through the Canadian
investment manager program prepared and
administered by the CSI Global Education Inc. and
so designated by that corporation;

“Investment Funds in Canada Exam” means the
examination prepared and administered by the
Institute of Canadian Bankers and so designated by
that Institute;

“New Entrants Exam” means the examination
prepared and administered by the CSI| Global
Education Inc. and so designated by that
corporation;

“PDO Exam” means

(a) the Officers’, Partners’ and Directors’ Exam
prepared and administered by the Investment Funds

de.sg! ated-by-that+ ‘SS.QE'aEG named on the day
examination that preceded that examination, or
succeeded that examination, that does not have a
significantly reduced scope and content when

compared to the scope and content of the first-
mentioned examination;

"Canadian Investment Funds Exam" means the
examination prepared and administered by the
Investment Funds Institute of Canada and so
designated-by-thatnstitute-named on the day this
Instrument comes into force, and every examination
that preceded that examination, or succeeded that

xamination, th not hav ignificantl
reduced scope and content when compared to the
— -

"Canadian Investment Manager designation"
means the designation earned through the
Canadian investment manager program prepared
and administered by CSI Global Education Inc. and

nam n th his Instrumen mes in
for nd every program th r h

program, or succeeded that program, that does not

have a significantly reduced scope and content
when compared to the scope and content of the
first-mentioned program;

"Canadian Securities Course Exam" means the
examination prepared and administered by the-CSI
Global Education Inc. and so designated-by-that

comes into force, and every examination that
preceded that examination, or succeeded that
examination, that does not have a significantly
reduced scope and content when compared to the
scope and content of the first-mentioned
examination;

15
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the Chartered Financial Analyst program prepared
and administered by the CFA Institute and so
named on the day this Instrument comes into force,
and every program that preceded that program, or
succeeded that program, that does not have a
significantly reduced scope and content when
compared to the scope and content of the first-
mentioned program;

“Exempt Market Products Exam” means the
examination prepared and administered by the IFSE
Institute and so named on the day this Instrument
comes into force, and every examination that
preceded that examination, or succeeded that
examination, that does not have a significantly
reduced scope and content when compared to the
scope and content of the first-mentioned
examination;

“Investment Funds in Canada Course Exam” means
the examination prepared and administered by CSI
Global Education Inc. and so named on the day this
Instrument comes into force, and every examination
that preceded that examination, or succeeded that
examination, that does not have a significantly
reduced scope and content when compared to the
scope and content of the first-mentioned
examination;

“Mutual Fund Dealers Compliance Exam” means
the examination prepared and administered by the
IFSE Institute and so named on the day this
Instrument comes into force, and every examination
that preceded that examination, or succeeded that
examination, that does not have a significantly
reduced scope and content when compared to the
scope and content of the first-mentioned
examination;

Institute of Canada and so designated by that
Institute, or

(b) the Partners, Directors and Senior Officers
Exam prepared and administered by the CSI Global
Education Inc. and so designated by that
corporation;

“Sales Representative Proficiency Exam” means the
examination prepared and administered by the
RESP Dealers Association of Canada and so
designated by that Association; and

“Series 7 Exam” means the program prepared and
administered by the Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority in the United States of America and so
designated by that regulator.

"CFA Charter" means the charter earned through

the Chartered financial-analystexamination
Financial Analyst program prepared and
administered by the CFA Institute and so

. - : .
Instrument comes into force, and every program
that preceded that program, or succeeded that
program, that does not have a significantly reduced

scope and content when compared to the scope
n ntent of the first-mention rogram;

se-desighated-by-that-cerporation;

examination prepared and administered by the IFSE
Institute and so hamed on the day this Instrument
comes into force, and every examination that
preceded that examination, or succeeded that
examination, that does not have a significantly

r n ntent when compar h
scope and content of the first-mentioned

"Investment Funds in Canada Course Exam" means
the examination prepared and administered by the

that-lnstitute-CSI Global Education Inc. and so
nam n th his Instrumen mes into for:

and every examination that preceded that
——= led tt —

does not have a significantly reduced scope and
content when compared to the scope and content of
the first-mentioned examination;
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“New Entrants Course Exam” means the
examination prepared and administered by CSI
Global Education Inc. and so named on the day this
Instrument comes into force, and every examination
that preceded that examination, or succeeded that
examination, that does not have a significantly
reduced scope and content when compared to the
scope and content of the first-mentioned
examination;

“PDO Exam” means

(a) the Officers’, Partners’ and Directors’ Exam
prepared and administered by the Investment Funds
Institute of Canada and so named on the day this
Instrument comes into force, and every examination
that preceded that examination, or succeeded that
examination, that does not have a significantly
reduced scope and content when compared to the
scope and content of the first-mentioned
examination, or

(b) the Partners, Directors and Senior Officers
Course Exam prepared and administered by CSI
Global Education Inc. and so named on the day this
Instrument comes into force, and every examination
that preceded that examination, or succeeded that
examination, that does not have a significantly
reduced scope and content when compared to the
scope and content of the first-mentioned
examination;

“Sales Representative Proficiency Exam” means the
examination prepared and administered by the
RESP Dealers Association of Canada and so
named on the day this Instrument comes into force,
and every examination that preceded that
examination, or succeeded that examination, that
does not have a significantly reduced scope and

IFSE Institute and so named on the day this
Instrument comes into force, and every examination
that preceded that examination, or succeeded that
examination, that does not have a significantly

r n ntent when compar h

scope and content of the first-mentioned
examination;

"New Entrants Course Exam" means the
examination prepared and administered by the-CSI
Global Education Inc. and so i
corperation-named on the day this Instrument
mes into for nd every examination th
r h xamination, or h

—— anificantl

scope and content of the first-mentioned
examination;

"PDO Exam" means

(a) the Officers’, Partners' and Directors' Exam
prepared and administered by the Investment Funds

Institute of Canada and so designated-by-that
. .

named on the day this Instrument comes
into force, and every examination that preceded that
examination, or succeeded that examination, that
does not have a significantly reduced scope and
content when compared to the scope and content of
the first-mentioned examination, or

(b) the Partners, Directors and Senior Officers
Course Exam prepared and administered by-the
CSI Global Education Inc. and so desigrated-by-that
corperation-named on the day this Instrument

comes into force, and every examination that
preceded that examination, or succeeded that

17
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content when compared to the scope and content of
the first-mentioned examination;

“Series 7 Exam” means the examination prepared
and administered by the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority in the United States of America
and so named on the day this Instrument comes
into force, and every examination that preceded that
examination, or succeeded that examination, that
does not have a significantly reduced scope and
content when compared to the scope and content of
the first-mentioned examination.

— ‘qnificant

scope and content of the first-mentioned
examination;

"Sales Representative Proficiency Exam" means the
examination prepared and administered by the
RESP Dealers Association of Canada and so

day this Instrument comes into force, and every
examination that preceded that examination, or
succeeded that examination, that does not have a
significantly reduced scope and content when

compared to the scope and content of the first-
mention xamination;

"Series 7 Exam" means the program-examination
prepared and administered by the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority in the United States of America

and so designated-by-thatregulator-named on the
day this Instrument comes into force, and every

examination that preceded that examination, or
succeeded that examination, that does not have a

ignificantly r n ntent when
mpar h n ntent of the first-

3.2 U.S. equivalency

In this Part, an individual is not required to have
passed the Canadian Securities Course Exam if the
individual has passed the Series 7 Exam and the
New Entrants Course Exam.

U.S. equivalency

4.2 In this Division, an individual is not required
to have passed the Canadian Securities Exam if the
individual has passed the Series 7 Exam and the
New Entrants Exam.

3.2 U.S. equivalency

4.2—In this Bivisien-Part, an individual is not
required to have passed the Canadian Securities
Course Exam if the individual has passed the
Series 7 Exam and the New Entrants Course Exam.

3.3 Time limits on examination requirements

(1) For the purposes of this Part, an individual
is deemed to have not passed an examination, and
is deemed to have not successfully completed a

Time limits on examination proficiency

4.4 (1) Subject to subsection (2), an
individual must not be registered in a category
unless the individual passed the examination or

3.3 Time limits on examination preficiency
requirements
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program, unless the individual passed the
examination or successfully completed the program
within 36 months before the date the individual
applied for registration.

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply if the
individual passed the examination or successfully
completed the program more than 36 months before
the date the individual applied for registration and
one or both of the following apply:

(a) for any 12 months during the 36-month
period before the date the individual applied for
registration in a category, the individual was
registered in the same category in a jurisdiction of
Canada;

(b) the individual gained 12 months of relevant
securities industry experience during the 36-month
period before the date the individual applied for
registration.

(3) In Québec, the examinations provided for
in subsections (4) and (6) of section 45 of Policy Q-
9 Dealers, Advisers and Representatives, as it read
on September 27, 2009, are deemed to be relevant
examinations for purposes of subsection (2).

successfully completed the program required in this
Division for the category within 36 months of the
date the individual applied for registration.

(2) If an individual passed the
examination or successfully completed the program
required in this Division for a category more than 36
months before the date the individual applied for
registration, the individual must not be registered in
the category unless the individual

(a) was registered in the category in a
jurisdiction of Canada for 12 months during the 36
month period before the date the individual applied
for registration, or

(b) gained 12 months of relevant experience
during the 36 month period before the date the
individual applied for registration.

Aﬁw ] ] =
is deemed to have not successfully completed a
program, unless the individual passed the
examination or successfully completed the program
ired-in-this-Divisi within 36

requirec-in-this-Divisionforthe-category
months ef-before the date the individual applied for
registration.

(2)—-an_Subsection (1) does not apply if

the individual passed the examination or

successfully completed the program-required-in-this
hvisi more than 36 months before

the date the individual applied for registration_and
ne or both of the followin ly:

(a) ___forany 12 months during the 36-month
- 7 ! — ied f
registration in a category, the individual must-ret-be

was registered in the same category in a
jurisdiction of Canada-fer42-menths-during-the-36
. ; ndivi ;
for registration, or;

(b) the individual gained 12 months of relevant

ities i experience during the 36 -month
period before the date the individual applied for
registration.

(3) In Québec, the examinations provided for

in ions (4) an f ion 45 of Poli -

Dealers, Advisers and Representativ it r

on September 27, 2009, are deemed to be relevant
— 7 f . 2
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Division 2 Education and experience

requirements

34 Proficiency — initial and ongoing Proficiency principle 3.4 Proficiency prineiple-initial and ongoing
(1) An individual must not perform an activity 4.3 When a registered individual performs an 42— e o redlstarad(1) An individual

that requires registration unless the individual has
the education, training and experience that a
reasonable person would consider necessary to
perform the activity competently.

(2) A chief compliance officer must not
perform an activity set out in section 5.2
[responsibilities of the chief compliance officer]
unless the individual has the education, training and
experience that a reasonable person would consider
necessary to perform the activity competently.

activity that requires registration, the individual must
have the education and experience reasonably
necessary to perform the activity.

performs-must not perform an activity that requires
registration;_unless the individual must-have-has the
education, training and experience reasenably-that
a reasonable person would consider necessary to
perform the activity_competently.

2) A chief compliance officer must not
ww T fi iof I fficer]
unless the individual has the education, training and

experience that a reasonable person would consider
necessary to perform the activity competently.

3.5 Mutual fund dealer — dealing
representative

A dealing representative of a mutual fund dealer
must not act as a dealer on behalf of the mutual
fund dealer unless one or both of the following

apply:

(a) the representative has passed the
Canadian Investment Funds Exam, the Canadian
Securities Course Exam or the Investment Funds in
Canada Course Exam;

(b) the representative has met the
requirements of section 3.11 [portfolio manager —
advising representative].

Mutual fund dealer — dealing representative

45 A dealing representative of a mutual fund
dealer must not trade on behalf of the mutual fund
dealer unless the representative

(a) has passed the Canadian Investment
Funds Exam, the Canadian Securities Exam, or the
Investment Funds in Canada Exam, or

(b) has met the requirements of section 4.11
[portfolio manager — advising representative].

3.5 Mutual fund dealer - dealing representative

4.5—A dealing representative of a mutual fund
dealer must not trade-act as a dealer on behalf of
the mutual fund dealer unless the-representative
one or both of the following apply:

(a) the representative has passed the
Canadian Investment Funds Exam, the Canadian

Securities Course Exam; or the Investment Funds in
Canada Course Exam;-or;

(b) the representative has met the
requirements of section 4-443.11 [portfolio manager

- advising representative].

3.6 Mutual fund dealer — chief compliance
officer

A mutual fund dealer must not designate an

Mutual fund dealer — chief compliance officer

4.6 A mutual fund dealer must not designate
an individual as its chief compliance officer under

3.6 Mutual fund dealer - chief compliance
officer

4.6———A mutual fund dealer must not designate
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individual as its chief compliance officer under
subsection 11.3(1) [designating a chief compliance
officer] unless any of the following apply:

(a) the individual has passed

0] the Canadian Investment Funds Exam, the
Canadian Securities Course Exam or the
Investment Funds in Canada Course Exam, and

(i) the PDO Exam or the Mutual Fund Dealers
Compliance Exam;

(b) the individual has met the requirements of
section 3.13 [portfolio manager — chief compliance
officer].

subsection 2.10(1) [chief compliance officer] unless
the individual

(a) has met the requirements of section 4.13
[portfolio manager — chief compliance officer], or

(b) has passed

(i) the Canadian Investment Funds Exam, the
Canadian Securities Exam, or the Investment Funds
in Canada Exam, and

(ii) the PDO Exam.

an individual as its chief compliance officer under
subsection 2-4611.3(1) [designating a chief
compliance officer] unless any of the individual

following apply:

(a) Rocmmettherseriemsr e sessie 43
oortfol of X ficer}—or(b)
the individual has passed

(i) the Canadian Investment Funds Exam, the
Canadian Securities Course Exam; or the
Investment Funds in Canada Course Exam, and

(ii) the PDO Exam-_or the Mutual Fund
Dealer mpliance Exam;

(b) the individual has met the requirements of

section 3.13 [portfolio manager - chief compliance

officer].

3.7 Scholarship plan dealer — dealing
representative

A dealing representative of a scholarship plan
dealer must not act as a dealer on behalf of the
scholarship plan dealer unless the representative
has passed the Sales Representative Proficiency
Exam.

Scholarship plan dealer — dealing representative

4.7 A dealing representative of a scholarship
plan dealer must not trade on behalf of the
scholarship plan dealer unless the representative
has passed the Sales Representative Proficiency
Exam.

3.7 Scholarship plan dealer - dealing
representative

4-7——A dealing representative of a scholarship
plan dealer must not irade-act as a dealer on behalf
of the scholarship plan dealer unless the
representative has passed the Sales Representative
Proficiency Exam.

3.8 Scholarship plan dealer — chief compliance
officer

A scholarship plan dealer must not designate an
individual as its chief compliance officer under
subsection 11.3(1) [designating a chief compliance
officer] unless the individual has passed all of the
following:

(a) the Sales Representative Proficiency

Scholarship plan dealer — chief compliance officer

4.8 A scholarship plan dealer must not
designate an individual as its chief compliance
officer under subsection 2.10(1) [chief compliance
officer] unless the individual has passed

(a) the Sales Representative Proficiency
Exam,

3.8 Scholarship plan dealer - chief compliance
officer

4.8—A scholarship plan dealer must not
designate an individual as its chief compliance
officer under subsection 2:4611.3(1) [designating a
chief compliance officer] unless the individual has

passed_all of the following:

(a) the Sales Representative Proficiency
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Exam; Exam;;
(b) the Branch Manager Proficiency Exam,
(b) the Branch Manager Proficiency Exam; and (b) the Branch Manager Proficiency Exam;
and;
() the PDO Exam. (c) the PDO Exam.
(c) the PDO Exam.
3.9 Exempt market dealer — dealing Exempt market dealer — dealing representative 3.9 Exempt market dealer - dealing
representative representative

A dealing representative of an exempt market
dealer must not act as a dealer on behalf of the
exempt market dealer unless any of the following

apply:

(a) the individual has passed the Canadian
Securities Course Exam;

(b) the individual has passed the Exempt
Market Products Exam;

(c) the individual satisfies the conditions set
out in section 3.11 [portfolio manager — advising
representative].

4.9 A dealing representative of an exempt
market dealer must not trade on behalf of the
exempt market dealer unless the individual

(a) has passed the Canadian Securities Exam,
or
(b) meets the requirements of section 4.11

[portfolio manager — advising representative].

4.9—A dealing representative of an exempt
market dealer must not trade-act as a dealer on
behalf of the exempt market dealer unless any of

the following apply:

(@) the individual{a)— has passed the

Canadian Securities Course Exam;-er;

,_..
O]

(b) R oiehornaniromon e eoelisn
individual has passed the Exempt Market Products
Exam;

he individual satisfies th ndition
out in section 3.11 [portfolio manager - advising
representative].

3.10
officer

Exempt market dealer — chief compliance

An exempt market dealer must not designate an
individual as its chief compliance officer under
subsection 11.3(1) [designating a chief compliance
officer] unless any of the following apply:

(a) the individual has passed the PDO Exam
and any of the following:

Exempt market dealer — chief compliance officer

4.10 An exempt market dealer must not
designate an individual as its chief compliance
officer under subsection 2.10(1) [chief compliance
officer] unless the individual has passed the
Canadian Securities Exam.

3.10 Exempt market dealer - chief compliance
officer

4-40——An exempt market dealer must not
designate an individual as its chief compliance
officer under subsection 2-4611.3(1) [designating a
chief compliance officer] unless any of the following
apply:

(a) the individual has passed the PDO Exam

22




National Instrument 31-103 — Registration Requirements and Exemptions
Published July 17, 2009 compared to February 29, 2008 CSA Publication

JULY 17, 2009 PUBLICATION

FEBRUARY 29, 2008 PUBLICATION

BLACKLINE OF CHANGES

(i) the Canadian Securities Course
Exam;

(ii) the Exempt Market Products
Exam;
(b) the individual has met the requirements of

section 3.13 [portfolio manager — chief compliance
officer].

and any of the following:

(i) the Canadian Securities Course
Exam;

(ii) the Exempt Market Products
Exam;

officer].

3.1 Portfolio manager — advising
representative

An advising representative of a portfolio manager
must not act as an adviser on behalf of the portfolio
manager unless any of the following apply:

(a) the representative has earned a CFA
Charter and has 12 months of relevant investment
management experience in the 36-month period
before applying for registration;

(b) the representative has received the
Canadian Investment Manager designation and has
48 months of relevant investment management
experience, 12 months of which was in the 36-
month period before applying for registration.

Portfolio manager — advising representative

4.11 An advising representative of a portfolio
manager must not act as an adviser on behalf of the
portfolio manager unless the representative

(a) has earned a CFA Charter and has 12
months of relevant investment management
experience in the 36-month period before applying
for registration, or

(b) has received the Canadian Investment
Manager designation and has 48 months of relevant
investment management experience, 12 months of
which was in the 36-month period before applying
for registration.

3.1 Portfolio manager - advising representative

441+——An advising representative of a portfolio
manager must not act as an adviser on behalf of the
portfolio manager unless the-representative any of
the following apply:

(a) the representative has earned a CFA

Charter and has 12 months of relevant investment
management experience in the 36-month period
before applying for registration;-er;

(b) the representative has received the
Canadian Investment Manager designation and has
48 months of relevant investment management
experience, 12 months of which was in the 36-
month period before applying for registration.
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3.12 Portfolio manager — associate advising
representative

An associate advising representative of a portfolio
manager must not act as an adviser on behalf of the
portfolio manager unless any of the following apply:

(a) the representative has completed Level 1
of the Chartered Financial Analyst program and has
24 months of relevant investment management
experience;

(b) the representative has received the
Canadian Investment Manager designation and has
24 months of relevant investment management
experience.

Portfolio manager — associate advising
representative

4.12 An associate advising representative of a
portfolio manager must not act as an adviser on
behalf of the portfolio manager unless the
representative

(a) has completed Level 1 of the Chartered
Financial Analyst Program and has 24 months of
relevant investment management experience, or

(b) has received the Canadian Investment
Manager designation and has 24 months of relevant
investment management experience.

3.12 Portfolio manager — associate advising
representative

4-142——An associate advising representative of a
portfolio manager must not act as an adviser on
behalf of the portfolio manager unless the

representative-any of the following apply:

(a) the representative has completed Level 1
of the Chartered Financial Analyst Pregram-program
and has 24 months of relevant investment
management experience-6r;

(b) the representative has received the
Canadian Investment Manager designation and has
24 months of relevant investment management
experience.

3.13
officer

Portfolio manager — chief compliance

A portfolio manager must not designate an
individual as its chief compliance officer under
subsection 11.3(1) [designating a chief compliance
officer] unless any of the following apply:

(a) the individual has

(i) earned a CFA Charter or a professional
designation as a lawyer, Chartered Accountant,
Certified General Accountant or Certified
Management Accountant in a jurisdiction of Canada,
a notary in Québec, or the equivalent in a foreign
jurisdiction,

(i) passed the Canadian Securities Course
Exam and the PDO Exam, and

Portfolio manager — chief compliance officer

4.13 A portfolio manager must not designate an
individual as its chief compliance officer under
subsection 2.10(1) [chief compliance officer] unless
the individual

(a) has been previously registered as an
advising representative of a portfolio manager in a
jurisdiction of Canada,

(b) has

(i) earned a CFA Charter or a professional
designation as a lawyer, Chartered Accountant,
Certified General Accountant or Certified
Management Accountant in a jurisdiction of Canada,
a notary in Québec, or the equivalent in a foreign
jurisdiction,

3.13 Portfolio manager - chief compliance
officer

443——A portfolio manager must not designate an
individual as its chief compliance officer under
subsection 2-46811.3(1) [designating a chief
compliance officer] unless the-individual-any of the

following apply:

. o of foli .
iH .Sd.et.e e Sa ada!

b
(a) the individual has

0] earned a CFA Charter or a professional
designation as a lawyer, Chartered Accountant,
Certified General Accountant or Certified
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(iii) either

A) gained 36 months of relevant securities
experience while working at an investment dealer, a
registered adviser or an investment fund manager,
or

B) provided professional services in the
securities industry for 36 months and worked at a
registered dealer, a registered adviser or an
investment fund manager for 12 months;

(b) the individual has passed the Canadian
Securities Course Exam and the PDO Exam and
any of the following apply:

(i) the individual has worked at an investment
dealer or a registered adviser for 5 years, including
for 36 months in a compliance capacity;

(ii) the individual has worked for 5 years at a
Canadian financial institution in a compliance
capacity relating to portfolio management and
worked at a registered dealer or a registered adviser
for 12 months;

(c) the individual has passed the PDO Exam
and has met the requirements of section 3.11
[portfolio manager — advising representative].

(i) passed the Canadian Securities Exam and
the PDO Exam, and

(iii) either

A) worked for a registered dealer or a
registered adviser for three years, or

B) provided professional services in the
securities industry for three years and worked for a
registered dealer or a registered adviser for 12
months, or

(c) has passed the Canadian Securities Exam
and the PDO Exam and has either

(i) worked for a registered dealer or a
registered adviser for five years, including for three
years in a compliance capacity, or

(ii) worked for five years for a Canadian
financial institution in a compliance capacity relating
to portfolio management and worked for a
registered dealer or a registered adviser for 12
months.

Management Accountant in a jurisdiction of Canada,
a notary in Québec, or the equivalent in a foreign
jurisdiction,

(ii) passed the Canadian Securities Course
Exam and the PDO Exam, and

(iii) either

B) provided professional services in the
securities industry for three-years36 months and
worked for-at a registered dealer-er, a registered

adviser or an investment fund manager for 12

months;-ef;

(eb) the individual has passed the Canadian
Securities Course Exam and the PDO Exam and

has-eitherany of the following apply:

(i) the individual has worked for-a-registered
at an investment dealer or a registered adviser for

fived years, including for three-years36 months in a
compliance capacity;-of;

(i) the individual has worked for five-5 years
forat a Canadian financial institution in a
compliance capacity relating to portfolio
management and worked for-at a registered dealer
or a registered adviser for 12 months;
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w! ! . f ion 3
portfolio manager - advising representative].

3.14 Investment fund manager — chief
compliance officer

An investment fund manager must not designate an
individual as its chief compliance officer under
subsection 11.3(1) [designating a chief compliance
officer] unless any of the following apply:

(a) the individual has

(i) earned a CFA Charter or a professional
designation as a lawyer, Chartered Accountant,
Certified General Accountant or Certified
Management Accountant in a jurisdiction of Canada,
a notary in Québec, or the equivalent in a foreign
jurisdiction,

(ii) passed the Canadian Securities Course
Exam and the PDO Exam, and

(iii) either

A) gained 36 months of relevant securities
experience while working at a registered dealer, a
registered adviser or an investment fund manager,
or

B) provided professional services in the
securities industry for 36 months and worked in a
relevant capacity at an investment fund manager for

Investment fund manager — chief compliance officer

4.15 An investment fund manager must not
designate an individual as its chief compliance
officer under subsection 2.10(1) [chief compliance
officer] unless the individual

(a) has

(i) earned a CFA Charter or a professional
designation as a lawyer, Chartered Accountant,
Certified General Accountant or Certified
Management Accountant in a jurisdiction of Canada,
a notary in Québec, or the equivalent in a foreign
jurisdiction,

(ii) passed the Canadian Securities Exam and
the PDO Exam, and

(iii) either

A) worked for an investment fund manager for
three consecutive years, or

B) provided professional services in the
securities industry for three consecutive years and
worked for an investment fund manager for 12
consecutive months, or

3.14 Investment fund manager - chief
compliance officer

445——An investment fund manager must not
designate an individual as its chief compliance
officer under subsection 2-4811.3(1) [designating a
chief compliance officer] unless any of the following

apply:
(a) the individual {a)—has

(i) earned a CFA Charter or a professional
designation as a lawyer, Chartered Accountant,
Certified General Accountant or Certified
Management Accountant in a jurisdiction of Canada,
a notary in Québec, or the equivalent in a foreign
jurisdiction,

(ii) passed the Canadian Securities Course
Exam and the PDO Exam, and

(iii) either

A)——weorked-for gained 36 months of

relevant securities experience while working at a

register ler, a register viser or an
investment fund manager-for-three-consecutive

years, or

B) provided professional services in the
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12 months;
(b) the individual has

(i) passed the Canadian Investment Funds
Exam, the Canadian Securities Course Exam, or the
Investment Funds in Canada Course Exam,

(ii) passed the PDO Exam, and

(iii) gained 5 years of relevant securities
experience while working at a registered dealer,
registered adviser or an investment fund manager,
including 36 months in a compliance capacity.

(c) the individual has met the requirements of
section 3.13 [portfolio manager — chief compliance
officer].

(b) has

(i) passed the Canadian Investment Funds
Exam, the Canadian Securities Exam, or the
Investment Funds in Canada Exam,

(i) passed the PDO Exam, and

(iii) worked for a registered investment fund
manager for five consecutive years, including for
three consecutive years in a compliance capacity.

securities industry for three-consecutive-years36

months and worked fepw_o_a_guy_jan
investment fund manager for 12 eonsecutive

months;-of;

(b) the individual has

(i) passed the Canadian Investment Funds
Exam, the Canadian Securities Course Exam, or the
Investment Funds in Canada_Course Exam,

(ii) passed the PDO Exam, and

(iii) worked-for-gained 5 years of relevant
securities experience while working at a registered
dealer, registered adviser or an investment fund
manager-for-five-consecutive-years, including for
three-consecutive-years36 months in a compliance

capacity.

Division 3 Membership in a self-regulatory
organization
3.15 Who must be approved by an SRO before IDA membership for investment dealers IDA membership for investment dealers

registration

(1) A dealing representative of an investment
dealer must be an “approved person” as defined
under the rules of IIROC.

(2) Except in Québec, a dealing representative
of a mutual fund dealer must be an “approved
person” as defined under the rules of the MFDA.

3.1 (2) No individual may be registered to
act on behalf of an investment dealer unless the
individual is an approved person under the by-laws,
regulations and policies of the IDA.

| Who m rov n SR for
registration
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« ”

1) A deal - fan|
dealer must be an “approved person” as defined
under the rules of IIROC.

(2) Except in Québec, a dealing representative

of a mutual fund dealer must be an “approved
rson” fin nder the rul f the MFDA.

3.16 Exemptions from certain requirements for
SRO-approved persons

(1) The following sections do not apply to a
registered individual who is a dealing representative
of a member of IIROC:

(a) subsection 13.2(3) [know your client];

(b) section 13.3 [suitability];

(c) section 13.13 [disclosure when
recommending the use of borrowed money].

(2) The following sections do not apply to a
registered individual who is a dealing representative
of a member of the MFDA:

(a) section 13.3 [suitability];

(b) section 13.13 [disclosure when
recommending the use of borrowed money].

3) In Québec, the requirements listed in
subsection (2) do not apply to a registered individual
who is a dealing representative of a mutual fund
dealer if the registered individual complies with the
applicable regulations on mutual fund dealers in
Québec.

Exceptions for SRO members

3.3 (1) A registrant that is a member of
the IDA, or a dealing representative of a member of
the IDA, is exempt from each requirement in the
following sections that applies to a registered
dealer, or a dealing representative, if the registrant
complies with the by-laws, regulations and policies
of the IDA that deal with the same subject matter:

(a) section 4.18 [capital requirement];
(b) section 4.19 [report capital deficiency];
(c) section 4.21 [insurance — dealer];

(d) section 4.25 [notice of change, claim, or
cancellation];

(e) section 4.26 [appointment of auditor];
(f) section 4.27 [direction to auditor];
(9) section 4.28 [delivering financial

information — dealer];

(h) section 5.4 [providing relationship
disclosure information];

Execeptions3.16 __ Exemptions from certain
requirements for SRO-members-approved persons

registered individual who is a dealing representative
of a member of IIROC:

. 18 {capital ) :
(a) subsection 13.2(3) [know your client];

(b) section 4-49-{report-capital-deficieney13.3
suitability];

(c) section 4:21-[insurance—dealer};13.13
(di ing t P
borrowed moneyl.

{e)———section-4-26 {appointment-of-auditor];
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(i) section 5.5 [suitability];
; ion4.28 [delivering f ,
) section 5. 7 [margin]; information—dealer};
(k) section 5.8 [disclosure when th)——section 5.4 {providing-relationship
recommending use of borrowed money]; disclosure-informationt;

0) section 5.10 [holding client assets in trust]; | (———section-5:5{suitability};

(m) section 5.11 [securities subject to {H———section-5—+{marginf;
safekeeping agreement];

ior 5.8l
(n) section 5.12 [securities not subject to recommending-use-of-borrowed-moneyl;

safekeeping agreement];

(0) section 5.18 [confirmation of trade —

general] {m)—section-5-11{securities-subjectio

(p) except in Québec, section 5.29 [dispute

resolution service]. () section 5.12 [securities-not subject to

(2) Except in Québec, the provisions
listed in subsection (1) do not apply to a registrant (o) section 5.18 [confirmation-of trade
that is a member or approved person of the MFDA if generall;
the registrant complies with the by-laws, rules and
policies of the MFDA that deal with the same
subject matter. {p)———exceptin-Québee;section-5:29{dispute

(3) In Québec, the provisions listed in
subsection (1) do not apply to a mutual fund dealer | 2)——Exeeptin-Quebee-the-provisions-listedin
or a dealing representative of a mutual fund dealer if | subsection{1)-deo-net-apply-to-aregistrantthatisa
the registrant complies with the regulation on mutual | member-orapproved-person-of the- MEDA-ifthe
fund dealer requirements in Québec. registrant-complies-with-the-by-laws;rules-and
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2 The following sections do not apply to a
registered indivi |l whoi ling representativ:
of a member of the MFDA:

) ion 13.3 [suitability]

(b) section 13.13 [disclosure when
recommending the use of borrowed money].

(3) In Québec, the provisions-requirements
listed in subsection (42) do not apply to a mutual
registered individual who is

fund dealeror- a dealing
representative of a mutual fund dealer if the
registrantregistered individual complies with the
regulation-applicable regulations on mutual fund
dealerregquirements-dealers in Québec.

Part4 Restrictions on registered individuals

4.1 Restriction on acting for another registered
firm

An individual registered as a dealing, advising or
associate advising representative of a registered
firm must not act as an officer, partner or director of
another registered firm that is not an affiliate of the
first-mentioned registered firm.

Registrant relationships

6.3 An individual registered as a dealing,
advising or associate advising representative of a
registered firm must not act as an officer, partner or
director of another registered firm that is not an
affiliate of the first-mentioned registered firm.

Restriction on

Registrant relationships 4.1
ing f ! i i

6-3———An individual registered as a dealing,
advising or associate advising representative of a
registered firm must not act as an officer, partner or
director of another registered firm that is not an
affiliate of the first-mentioned registered firm.

4.2 Associate advising representatives — pre-
approval of advice

(1) An associate advising representative of a
registered adviser must not advise on securities
unless, before giving the advice, the advice has
been approved by an individual designated by the
registered firm under subsection (2).

(2) A registered adviser must designate, for an

Associate advising representative — approved
advising only

2.8 (1) An associate advising
representative of a registered adviser must not

advise in securities unless, before giving the advice,

the advice is approved by an advising
representative designated by the adviser.

(2) A registered adviser that

1SS0E ate-advising fepresentative—approved
4.2 Associate advising representatives — pre-
approval of advice

28— (1) An associate advising
representative of a registered adviser must not
advise ir-on securities unless, before giving the
advice, the advice is-has been approved by an

advising-representative-individual designated by the
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associate advising representative, an advising
representative to review the advice of the associate
advising representative.

(3) No later than the 7th day following the date
of a designation under subsection (2), a registered
adviser must provide the regulator with the names
of the advising representative and the associate
advising representative who are the subject of the
designation.

designates an advising representative for the
purpose of subsection (1) must notify the regulator
of the designation no later than the 5th business day
following the date of the designation.

(2) A registered adviser must designate, for an
associate advising representative, an advising
representative to review the advice of the associate
advising representative.

. ,
. 2) A-fegistered adviser that
desig atesﬁa advising represe tat_;e orthe

of-the-designation-no-laterthan-the-5th-business
fellowing-the-date(3) No later than the 7th day
following the date of a designation under subsection
(2), a registered adviser must provide the regulator

Wlth the names of the advising representative and
i vising representative who are th

M of the designation.

Part5 Ultimate designated person and chief
compliance officer

5.1 Responsibilities of the ultimate designated
person

The ultimate designated person of a registered firm
must do all of the following:

(a) supervise the activities of the firm that are
directed towards ensuring compliance with
securities legislation by the firm and each individual
acting on the firm’s behalf;

(b) promote compliance by the firm, and
individuals acting on its behalf, with securities

Ultimate designated person — functions

5.24 The ultimate designated person of a
registered firm must

(a) supervise the activities of the firm that are
directed towards ensuring compliance with
securities legislation by the firm and each individual
acting on its behalf, and

(b) promote compliance with securities
legislation within the firm.

Ultimateb. Responsibilities of the ultimate
deS|gnated person—functions

5.24——The ultimate designated person of a
registered firm must do all of the following:

(a) supervise the activities of the firm that are
directed towards ensuring compliance with
securities legislation by the firm and each individual
acting on its-the firm's behalfand;

(b) promote compliance by the firm, and
individuals acting on its behalf, with securities

legislation. legislation-within-the-firm.
5.2 Responsibilities of the chief compliance Chief compliance officer — functions . nsibiliti hief compliance
officer officer —funetions

The chief compliance officer of a registered firm

5.25 The chief compliance officer of a registered
firm must

5.256——The chief compliance officer of a registered
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must do all of the following:

(a) establish and maintain policies and
procedures for assessing compliance by the firm,
and individuals acting on its behalf, with securities
legislation;

(b) monitor and assess compliance by the
firm, and individuals acting on its behalf, with
securities legislation;

(c) report to the ultimate designated person of
the firm as soon as possible if the chief compliance
officer becomes aware of any circumstances
indicating that the firm, or any individual acting on its
behalf, may be in non-compliance with securities
legislation and any of the following apply:

0] the non-compliance creates, in the opinion
of a reasonable person, a risk of harm to a client;

(ii) the non-compliance creates, in the opinion
of a reasonable person, a risk of harm to the capital
markets;

(iii) the non-compliance is part of a pattern of
non-compliance;

(d) submit an annual report to the firm’s board
of directors, or individuals acting in a similar
capacity for the firm, for the purpose of assessing
compliance by the firm, and individuals acting on its
behalf, with securities legislation.

(a) establish and maintain policies and
procedures for assessing compliance by the firm,
and individuals acting on its behalf, with securities
legislation,

(b) monitor and assess compliance by the
firm, and individuals acting on its behalf, with
securities legislation,

(c) report to the ultimate designated person as
soon as practicable if the chief compliance officer
becomes aware of any circumstances indicating that
the firm, or any individual acting on its behalf, is in
substantial non-compliance with securities
legislation, and

(d) submit an annual report to the board of
directors or partnership for the purpose of assessing
compliance by the firm, and individuals acting on its
behalf, with securities legislation.

firm must do all of the following:

(a) establish and maintain policies and
procedures for assessing compliance by the firm,
and individuals acting on its behalf, with securities
legislation;;

(b) monitor and assess compliance by the
firm, and individuals acting on its behalf, with
securities legislation;;

(c) report to the ultimate designated person of
the firm as soon as practicable-possible if the chief
compliance officer becomes aware of any
circumstances indicating that the firm, or any
individual acting on its behalf, is may be in
substantial non-compliance with securities

legislation; and_any of the following apply:

i the non-compliance creates, in the opinion
of a reasonable person, a risk of harm to a client;

i the non-compliance creates, in the opinion
far nabl rson, a risk of harm h ital
markets;

non-compliance;

(d) submit an annual report to the firm's board

of directors-erpartnership, or individuals acting in a
similar capacity for the firm, for the purpose of

assessing compliance by the firm, and individuals
acting on its behalf, with securities legislation.
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Part6 Suspension and revocation of registration
— individuals

6.1 If individual ceases to have authority to act
for firm

If a registered individual ceases to have authority to
act as a registered individual on behalf of his or her
sponsoring firm because of the end of, or a change
in, the individual’s employment, partnership, or
agency relationship with the firm, the individual’s
registration with the firm is suspended until
reinstated or revoked under securities legislation.

Termination of employment, etc.

7.6 If a registered individual ceases to have an
employment, partnership or agency relationship with
a registered firm, the individual’s registration with
the registered firm is suspended on the date the
relationship ceased.

hori for

+6—If a registered individual ceases to have an
authority to act as a registered individual on behalf
of his or her sponsoring firm because of the end of,
or a change in, the individual's employment,

partnership, or agency relationship with a+registered
the firm, the individual's registration with the

registered-firm is suspended on-the-date-the
relationship-ceased until reinstated or revoked
under securities legislation.

6.2 If IROC approval is revoked or suspended

If IROC revokes or suspends a registered
individual’s approval in respect of an investment
dealer, the individual’s registration as a dealing
representative of the investment dealer is
suspended until reinstated or revoked under
securities legislation.

Suspension of IDA approval

7.3 (2) If the IDA revokes or suspends a
registered individual’s approval, the individual’s
registration in the category of investment dealer is
suspended.

Sucoopsiene LN 6.2 If IROC approval_is
revoked or suspended

F3+2)—If the IBA IIROC revokes or suspends a
registered individual's approval_in respect of an
investment dealer, the individual's registration in as

a dealing representative of the eategory-of
investment dealer is suspended-_until reinstated or
revok nder rities legislati

6.3 If MFDA approval is revoked or suspended

Except in Québec, if the MFDA revokes or
suspends a registered individual's approval in
respect of a mutual fund dealer, the individual's
registration as a dealing representative of the
mutual fund dealer is suspended until reinstated or
revoked under securities legislation.

Suspension of MFDA approval

7.4 (2) If the MFDA revokes or suspends
a registered individual's approval, the individual’s
registration in the category of mutual fund dealer is
suspended.

3) This section does not apply in
Québec.

Suspension-of6.3 If MFDA approval.is revoked or
suspended

74 (2) 1 Exceptin Québec, if the MFDA

revokes or suspends a registered individual's

approvalin respect of a mutual fund dealer, the
individual's registration in-as a dealing

representative of the eategery-ef-mutual fund dealer
is suspended_until reinstated or revoked under

securities legislation.

; Thi . .
Québec:

6.4 If sponsoring firm is suspended

Suspension of registered firm

If sponsoring

B = e It
firm_iis suspended
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If a registered firm’s registration in a category is
suspended, the registration of each registered
dealing, advising or associate advising
representative acting on behalf of the firm in that
category is suspended until reinstated or revoked
under securities legislation.

7.2 If the registration of a registered firm in a
category is suspended, the registration of each
registered dealing, advising or associate advising
representative in that category is suspended.

22— theregistration-of If a registered firm’s
registration in a category is suspended, the
registration of each registered dealing, advising or
associate advising representative acting on behalf
of the firm in that category is suspended_until
reinstated or revoked under securities legislation.

6.5 Dealing and advising activities suspended

If an individual’s registration in a category is
suspended, the individual must not act as a dealer,
an underwriter or an adviser, as the case may be,
under that category.

Activities requiring registration are prohibited

7.1 If the registration of a registered firm or a
registered individual in a category is suspended, he,
she or it must not act as a dealer, an adviser, or an
investment fund manager in that category.

Dealing an visin iviti n
+4+——If thean individual’s registration-efa

registered firm or a registered-individual in a
category is suspended, he;-she-oritthe individual
must not act as a dealer, an underwriter or an
adviser, eran-investmentfund-managerinas the
case may be, under that category.

6.6 Revocation of a suspended registration -
individual

If a registration of an individual has been suspended
under this Part and it has not been reinstated, the
registration is revoked on the 2" anniversary of the
suspension.

Revocation of registration

7.7 If a registration has been suspended under
this Part and it has not been reinstated, the
registration is revoked on the second anniversary
following the suspension.

6.6 Revocation of a suspended registration_-
individual

7

If a registration of an individual has been suspended
under this Part and it has not been reinstated, the
registration is revoked on the secend 2"
anniversary fellewing of the suspension.

6.7 Exception for individuals involved in a
hearing

Despite section 6.6, if a hearing concerning a
suspended registrant is commenced under
securities legislation or a proceeding concerning the
registrant is commenced under the rules of an SRO,
the registrant’s registration remains suspended.

Exception — hearing

7.8 Despite 7.7 [revocation of registration], if a
hearing concerning a suspended registrant is
commenced under the Act, the registration remains
suspended until a decision has been made by the
regulator or the securities regulatory authority.

6.7 Exception —for individuals involved in a
hearing

#-8——Despite Z-F{revocation-of
registration};section 6.6, if a hearing concerning a
suspended registrant is commenced under the-Act;
the securities legislation or a proceeding concerning
the reqgistrant is commenced under the rules of an
SRO, the registrant’s registration remains
suspended-until a decision-has been made by the
rogulote e noonenitioo roanlato oo b
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6.8 Application of Part 6 in Ontario

Other than section 6.5 [dealing and advising
activities suspended], this Part does not apply in
Ontario.

New Provision

X Application of Part 6 in Ontar

Other than section 6.5 [dealing and advising
activities suspended], this Part does not apply in

Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario, measures governing suspension Note: In Ontario, m r vernin nsion
in section 29 of the Securities Act (Ontario) are in section 29 of the Securities Act (Ontario) are
similar to those in Parts 6 and 10.] similar to those in Parts 6 and 10.]

Part 7  Categories of registration for firms

71 Dealer categories Dealer and underwriter categories /1 Dealer and-underwriter-categories

(1) The following are the categories of 21 (1) A dealer or underwriter, if required —+(1)

registration for a person or company that is
required, under securities legislation, to be
registered as a dealer:

(a) investment dealer;

(b) mutual fund dealer;

(c) scholarship plan dealer;

(@) exempt market dealer;

(e) restricted dealer.

2) A person or company registered in the

category of

(a) investment dealer may act as a dealer or
an underwriter in respect of any security,

to be registered, must be registered by the regulator
in one or more of the following categories:

(a) investment dealer, being a dealer or
underwriter that is permitted to trade in, or act as an
underwriter in respect of, any security;

(b) mutual fund dealer, being a dealer that is
only permitted to trade in securities of

(i) mutual funds, and

(i) except in Québec, investment funds that
are labour sponsored investment fund corporations
or labour sponsored venture capital corporations
under provincial legislation;

(c) scholarship plan dealer, being a dealer that
is only permitted to trade in securities of scholarship
plans, educational plans or educational trusts;

24— ——A-dealerorunderwriter—if
The following are the categories of
registration for a person or company that is
required, under securities legislation, to be
registered, must be registered by the regulatorin
one-or-more-of the following-categories as a dealer:

(a) investment dealer;-being-a-dealer-or
. . . toinoF;

(b) mutual fund dealer;

holarship plan ler;
(d) __ exempt market dealer;
e restricted dealer.

(2) A person or company registered in the
category of

(a) investment dealer may act as_a dealer or
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(b) mutual fund dealer may act as a dealer in
respect of any security of

0] a mutual fund, or

(ii) except in Québec, an investment fund that
is a labour-sponsored investment fund corporation
or labour-sponsored venture capital corporation
under legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada,

(c) scholarship plan dealer may act as a
dealer in respect of a security of a scholarship plan,
an educational plan or an educational trust,

(d) exempt market dealer may

(i) act as a dealer by trading a security that is
distributed under an exemption from the prospectus
requirement, whether or not a prospectus was filed

in respect of the distribution,

(i) act as a dealer by trading a security that, if
the trade were a distribution, would be exempt from
the prospectus requirement,

(iii) receive an order from a client to sell a
security that was acquired by the clientin a
circumstance described in subparagraph (i) or (ii),
and may act or solicit in furtherance of receiving
such an order, and

(iv) act as an underwriter in respect of a
distribution of securities that is made under an
exemption from the prospectus requirement;

(e) restricted dealer may act as a dealer or an

(d) exempt market dealer, being
0] a dealer that is only permitted to trade
A) in securities that are distributed under an

exemption from the prospectus requirement,

B) in securities that are distributed under a
prospectus if the distribution may have been made
under an exemption from the prospectus
requirement,

C) in securities that, if the trade were a
distribution, may have been distributed under an
exemption from the prospectus requirement, and

D) on behalf of a client, any securities
acquired by the client in a circumstance described in
subparagraph (A), (B) or (C) , if the trade is with a
registered dealer, and

(i) an underwriter that is only permitted to act
as an underwriter in respect of a distribution of
securities that may be made under an exemption
from the prospectus requirement;

(e) restricted dealer, being a dealer that is
limited by conditions on its registration to trading in
a specified security, class of security or the
securities of a class of issuers.

(2) Despite subsection (1)(b), in
British Columbia a mutual fund dealer is only
permitted to trade in securities of

0] mutual funds,

an underwriter in respect of; any security;,

(b) mutual fund dealer;-beirg_ may act as a
dealer thatis-only-permitied-to-trade-in-seeurities-of
in respect of any security of

(i) a mutual funds fund, and or

(i) except in Québec, an investment funds
fund that are is a labour -sponsored investment fund
corperations-corporation or labour -sponsored
venture capital eorperations corporation under
provineial legislation;_of a jurisdiction of Canada,

(c) scholarship plan dealer-being_may act as
a dealer thatis only permitted to trade in securities
of scholarship plans, educational plans-or

. i .
scholarship plan, an educational plan or an
educational trust

(d) exempt market dealer;-being_may

(i) act as a dealer_by trading a security that is

distributed under an exemption from the prospectus
requirement, B)—in-securities-that-are-distributed
wnder_ whether or not a prospectus if was filed in
respect of the distribution-may-have-beer-made
underan-exemption-from-the-prospectus
reguirement,

C(ii)—in-seeurities_act as a dealer by trading a
security that, if the trade were a distribution, may
exempt from the prospectus requirement, and
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underwriter in accordance with the terms,
conditions, restrictions or requirements applied to its
registration.

(3) Despite paragraph (2)(b), in British
Columbia a mutual fund dealer may also act as a
dealer in respect of securities of any of the
following:

(a) scholarship plans;
(b) educational plans;
(c) educational trusts.

(4) Subsection (1) does not apply in Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario, the same categories of
registration for firms acting as dealers as in
subsection 7.1(1) are set out under subsection 26(2)
of the Securities Act (Ontario).]

(ii) investment funds that are labour
sponsored investment fund corporations or labour
sponsored venture capital corporations under
provincial legislation, and

(iii) securities of scholarship plans, educational
plans or educational trusts.

B(iii)—en-behalf-of receive an order from a client;

ities_to sell a security that was acquired by
the client in a circumstance described in
subparagraph {A)y+B)or{C)if the- trade-is-with-a
registered-dealer (i) or (ii), and may act or solicit in
furtherance of receiving such an order, and

(iv) act as an underwriter in respect of a
distribution of securities that may-be is made under
an exemption from the prospectus requirement;

(e) restrlcted dealer%emgmy& a dealer
. or an underwriter in accordance
with the terms, conditions-en, restrictions or
requirements applied to its registration-te-trading-in
m ™ ‘ .

(23) Despite subsection{(1paragraph
(2)(b), in British Columbia a mutual fund dealer is

only-permitted-to-trade-in-seeurities-of may also act
as a dealer in respect of securities of any of the
following:

H———mutuaHunds:

(Hia) seeurities-ef-scholarship plans;-educational
plans-or-educationaltrusts;

ional plans;
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(c)  educational trusts.

4 Subsection (1) does not apply in Ontario.

Note: In Ontario, the same categories of
registration for firms acting as dealers as in

ion 7.1(1) ar nder ion 26(2
f th rities A ntari
7.2 Adviser categories Adviser categories 7.2 Adviser categories
(1) The following are the categories of 2.3 An adviser, if required to be registered, 2.3 An-adviser, if required to be registered,

registration for a person or company that is
required, under securities legislation, to be
registered as an adviser:

(a) portfolio manager;

(b) restricted portfolio manager.

(2) A person or company registered in the
category of

(a) portfolio manager may act as an adviser in

respect of any security, and

(b) restricted portfolio manager may act as an
adviser in respect of any security in accordance with
the terms, conditions, restrictions or requirements
applied to its registration.

3) Subsection (1) does not apply in Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario, the same categories of
registration for firms acting as advisers as in
subsection 7.2(1) are set out under subsection 26(6)

must be registered by the regulator in one of the
following categories:

(a) portfolio manager, being an adviser that is
permitted to advise in any security;

(b) restricted portfolio manager, being an
adviser that is limited by conditions on its
registration to advising in specified securities,
classes of securities or the securities of a class of
issuers.

. .
Eustb_e egiste e.db:“'e eguiatorin-one-of the

) The following are the categories of
registration for a person or company that is
required, under securities legislation, to be
registered as an adviser:

(@) portfolio manager;-being-an-adviserthatis
; S iy

(b) restricted portfolio manager;-beinrg-an
adn.se thatis _te_el b? €0 dt. ORS Of-ts ‘
egist ateﬁ to ad_ ISIRGHh Spee e.d. seean ties ¢
.SSHe S.

: : . T
category of

a ortfolio manager may act as an adviser in
respect of any security, and

restri folio man rm n
adviser in respect of any security in accordance with
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of the Securities Act (Ontario).]

3 Subsection (1) does not a in Ontario.

Note: In Ontario, the same categories of

reqistration for firm in viser in
ion 7.2(1) ar nder ion 2
E S ities Act (C i0)]
7.3 Investment fund manager category Investment fund manager category 7.3 Investment fund manager category

The category of registration for a person or
company that is required, under securities
legislation, to be registered as an investment fund
manager is “investment fund manager”.

2.6 An investment fund manager, if required to
be registered, must be registered by the regulator in
the category of investment fund manager, being a
person or company that is permitted to direct the
business, operations or affairs of an investment
fund.

25 e ,.est etu_d|a|age equ edt_e
the-category-of-investmentfund-manager-being The
category of registration for a person or company
thatis comniiodbiedicoa o buninoce conmione
or-affairs-of required, under securities legislation, to

be reqistered as an investment fund_manager is
"investment fund man r.

Part 8 Exemptions from the requirement to
register
Division 1 Exemptions from dealer and

underwriter registration

8.1 Interpretation of “trade” in Québec

In this Part, in Québec, "trade" refers to any of the
following activities:

(a) the activities described in the definition of

"dealer" in section 5 of the Securities Act (R.S.Q., c.

V-1.1), including the following activities:

0] the sale or disposition of a security by
onerous title, whether the terms of payment are on
margin, installment or otherwise, but does not
include a transfer or the giving in guarantee of
securities in connection with a debt or the purchase

New Provision

. 2

In this Part, in Québec, "trade" refers to any of the
following activities:

(a) the activities described in the definition of
ler" in ion 5 of th rities Act (R.S.Q., c.
V-1.1),10 - followi PaTr—

(i) the sale or disposition of a security by
onerous title, whether the terms of payment are on
margin, installment or otherwise, but does not

include a transfer or the giving in guarantee of
securities in connection with a debt or the purchase

39




National Instrument 31-103 — Registration Requirements and Exemptions
Published July 17, 2009 compared to February 29, 2008 CSA Publication

JULY 17, 2009 PUBLICATION

FEBRUARY 29, 2008 PUBLICATION

BLACKLINE OF CHANGES

of a security, except as provided in paragraph (b);

(i) participation as a trader in any transaction
in a security through the facilities of an exchange or
a quotation and trade reporting system;

(iii) the receipt by a registrant of an order to
buy or sell a security;

(b) a transfer or the giving in guarantee of
securities of an issuer from the holdings of a control
person in connection with a debt.

; . = oh (b);

ii articipation as a trader in any transaction

in a security through the facilities of an exchange or
a quotation and trade reporting system;

(b) ___ atransfer or the giving in guarantee of
securities of an issuer from the holdings of a control
person in connection with a debt.

8.2 Definition of “securities” in Alberta, British
Columbia, New Brunswick and Saskatchewan

Despite section 1.2, in Alberta, British Columbia,
New Brunswick and Saskatchewan, a reference to
“securities” in this Division excludes “exchange
contracts”.

New Provision

“ I » oy

s.2.___ Definition of securities In Alberta, british

Despite section 1.2, in Alberta, British Columbia,
New Brunswick and Saskatchewan, a reference to
“securities” in this Division excludes “exchange
contracts”,

8.3 Interpretation — exemption from underwriter
registration requirement

In this Division, an exemption from the dealer
registration requirement is an exemption from the
underwriter registration requirement.

Interpretation

8.1 (2) In this Division, an exemption
from the dealer registration requirement is deemed
to be an exemption from the underwriter registration
requirement.

8.3 Interpretation — exemption from underwriter
registration requirement

84+——2)———1In this Division, an exemption

from the dealer registration requirement is deemed
to-be-an exemption from the underwriter registration
requirement.

8.4 Person or company not in the business of
trading in British Columbia, Manitoba and New
Brunswick

(1) In British Columbia and New Brunswick, a
person or company is exempt from the dealer
registration requirement if the person or company

(a) is not engaged in the business of trading in
securities or exchange contracts as a principal or

New Provision

84 Person or company not in the business of

ling in British Columbia, Manitot T
Brunswick

) In British Columbia and New Brunswick, a
person or company is exempt from the dealer
registration requirement if the person or company

isn n in th in f trading in
securities or exchange contracts as a principal or
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agent, and

(b) does not hold himself, herself or itself out
as engaging in the business of trading in securities
or exchange contracts as a principal or agent.

(2) In Manitoba, a person or company is
exempt from the dealer registration requirement if
the person or company

(a) is not engaged in the business of trading in
securities as a principal or agent, and

agent, and

(b) does not hold himself, herself or itself out
as engaging in the business of trading in securities
or exchange contracts as a principal or agent.

2 In Mani rson or company i
from th istration r irement if
the person or company

(a) is not engaged in the business of trading in
securities as a principal or agent, and

(b) does not hold himself, herself or itself out b) does not hold himself, herself or itself out
as engaging in the business of trading in securities ngaging in th in f trading in riti
as a principal or agent. as a principal or agent.

8.5 Trades through or to a registered dealer Investment fund distributing through dealer lavestmentfund-distributing-through-dealer

The dealer registration requirement does not apply
to a person or company in respect of a trade by the
person or company if one of the following applies:

(a) the trade is made solely through an agent
who is a registered dealer, if the dealer is registered
in a category that permits the trade;

(b) the trade is made to a registered dealer
who is purchasing as principal, if the dealer is
registered in a category that permits the trade.

8.2 The dealer registration requirement does
not apply to an investment fund or the investment
fund manager of the fund that distributes a security
of the investment fund’s own issue only through a
registered dealer.

Issuer distributing through dealer

8.3 The dealer registration requirement does
not apply to an issuer that is trading in securities for
the purpose of distributing a security of its own issue
for its own account if the trading is done only
through a registered dealer.

8.5 Trades through or to a registered dealer

Th ler registration r: iremen n |
to a person or company in respect of a trade by the
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i Fthe follow plies:

a the trade is made solely through an agent

who is a reqgistered dealer, if the dealer is registered
in a category that permits the trade;

he tr is m register ler
who i rchasin rincipal, if th ler i
- T its t ]
8.6 Adviser — non-prospectus qualified Exemption from dealer registration for advisers i i i i 8.6
investment fund Adviser — non-pr: lifi
22 (1) The dealer registration investment fund

(1) The dealer registration requirement does requirement does not apply to a registered adviser,
not apply to a registered adviser, or an adviser that or an adviser that is exempt from registration under | 22—(1) The dealer registration

is exempt from registration under section 8.26
[international adviser], in respect of a trade in a
security of a non-prospectus qualified investment
fund if both of the following apply:

(a) the adviser acts as the fund’s adviser and
investment fund manager;

(b) the trade is to a managed account of a
client of the adviser.

(2) The exemption in subsection (1) is not
available if the managed account or non-prospectus
qualified investment fund was created or is used
primarily for the purpose of qualifying for the
exemption.

3) An adviser that relies on subsection (1)
must provide written notice to the regulator that it is
relying on the exemption within 7 days of its first use
of the exemption.

section 8.16 [international adviser], that buys or
sells a security of a pooled fund administered by the
adviser for a fully-managed account that is created
and managed by the adviser.

(2) The exemption in subsection (1)
is not available if the fully-managed account or
pooled fund is created or used primarily for the
purpose of qualifying for the exemption.

3) The exemption in subsection (1)
is not available unless the adviser, within 5 business
days of its first use of the exemption, provides
written notice to the regulator that it is relying on the
exemption.

requirement does not apply to a registered adviser,

or an adviser that is exempt from registration under

section 8:168.26 [international adviser], that-buys-or
v of : -

o f ; .
and-managed-by-the-adviserin respect of a frade in
ity of i lfied

a the adviser acts as the fund’s adviser and
investment fund manager;

he tr i man nt of
lient of th viser.
(2) The exemption in subsection (1)

is not available if the fulhv-managed account or
poeled non-prospectus gqualified investment fund is
was created or_is used primarily for the purpose of
qualifying for the exemption.

(3)—Fhe-exemption-in An adviser that relies
on subsection (1) is-hetavailable-unless-the-adviser;
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T - T T :
[ must provide written notice to

the regulator that it is relying on the exemption
within 7 days of its first use of the exemption.

8.7 Investment fund reinvestment

(1) Subject to subsections (2), (3), (4) and (5),
the dealer registration requirement does not apply to
an investment fund, or the investment fund manager
of the fund, in respect of a trade in a security with a
security holder of the investment fund if the trade is
permitted by a plan of the investment fund and is in
a security of the investment fund’s own issue and if
any of the following apply:

(a) a dividend or distribution out of earnings,
surplus, capital or other sources payable in respect
of the investment fund’s securities is applied to the
purchase of the security that is of the same class or
series as the securities to which the dividends or
distributions are attributable;

(b) the security holder makes an optional cash
payment to purchase the security of the investment
fund and both of the following apply:

(i) the security is of the same class or series
of securities described in paragraph (a) that trade
on a marketplace;

(i) the aggregate number of securities issued
under the optional cash payment does not exceed,
in the financial year of the investment fund during
which the trade takes place, 2 per cent of the issued
and outstanding securities of the class to which the
plan relates as at the beginning of the financial year.

(2) The exemption in subsection (1) is not

Investment fund reinvestment

8.4 (1) Subject to subsections (3), (4)
and (5), the dealer registration requirement does not
apply to an investment fund or the investment fund
manager of the fund trading in a security with a
security holder of the investment fund if the trade is
permitted by a plan of the investment fund and is in
a security of the investment fund’s own issue if

(a) a dividend or distribution out of earnings,
surplus, capital or other sources payable in respect
of the investments fund’s securities are applied to
the purchase of the security that is of the same
class or series as the securities to which the
dividends or distributions out of earnings, surplus,
capital or other sources are attributable, or

(b) subject to subsection (2), the security
holder makes an optional cash payment to purchase
the security of the investment fund that is of the
same class or series of securities described in
paragraph (a) that trade on a marketplace.

(2) The aggregate number of
securities issued under the optional cash payment
referred to in paragraph (1)(b) must not exceed, in
any fiscal year of the investment fund during which
the trade takes place, two per cent of the issued and
outstanding securities of the class to which the plan
relates as at the beginning of the fiscal year.

(3) A plan that permits a trade
described in subsection (1) must be available to

8.7 Investment fund reinvestment

84—(1) Subject to subsections (2), (3), (4)
and (5), the dealer registration requirement does not
apply to an investment fund, or the investment fund
manager of the fund-trading, in r fafr in
a security with a security holder of the investment
fund if the trade is permitted by a plan of the
investment fund and is in a security of the
investment fund’s own issue if and if any of the
following apply:

(a) a dividend or distribution out of earnings,
surplus, capital or other sources payable in respect
of the investmentsinvestment fund’s securities areis
applied to the purchase of the security that is of the
same class or series as the securities to which the
dividends or distributions eut-ef earnings,-surplus;
capital-or-other-sources-are attributable;-or;

(b) subject-to-subsection{(2);-the security

holder makes an optional cash payment to purchase
the security of the investment fund that and both of

the following apply:

(i) the security is of the same class or series
of securities described in paragraph (a) that trade
on a marketplace-;

(2ii)—TFhe the aggregate number of
securities issued under the optional cash payment
referred-to-in-paragraph-(1)(b) must does not
exceed, in any-fiseal the financial year of the
investment fund during which the trade takes place,
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available unless the plan that permits the trade is
available to every security holder in Canada to
which the dividend or distribution is available.

(3) The exemption in subsection (1) is not
available if a sales charge is payable on a trade
described in the subsection.

(4) At the time of the trade, if the investment
fund is a reporting issuer and in continuous
distribution, the investment fund must have set out
in the prospectus under which the distribution is
made

(a) details of any deferred or contingent sales
charge or redemption fee that is payable at the time
of the redemption of the security, and

(b) any right that the security holder has to
elect to receive cash instead of securities on the
payment of a dividend or making of a distribution by
the investment fund and instructions on how the
right can be exercised.

(5) At the time of the trade, if the investment
fund is a reporting issuer and is not in continuous
distribution, the investment fund must provide the
information required by subsection (4) in its
prospectus, annual information form or a material
change report.

every security holder in Canada to which the
dividend or distribution is out of earnings, surplus,
capital or other sources available.

(4) No sales charge is payable on a
trade described in subsection (1).

(5) The most recent prospectus of the
investment fund, if any, must set out

(a) details of any deferred or contingent sales
charge or redemption fee that is payable at the time
of the redemption of the security,

(b) any right that the security holder has to
make an election to receive cash instead of
securities on the payment of a dividend or making of
a distribution by the investment fund, and

(c) instructions on how the right referred to in
paragraph (b) can be exercised.

twe2 per cent of the issued and outstanding
securities of the class to which the plan relates as at
the beginning of the fiseal financial year.

A2 The exemption in

ubsectlon (1 ) is not available unless the plan that
permits & the trade deseribed-in-subsection{H-must

be s available to every security holder in Canada to
which the dividend or distribution is eut-ef-earnings;
surplus—eapialeretherseurees-available.

A Ne(3) The exemption in
subsection (1) is not available if a sales charge is

payable on a trade described in the subsection-(1).

B L e

4 At the time of the trade, if the investment
fund i r in r and in contin
istribution, th ment fund m hav

(a) details of any deferred or contingent sales
charge or redemption fee that is payable at the time
of the redemption of the security, and

(b) any right that the security holder has to
rmake-an-election elect to receive cash instead of
securities on the payment of a dividend or making of
a distribution by the investment fund; and{e)-
instructions on how the right referred-to-in

paragraph-(b)-can be exercised.

5 At the time of the trade, if the investment
fund i r in r and is not in contin
istribution, th ment fund m rovi h

information required by subsection (4) in its
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inf fon -
change report.

8.8 Additional investment in investment funds

The dealer registration requirement does not apply
to an investment fund, or the investment fund
manager of the fund, in respect of a trade in a
security of the investment fund’s own issue with a
security holder of the investment fund if all of the
following apply:

(a) the security holder initially acquired
securities of the investment fund as principal for an
acquisition cost of not less than $150,000 paid in
cash at the time of the acquisition;

(b) the trade is in respect of a security of the
same class or series as the securities initially
acquired, as described in paragraph (a);

(c) the security holder, as at the date of the
trade, holds securities of the investment fund and
one or both of the following apply:

Additional investment in investment funds

8.5 The dealer registration requirement does
not apply to an investment fund or the investment
fund manager of the fund in respect of a trade in a
security of the investment fund’s own issue with a
security holder of the investment fund if

(a) the security holder initially acquired
securities of the investment fund as principal for an
acquisition cost of not less than $150,000 paid in
cash at the time of the trade,

(b) the trade is for a security of the same class
or series as the securities initially acquired, as
described in paragraph (a), and

(c) the security holder, as at the date of the
trade, holds securities of the investment fund that
have

8.8 Additional investment in investment funds

8.5———The dealer registration requirement does
not apply to an investment fund, or the investment
fund manager of the fund, in respect of a trade in a
security of the investment fund’s own issue with a

security holder of the investment fund if all of the

following apply:

(a) the security holder initially acquired
securities of the investment fund as principal for an
acquisition cost of not less than $150,000 paid in
cash at the time of the trade;-acquisition;

(b) the trade is for in respect of a security of
the same class or series as the securities initially
acquired, as described in paragraph (a)anrd-;

(c) the security holder, as at the date of the
trade, holds securities of the investment fund that

have and one or both of the following apply:

0] an acquisition cost of not less than
(i) the acquisition cost of the securities being $150,000, or (i) an the acquisition cost of the securities
held was not less than $150,000; being held was not less than $450,000,-er-150,000;
(ii) a net asset value of not less than
(ii) the net asset value of the securities being $150,000. (ii) a the net asset value of the securities
held is not less than $150,000. being held is not less than $150,000.
8.9 Additional investment in investment funds if | [8.10 45-106] N/A

initial purchase before September 14, 2005

The dealer registration requirement does not apply
in respect of a trade by an investment fund in a
security of its own issue to a purchaser that initially
acquired a security of the same class as principal
before September 14, 2005 if all of the following
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apply:

(a) the security was initially acquired under
any of the following provisions:

(i) in Alberta, sections 86(e) and 131(1)(d) of
the Securities Act (Alberta) as they existed prior to
their repeal by sections 9(a) and 13 of the Securities
Amendment Act (Alberta), 2003 SA ¢.32 and
sections 66.2 and 122.2 of the Alberta Securities
Commission Rules (General);

(ii) in British Columbia, sections 45(2) (5) and
(22), and 74(2) (4) and (19) of the Securities Act
(British Columbia);

(iii) in Manitoba, sections 19(3) and 58(1)(a) of
the Securities Act (Manitoba) and section 90 of the
Securities Regulation MR 491/88R;

(iv) in New Brunswick, section 2.8 of Local
Rule 45-501 Prospectus and Registration
Exemptions;

(v) in Newfoundland and Labrador, sections
36(1)(e) and 73(1)(d) of the Securities Act
(Newfoundland and Labrador);

(vi) in Nova Scotia, sections 41(1)(e) and
77(1)(d) of the Securities Act (Nova Scotia);

(vii) in Northwest Territories, section 3(c) and
(z) of Blanket Order No. 1;

(viii) in Nunavut, section 3(c) and (z) of Blanket
Order No. 1;
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(ix) in Ontario, sections 35(1)5 and 72(1)(d) of
the Securities Act (Ontario) and section 2.12 of
Ontario Securities Commission Rule 45-501 Exempt
Distributions that came into force on January 12,
2004,

(x) in Prince Edward Island, section 2(3)(d) of
the former Securities Act (Prince Edward Island)
and Prince Edward Island Local Rule 45-512
Exempt Distributions - Exemption for Purchase of
Mutual Fund Securities;

(xi) in Québec, former sections 51 and
155.1(2) of the Securities Act (Québec);

(xii) in Saskatchewan, sections 39(1)(e) and
81(1)(d) of The Securities Act, 1988
(Saskatchewan);

(b) the trade is for a security of the same class
or series as the initial trade;

(c) the security holder, as at the date of the
trade, holds securities of the investment fund that
have one or both of the following characteristics:

0] an acquisition cost of not less than the
minimum amount prescribed by securities legislation
referred to in paragraph (a) under which the initial
trade was conducted;

(i) a net asset value of not less than the
minimum amount prescribed by securities legislation
referred to in paragraph (a) under which the initial
trade was conducted.

8.10 Private investment club

Private investment club — investment fund manager

8.10

Private investment club—investmentfund
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The dealer registration requirement does not apply
in respect of a trade in a security of an investment
fund if all of the following apply:

(a) the fund has no more than 50 beneficial
security holders;

(b) the fund does not seek and has never
sought to borrow money from the public;

(c) the fund does not distribute and has never
distributed its securities to the public;

(d) the fund does not pay or give any
remuneration for investment management or
administration advice in respect of trades in
securities, except normal brokerage fees;

(e) the fund, for the purpose of financing its
operations, requires security holders to make
contributions in proportion to the value of the
securities held by them.

exemption

8.7 The investment fund manager registration

requirement does not apply to a person or company
that directs the business, operations or affairs of an
investment fund if the investment fund

(a) has no more than 50 beneficial security
holders,
(b) does not seek and has never sought to

borrow money from the public,

(c) does not and has never distributed its
securities to the public,

(d) does not pay or give any remuneration for
investment advice or in respect of trades in
securities, except normal brokerage fees, and

(e) for the purpose of financing the operations
of the investment fund, requires holders to make
contributions in proportion to the value of the
securities held by them.

manager-exemption

8+4——The investmentfund-manager dealer
registration requirement does not apply to-a-person

affairs in respect of a trade in a secur,itx of an
investment fund if all of the investmentfund

following apply:

(a) the fund has no more than 50 beneficial
security holderss;

(b) the fund does not seek and has never
sought to borrow money from the public;;

(c) the fund does not_distribute and has never
distributed its securities to the public;;

(d) the fund does not pay or give any
remuneration for investment management or
administration advice er-in respect of trades in
securities, except normal brokerage fees;-and;

(e) the fund, for the purpose of financing the
its operations-of-the-investmentfund, requires
security holders to make contributions in proportion
to the value of the securities held by them.

8.1 Private investment fund — loan and trust
pools
(1) The dealer registration requirement does

not apply in respect of a trade in a security of an
investment fund if all of the following apply:

(a) the fund is administered by a trust
company or trust corporation that is registered or
authorized by an enactment of Canada or a

Private investment fund - loan and trust pools

8.6 (1) The dealer registration
requirement does not apply in respect of a trade in a
security of an investment fund if the investment fund

(a) is administered by a trust company or trust
corporation that is registered or authorized by an
enactment of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada to
carry on business in Canada or a jurisdiction of

8.1 Private investment fund = loan and trust
pools

86—(1) The dealer registration
requirement does not apply in respect of a trade in a
security of an investment fund if all of the
investment following apply:

(@) the fund {&)———is administered by a trust

company or trust corporation that is registered or
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jurisdiction of Canada to carry on business in
Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;

(b) the fund has no promoter or investment
fund manager other than the trust company or trust
corporation referred to in paragraph (a);

(c) the fund commingles the money of different
estates and trusts for the purpose of facilitating
investment.

(2) Despite subsection (1), a trust company or
trust corporation registered under the laws of Prince
Edward Island that is not registered under the Trust
and Loan Companies Act (Canada) or under
comparable legislation in another jurisdiction of
Canada is not a trust company or trust corporation
for the purpose of paragraph (1)(a).

Canada,

(b) has no promoter or manager other than the
trust company or trust corporation referred to in
paragraph (a), and

(c) co-mingles the money of different estates
and trusts for the purpose of facilitating investment.

(2) Despite subsection (1), a trust
company or trust corporation registered under the
laws of Prince Edward Island that is not registered
under the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada)
or under comparable legislation in another
jurisdiction of Canada is not a trust company or trust
corporation for the purpose of paragraph (1)(a).

(3) The investment fund manager
registration requirement does not apply to a trust
company or trust corporation that administers an
investment fund referred to in subsection (1).

authorized by an enactment of Canada or a
jurisdiction of Canada to carry on business in
Canada or a jurisdiction of Canadas;

(b) the fund has no promoter or investment
fund manager other than the trust company or trust
corporation referred to in paragraph (a);anéd;

(c) co-mingles the fund commingles the
money of different estates and trusts for the purpose

of facilitating investment.

(2) Despite subsection (1), a trust
company or trust corporation registered under the
laws of Prince Edward Island that is not registered
under the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada)
or under comparable legislation in another
jurisdiction of Canada is not a trust company or trust
corporation for the purpose of paragraph (1)(a).

——{3)——Theinvestmentfund-manager
egistration requireme td.ees ot-app y t.eatust
compa 59;%“5? Po ate_ that-ad . ste s. @

8.12 Mortgages

(1) In this section, “syndicated mortgage”
means a mortgage in which two or more persons or
companies participate, directly or indirectly, as
lenders in the debt obligation that is secured by the
mortgage.

(2) Subject to subsection (3), the dealer
registration requirement does not apply in respect of
a trade in a mortgage on real property in a
jurisdiction of Canada by a person or company who
is registered or licensed, or exempted from
registration or licensing, under mortgage brokerage

Mortgages

8.8 (1) In this section, “syndicated
mortgage” means a mortgage in which two or more
persons participate, directly or indirectly, as lenders
in the debt obligation that is secured by the
mortgage.

(2) Subject to subsection (3), the
dealer registration requirement does not apply in
respect of a trade in a mortgage on real property in
a jurisdiction of Canada by a person who is
registered or licensed, or exempted from registration
or licensing, under mortgage brokerage or mortgage

8.12 Mortgages

88—(1) In this section, “syndicated
mortgage” means a mortgage in which two or more
persons or companies participate, directly or
indirectly, as lenders in the debt obligation that is
secured by the mortgage.

(2) Subject to subsection (3), the
dealer registration requirement does not apply in
respect of a trade in a mortgage on real property in
a jurisdiction of Canada by a person or company
who is registered or licensed, or exempted from
registration or licensing, under mortgage brokerage
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or mortgage dealer legislation of that jurisdiction.

3) In Alberta, British Columbia, Manitoba,
Québec and Saskatchewan, subsection (2) does not
apply in respect of a trade in a syndicated
mortgage.

(4) This section does not apply in Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario a similar exemption from the
dealer registration requirement is provided under
subsection 35(4) of the Securities Act (Ontario).]

dealer legislation of that jurisdiction.

3) In Alberta, British Columbia,
Manitoba, Québec and Saskatchewan, subsection
(2) does not apply in respect of a trade in a
syndicated mortgage.

or mortgage dealer legislation of that jurisdiction.

3) In Alberta, British Columbia,
Manitoba, Québec and Saskatchewan, subsection
(2) does not apply in respect of a trade in a
syndicated mortgage.

4 Thi ion n ly in Ontario.

I - no . . jon f
dealer registration requirement is provided under
subsection 35(4) of the Securities Act (Ontario).

8.13 Personal property security legislation

(1) The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade to a person or
company, other than an individual in a security
evidencing indebtedness secured by or under a
security agreement, secured in accordance with
personal property security legislation of a jurisdiction
of Canada that provides for the granting of security
in personal property.

(2) This section does not apply in Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario a similar exemption from the
dealer registration requirement is provided under
subsection 35(2) of the Securities Act (Ontario).]

Personal Property Security legislation

8.9 The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade in a security
evidencing indebtedness secured by or under a
security agreement, secured in accordance with
personal property security legislation of a jurisdiction
of Canada that provides for the granting of security
in personal property.

8.13 Personal Preperty-Seeurity property
security legislation

8:9-(1) The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade to a person or
company, other than an individual in a security
evidencing indebtedness secured by or under a
security agreement, secured in accordance with
personal property security legislation of a jurisdiction
of Canada that provides for the granting of security
in personal property.

2 This section does not apply in Ontario.

Note: In Ontari imilar exemption from th
dealer reqistration requirement is provided under

8.14 Variable insurance contract

(1) In this section

» o« »

“contract”, “group insurance”, “insurance company”,
“life insurance” and “policy” have the respective
meanings assigned to them in the legislation

Variable insurance contract

8.10 (1) In this section,

» o« » o

“contract”’, “group insurance”, “insurance company”,
“life insurance” and “policy” have the respective
meanings assigned to them in the legislation for a

8.14 Variable insurance contract

8140—(1) In this section;

» o« »

“contract”’, “group insurance”, “insurance company”,
“life insurance” and “policy” have the respective
meanings assigned to them in the legislation fera
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referenced opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction in Appendix A of NI 45-106;

“variable insurance contract” means a contract of
life insurance under which the interest of the
purchaser is valued for purposes of conversion or
surrender by reference to the value of a
proportionate interest in a specified portfolio of
assets.

(2) The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade in a variable
insurance contract by an insurance company if the
variable insurance contract is

(a) a contract of group insurance,

(b) a whole life insurance contract providing
for the payment at maturity of an amount not less
than 75% of the premium paid up to age 75 years
for a benefit payable at maturity,

(c) an arrangement for the investment of
policy dividends and policy proceeds in a separate
and distinct fund to which contributions are made
only from policy dividends and policy proceeds, or

(d) a variable life annuity.

jurisdiction referenced in Appendix A of National
Instrument 45-106 Prospectus and Registration
Exemptions; and

“variable insurance contract” means a contract of
life insurance under which the interest of the
purchaser is valued for purposes of conversion or
surrender by reference to the value of a
proportionate interest in a specified portfolio of
assets.

(2) The dealer registration

requirement does not apply in respect of a trade in a

variable insurance contract by an insurance
company if the variable insurance contract is

(a) a contract of group insurance,

(b) a whole life insurance contract providing
for the payment at maturity of an amount not less
than 75 per cent of the premium paid up to age 75
years for a benefit payable at maturity,

(c) an arrangement for the investment of
policy dividends and policy proceeds in a separate
and distinct fund to which contributions are made
only from policy dividends and policy proceeds, or

(d) a variable life annuity.

referenced opposite the name of the local

jurisdiction referenced-in Appendix A of Natienal
tastrument NI 45-106-Prospectus-and-Registration

Exemptions—and;
“variable insurance contract” means a contract of
life insurance under which the interest of the
purchaser is valued for purposes of conversion or
surrender by reference to the value of a
proportionate interest in a specified portfolio of
assets.

(2) The dealer registration
requirement does not apply in respect of a trade in a
variable insurance contract by an insurance
company if the variable insurance contract is

(a) a contract of group insurance,

(b) a whole life insurance contract providing
for the payment at maturity of an amount not less
than 75-pereent% of the premium paid up to age 75
years for a benefit payable at maturity,

(c) an arrangement for the investment of
policy dividends and policy proceeds in a separate
and distinct fund to which contributions are made
only from policy dividends and policy proceeds, or

(d) a variable life annuity.

8.15 Schedule Il banks and cooperative
associations — evidence of deposit

(1) The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade in an evidence of
deposit issued by a Schedule Il bank or an
association governed by the Cooperative Credit

Schedule Il banks and cooperative associations -
evidence of deposit

8.1 The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade in an evidence of
deposit issued by a Schedule Il bank or an
association governed by the Cooperative Credit

8.15 Schedule Il banks and cooperative
associations — evidence of deposit8-4+

) The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade in an evidence of
deposit issued by a Schedule Il bank or an
association governed by the Cooperative Credit
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Associations Act (Canada).

(2) This section does not apply in Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario, subsection 8.15(1) is not required
because the security described in the exemption is
excluded from the definition of “security” in
subsection 1(1) of the Securities Act (Ontario).]

Associations Act (Canada).

Associations Act (Canada).

2 This section does not apply in Ontario.

Note: In Ontario, subsection 8.15(1) is not required

because the security described in the exemption is
xcl from th finition of “ rity” in
ion 1(1) of th rities A ntari

8.16 Plan administrator

(1) In this section

“consultant” has the same meaning as in section
2.22 of NI 45-106;

“control person” has the same meaning as in
section 1.1 of NI 45-106;

“executive officer” has the same meaning as in
section 1.1 of NI 45-106;

“permitted assign” has the same meaning as in
section 2.22 of NI 45-106;

“plan” means a plan or program established or
maintained by an issuer providing for the acquisition
of securities of the issuer by employees, executive
officers, directors or consultants of the issuer or of a
related entity of the issuer;

“plan administrator” means a trustee, custodian, or
administrator, acting on behalf of, or for the benefit
of, employees, executive officers, directors or
consultants of an issuer or of a related entity of an
issuer;

Plan administrators

8.12 (1) The dealer registration
requirement does not apply in respect of a trade of a
security of an issuer by a trustee, custodian, or
administrator acting on behalf of, or for the benefit of
employees, executive officers, directors or
consultants of the issuer or of a related entity of the
issuer with

(a) the issuer,

(b) a current or former employee, executive
officer, director or consultant of the issuer or a
related entity of the issuer,

(c) a permitted assign of a person referred to
in paragraph (b),

if the trade is pursuant to a plan of the issuer and
the security is obtained directly from the issuer or
from a current or former employee, executive
officer, director or consultant of the issuer or of a
related entity of the issuer or through a registered
dealer.

(2) In this section,

8.16 Plan administraters administrator

(21)

In this section;
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“related entity” has the same meaning as in section
2.22 of NI 45-106.

(2) The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade made pursuant to a
plan of the issuer in a security of an issuer, or an
option to acquire a security of the issuer, made by
the issuer, a control person of the issuer, a related
entity of the issuer, or a plan administrator of the
issuer with any of the following:

(a) the issuer;

(b) a current or former employee, executive
officer, director or consultant of the issuer or a
related entity of the issuer;

(c) a permitted assign of a person or company
referred to in paragraph (b).

(3) The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade in a security of an
issuer, or an option to acquire a security of the
issuer, made by a plan administrator of the issuer if

(a) the trade is pursuant to a plan of the
issuer, and
(b) the conditions in section 2.14 of National

Instrument 45-102 Resale of Securities are
satisfied.

“consultant” has the same meaning as in section
2.22 of National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus and
Registration Exemptions;

“permitted assign” has the same meaning as in
section 2.22 of National Instrument 45-106
Prospectus and Registration Exemptions;

“plan” means a plan or program established or
maintained by an issuer providing for the acquisition
of securities of the issuer by employees, executive
officers, directors or consultants of the issuer or of a
related entity of the issuer; and

“related entity” has the same meaning as in section
2.22 of National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus and
Registration Exemptions.

“consultant” has the same meaning as in section
2.22 of National-Instrument 45-106 Prospectus-and
Registration-Exemptions NI 45-106;

“control person” has the same meaning as in
section 1.1 of NI 45-106;

“‘executive officer” has the same meaning as in
section 1.1 of NI 45-106;

“permitted assign” has the same meaning as in
section 2.22 of NatienaHnstrument NI 45-106

Prospectus-and-Registration-Exemptions;

“plan” means a plan or program established or
maintained by an issuer providing for the acquisition
of securities of the issuer by employees, executive
officers, directors or consultants of the issuer or of a
related entity of the issuer;-and

[

‘plan administrator” means a trustee, custodian, or
administrator, acting on behalf of, or for the benefit

of, employees, executive officers, directors or
consultants of an i r or of a rel ntity of an
issuer;

“related entity” has the same meaning as in section
2.22 of N1 45-106.

(2) The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade made pursuant to a
plan of the issuer in a security of an issuer, or an
option to acquire a security of the issuer, made by
. -
Mw E - ! \mini f i

issuer with any of the following:
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(a) the issuer;

(b) a_current or former employee, executive
officer, director or consultant of the issuer or a
related entity of the issuer;

c a permitted assign of a person or compan
referred to in paragraph (b)

not apply in respect of a trade in a security of an
issuer, or an option to acquire a security of the
issuer, made by a plan administrator of the issuer if

lan of th

Instrument 45-102 Resale of Securities are
satisfied.

8.17 Reinvestment plan

(1) Subject to subsections (3), (4) and (5), the
dealer registration requirement does not apply in
respect of the following trades by an issuer, or by a
trustee, custodian or administrator acting for or on
behalf of the issuer, to a security holder of the issuer
if the trades are permitted by a plan of the issuer:

(a) a trade in a security of the issuer’s own
issue if a dividend or distribution out of earnings,
surplus, capital or other sources payable in respect
of the issuer’s securities is applied to the purchase
of the security;

Reinvestment plan

8.13 (1) Subject to subsections (3), (4)
and (5), the dealer registration requirement does not
apply in respect of the following trades by an issuer,
or by a trustee, custodian or administrator acting for
or on behalf of the issuer, to a security holder of the
issuer if the trades are permitted by a plan of the
issuer:

(a) a trade in a security of the issuer’s own
issue if a dividend or distribution out of earnings,
surplus, capital or other sources payable in respect
of the issuer’s securities is applied to the purchase
of the security, and

8.17 Reinvestment plan

843—(1) Subject to subsections (3), (4)
and (5), the dealer registration requirement does not
apply in respect of the following trades by an issuer,
or by a trustee, custodian or administrator acting for
or on behalf of the issuer, to a security holder of the
issuer if the trades are permitted by a plan of the
issuer:

(a) a trade in a security of the issuer’s own
issue if a dividend or distribution out of earnings,
surplus, capital or other sources payable in respect
of the issuer’s securities is applied to the purchase
of the security;-and;
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(b) subject to subsection (2), a trade in a
security of the issuer’s own issue if the security
holder makes an optional cash payment to purchase
the security of the issuer that trades on a
marketplace.

(2) The aggregate number of securities issued
under the optional cash payment referred to in
subsection (1)(b) must not exceed, in any financial
year of the issuer during which the trade takes
place, 2% of the issued and outstanding securities
of the class to which the plan relates as at the
beginning of the financial year.

(3) A plan that permits the trades described in
subsection (1) must be available to every security
holder in Canada to which the dividend or
distribution out of earnings, surplus, capital or other
sources is available.

(4) This section is not available in respect of a
trade in a security of an investment fund.

5) Subject to section 8.3.1 [transition —
reinvestment plan] of NI 45-106, if the security
traded under a plan described in subsection (1) is of
a different class or series than the class or series of
the security to which the dividend or distribution is
attributable, the issuer or the trustee, custodian or
administrator must have provided to each
participant that is eligible to receive a security under
the plan either a description of the material
attributes and characteristics of the security traded
under the plan or notice of a source from which the
participant can obtain the information without
charge.

(b) subject to subsection (2), a trade in a
security of the issuer’s own issue if the security
holder makes an optional cash payment to purchase
the security of the issuer that trades on a
marketplace.

(2) The aggregate number of
securities issued under the optional cash payment
referred to in subsection (1)(b) must not exceed, in
any financial year of the issuer during which the
trade takes place, 2% of the issued and outstanding
securities of the class to which the plan relates as at
the beginning of the financial year.

3) A plan that permits the trades
described in subsection (1) must be available to
every security holder in Canada to which the
dividend or distribution out of earnings, surplus,
capital or other sources is available.

(4) This section does not apply to a
trade in a security of an investment fund.

(5) Subject to section 8.4.1 [transition
— reinvestment plan] of National Instrument 45-106,
if the security traded under a plan described in
subsection (1) is of a different class or series than
the security to which the dividend or distribution is
attributable, the issuer or the trustee, custodian or
administrator must have provided to each
participant that is eligible to receive a security under
the plan either a description of the material
attributes and characteristics of the security traded
under the plan or notice of a source from which the
participant can obtain the information without
charge.

(b) subject to subsection (2), a trade in a
security of the issuer’s own issue if the security
holder makes an optional cash payment to purchase
the security of the issuer that trades on a
marketplace.

(2) The aggregate number of
securities issued under the optional cash payment
referred to in subsection (1)(b) must not exceed, in
any financial year of the issuer during which the
trade takes place, 2% of the issued and outstanding
securities of the class to which the plan relates as at
the beginning of the financial year.

3) A plan that permits the trades
described in subsection (1) must be available to
every security holder in Canada to which the
dividend or distribution out of earnings, surplus,
capital or other sources is available.

(4) This section dees is not apply-te
available in respect of a trade in a security of an
investment fund.

5) Subject to section 8:4-18.3.1
[transition — reinvestment plan] of Natienal
{astrument NI 45-106, if the security traded under a
plan described in subsection (1) is of a different
class or series than the class or series of the
security to which the dividend or distribution is
attributable, the issuer or the trustee, custodian or
administrator must have provided to each
participant that is eligible to receive a security under
the plan either a description of the material
attributes and characteristics of the security traded
under the plan or notice of a source from which the
participant can obtain the information without
charge.
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8.18 International dealer
(1) In this section, “foreign security” means
(a) a security issued by an issuer

incorporated, formed or created under the laws of a
foreign jurisdiction, or

(b) a security issued by a government of a
foreign jurisdiction.

(2) Subject to subsections (3) and (4), the
dealer registration requirement does not apply in
respect of the following:

(a) an activity, other than a sale of a security,
that is reasonably necessary to facilitate a
distribution of securities that are offered primarily in
a foreign jurisdiction;

(b) a trade in a debt security with a permitted
client during the security’s distribution, if the debt
security is offered primarily in a foreign jurisdiction
and a prospectus has not been filed with a
Canadian securities regulatory authority for the
distribution;

(c) a trade in a debt security that is a foreign
security with a permitted client, other than during the
security’s distribution;

(d) a trade in a foreign security with a
permitted client, unless the trade is made during the
security’s distribution under a prospectus that has
been filed with a Canadian securities regulatory

International dealer

8.15 (1) In this section

“debt security” has the same meaning as in section
1.1 of National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus and
Registration Exemptions;

“foreign security” means

(a) a security issued by an issuer
incorporated, formed or created under the laws of a
jurisdiction other than Canada or any province or
territory of Canada, and

(b) a security issued by a country other than
Canada or by any political division of the country;

“international dealer” means a dealer that is
registered under the securities legislation of the
foreign jurisdiction in which its head office or
principal place of business is located in a category
of registration that permits the dealer to carry on the
activities in that jurisdiction that registration as a
dealer would permit the dealer to carry on in the
local jurisdiction.

(2) Subject to subsection (3), the
registration requirement does not apply to an
international dealer

(a) carrying on those activities, other than
sales of securities, that are reasonably necessary to
facilitate a distribution of securities that are offered
primarily abroad,

8.18 International dealer

845—(1) In this section

Reai ion £ ions:,
“foreign security” means

(a) a security issued by an issuer
incorporated, formed or created under the laws of a

foreign jurisdiction-ether-than-Canada-orany
provinee-or-territory-o-Canada—and,_or

(b) a security issued by a country-other-than

vernment of a foreign jurisdiction.

(2) Subject to subsection subsections
(3)_.and (4), the_dealer registration requirement does
not apply te-an-international-dealerin respect of the

following:

(a) carrying-on-those-activities an activity,
other than sales a sale of seeurities a security, that
are is reasonably necessary to facilitate a

56




National Instrument 31-103 — Registration Requirements and Exemptions
Published July 17, 2009 compared to February 29, 2008 CSA Publication

JULY 17, 2009 PUBLICATION

FEBRUARY 29, 2008 PUBLICATION

BLACKLINE OF CHANGES

authority;

(e) a trade in a foreign security with an
investment dealer;

(f) a trade in any security with an investment
dealer that is acting as principal.

3) The exemptions under subsection (2) are
not available to a person or company unless all of
the following apply:

(a) the head office or principal place of
business of the person or company is in a foreign
jurisdiction;

(b) the person or company is registered under
the securities legislation of the foreign jurisdiction in
which its head office or principal place of business is
located in a category of registration that permits it to
carry on the activities in that jurisdiction that
registration as a dealer would permit it to carry on in
the local jurisdiction;

(c) the person or company engages in the
business of a dealer in the foreign jurisdiction in
which its head office or principal place of business is
located;

(d) the person or company is acting as
principal or as agent for the issuer of the securities,
for a permitted client, or for a person or company
that is not a resident of Canada;

(e) the person or company has submitted to
the securities regulatory authority a completed Form
31-103F2 Submission to Jurisdiction and

(b) trading in debt securities with a permitted
client in the course of a distribution, where the debt
securities are offered primarily abroad and a
prospectus has not been filed with a Canadian
securities regulatory authority for the distribution,

(c) trading in a debt security that is a foreign
security with a permitted client, other than in the
course of the distribution by which the foreign debt
security was issued,

(d) trading in foreign securities with a
permitted client, except in the course of a
distribution for which a prospectus has been filed
with a Canadian securities regulatory authority,

(e) trading in foreign securities with an
investment dealer, or

(f) trading in any securities with an investment
dealer that is acting as principal

if the international dealer is acting as principal or as
agent for the issuer of the securities, for another
permitted client, or for a person that is not a resident
of Canada.

(3) An international dealer may not
rely on subsection (2) unless it has delivered to the
securities regulatory authority an executed Form 35-
101F1 Submission to Jurisdiction and Appointment
of Agent for Service.

(4) An international dealer may not
rely on subsection (2) to trade with a permitted
unless it first notifies the client,

distribution of securities that are offered primarily
abFead, H H H H H H .

(b) trading a trade in a debt seeurities security
with a permitted client in during the course-ofa
security’s distribution, where if the debt securities
are security is offered primarily abread in a foreign
jurisdiction and a prospectus has not been filed with
a Canadian securities regulatory authority for the
distribution;;

(c) trading a trade in a debt security that is a
foreign security with a permitted client, other than in
during the eeurse-of-the security’s distribution by

- foroi - . .

(d) trading a trade in_a foreign seeurities
security with a permitted client, exceptin-the-course

ofa unless the trade is made during the security’s
distribution ferwhich under a prospectus that has

been filed with a Canadian securities regulatory
authority;;

(e) trading a trade in a foreign seeurities
security with an investment dealer-o¥;

(f) trading a_trade in any seeurities security
with an investment dealer that is acting as principal .

(3) The exemptions under subsection (2) are
not available to a person or company unless all of
the following apply:

%% - f = forei
jurisdiction;
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Appointment of Agent for Service.

(4) The exemptions under subsection (2) are
not available to a person or company in respect of a
trade with a permitted client unless one of the
following applies:

(a) the permitted client is a person or company
registered under the securities legislation of a
jurisdiction of Canada as an adviser or dealer;

(b) the person or company has notified the
permitted client of all of the following:

(i) the person or company is not registered in
Canada;

(ii) the person or company’s jurisdiction of
residence;

(iii) the name and address of the agent for
service of process of the person or company in the
local jurisdiction;

(iv) there may be difficulty enforcing legal
rights against the person or company because it is
resident outside Canada and all or substantially all
of its assets may be situated outside of Canada.

(5) A person or company relying on subsection
(2) must notify the regulator 12 months after it first
submits a Form 31-103F2 under paragraph (3)(e),
and each year thereafter, if it continues to rely on
subsection (2).

(6) In Ontario, subsection (5) does not apply to

0] that it is not registered in Canada,

(ii) of the international dealer’s jurisdiction of
residence,

(iii) of the name and address of the agent for

service of process of the international dealer in the
local jurisdiction, and

(iv) that there may be difficulty enforcing legal
rights against the international dealer because it is
resident outside Canada and all or substantially all
of its assets are situated outside Canada.

(5) For the purpose of subsection (4),
“permitted client” excludes a person or company
referred to in paragraph (d) of the definition of
permitted client in section 1.1.

b the person or company is registered under

the securities legislation of the foreign jurisdiction in
which its head office or principal place of business is
located in a category of registration that permits it to
carry on the activities in that jurisdiction that
reqgistration as a dealer would permit it to carry on in

the local jurisdiction;

(€) the person or company engages in the

in f ler in the foreign jurisdiction in
which its head office or principal place of business is
located;
ifthe-international-dealer(d) the person or

company is acting as principal or as agent for the
issuer of the securities, for anether a permitted
client, or for a person_or company that is not a
resident of Canada-;

(Ee)——"nmrmateraldonlor it
. : ) . 'the
person or company has submitted to the securities
regulatory authority an-exeeuted a completed Form
35-1014F4 31-103F2 Submission to Jurisdiction and
Appointment of Agent for Service.

(4)-An-international-dealer may-notrely-on
The exemptions under subsection (2) te are not
llabl . ect of £

trade with a permitted client unless it-first-notifies
one of the elient-following applies:

(a) the permitted client is a person or company

registered under the securities leqislation of a

jurisdiction of Can n adviser or ler;

(b) the person or company has notified the
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a person or company that complies with the filing
and fee payment requirements applicable to an
unregistered exempt international firm under Ontario
Securities Commission Rule 13-502 Fees.

0] thatit the person or company is not

registered in Canada;-;

(i) of the-international-dealer the person or
company’s jurisdiction of residence;;

(iii) ofthe name and address of the agent for
service of process of the international-dealer person
or company in the local jurisdiction;-and;

(iv) thatthere may be difficulty enforcing legal
rights against the international-dealer person or
company because it is resident outside Canada and
all or substantially all of its assets are may be
situated outside of Canada.

—— {5} Forthepurpese-of-subsection-{4):
p? ted cie texciudes a '?e 56 BF. con paﬁ Yy

pe .tted G .e t .I Seetiel ) I )
A person or company relying on ion
2) m notify the requlator 12 months after it fir:

submits a Form 31-103F2 under paragraph (3)(e),
! ; fter i - !
subsection (2).

In Ontario, subsection does not apply to
a person or company that complies with the filing
nd f ment requiremen li | n
nregister xempt international firm under Ontari

8.19
plan

Self-directed registered education savings

Self-directed registered educational savings plans

8.18

The dealer registration requirement does

8.19 Self-directed registered education savings
ptans plan
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(1) In this section

"self-directed RESP" means an educational savings
plan registered under the Income Tax Act (Canada)

(a) that is structured so that contributions by a
subscriber to the plan are deposited directly into an
account in the name of the subscriber, and

(b) under which the subscriber maintains
control and direction over the plan that enables the
subscriber to direct how the assets of the plan are to
be held, invested or reinvested subject to
compliance with the Income Tax Act (Canada).

(2) The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade in a self-directed
RESP to a subscriber if both of the following apply:

(a) the trade is made by any of the following:

(i) a dealing representative of a mutual fund
dealer who is acting on behalf of the mutual fund
dealer;

(ii) a Canadian financial institution;
(iii) in Ontario, a financial intermediary;

(b) the self-directed RESP restricts its
investments in securities to securities in which the
person or company who trades the self-directed
RESP is permitted to trade.

not apply to a trade in a self-directed RESP to a
subscriber if

(a) the trade is made by

(i) a mutual fund dealer or a person who is
registered as a dealing representative of a mutual
fund dealer and who is acting on behalf of the
mutual fund dealer, or

(i) a Canadian financial institution or, in
Ontario, a financial intermediary or a person who is
an officer, salesperson or employee of a Canadian
financial institution or, in Ontario, a financial
intermediary and who is acting on behalf of the
Canadian financial institution or, in Ontario, the
financial intermediary, and

(b) the self-directed RESP restricts its
investments in securities to securities in which the
person or company who traded the self-directed
RESP is permitted to trade.

(1) In this section

"self-directed RESP" means an educational savings
plan reqistered under the Income Tax Act (Canada)

(a) that is structured so that contributions by a

riber to the plan ar i ly into an
nt in the name of th riber, an

(b) ___under which the subscriber maintains
control and direction over the plan that enables the
subscriber to direct how the assets of the plan are to
be held, invested or reinvested subject to
compliance with the Income Tax Act (Canada).

8148-(2) The dealer registration requirement does

not apply te in respect of a trade in a self-directed
RESP to a subscriber if both of the following apply:

(a) the trade is made by_any of the following:

(i) a mutval-fund-dealerora-person-whe-is
registered-as-a-dealing representative of a mutual
fund dealer ard-who is acting on behalf of the
mutual fund dealer;-or;

(i) a Canadian financial institution-er-in
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(b) the self-directed RESP restricts its
investments in securities to securities in which the
person or company who traded trades the self-
directed RESP is permitted to trade.

8.20 Exchange contract — Alberta, British
Columbia, New Brunswick and Saskatchewan

(1) In Alberta, British Columbia and New
Brunswick, the dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of the following trades in
exchange contracts:

(a) a trade by a person or company made

0] solely through an agent who is a registered
dealer, if the dealer is registered in a category that
permits the trade, or

(ii) to a registered dealer who is purchasing as
principal, if the dealer is registered in a category that
permits the trade;

(b) subject to subsection (2), a trade resulting
from an unsolicited order placed with an individual
who is not a resident of, and does not carry on
business in, the local jurisdiction.

(2) An individual referred to in subsection
(1)(b) must not do any of the following:

(a) advertise or engage in promotional activity
that is directed to persons or companies in the local
jurisdiction during the 6 months preceding the trade;

(b) pay any commission or finder’s fee to any
person or company in the local jurisdiction in

[3.2 45-106]

N/A
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connection with the trade.

3) In Saskatchewan, the dealer registration
requirement does not apply in respect of either of
the following:

(a) a trade in an exchange contract made
solely through an agent who is a registered dealer, if
the dealer is registered in a category that permits
the trade;

(b) a trade in an exchange contract made to a
registered dealer who is purchasing as principal, if
the dealer is registered in a category that permits
the trade.

8.21 Specified debt

In this section

(1

“approved credit rating” has the same meaning as in
National Instrument 81-102 Mutual Funds;

“approved credit rating organization” has the same
meaning as in National Instrument 81-102 Mutual
Funds;

“permitted supranational agency” means any of the
following:

(a) the African Development Bank, established
by the Agreement Establishing the African
Development Bank which came into force on
September 10, 1964, that Canada became a
member of on December 30, 1982;

(b)

the Asian Development Bank, established

Specified debt

8.19 (1) In this section, “permitted
supranational agency” means

(a) the African Development Bank, established
by the Agreement Establishing the African
Development Bank which came into force on
September 10, 1964, that Canada became a
member of on December 30, 1982;

(b) the Asian Development Bank, established
under a resolution adopted by the United Nations
Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the
Pacific in 1965;

(c) the Caribbean Development Bank,
established by the Agreement Establishing the
Caribbean Development Bank which came into
force on January 26, 1970, as amended, that
Canada is a founding member of;

8.21

1)

Specified debt

In this section

“ rov

redit rating” has th me meanin in

National Instrument 81-102 Mutual Funds;

“approved credit rating organization” has the same

meaning as in National Instrument 81-102 Mutual

Funds;

8149—(1)—Inthissection,-"permitted
supranational agency” means_any of the following:

(a)

the African Development Bank, established

by the Agreement Establishing the African
Development Bank which came into force on
September 10, 1964, that Canada became a
member of on December 30, 1982;

(b)

the Asian Development Bank, established
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under a resolution adopted by the United Nations
Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the
Pacific in 1965;

(c) the Caribbean Development Bank,
established by the Agreement Establishing the
Caribbean Development Bank which came into
force on January 26, 1970, as amended, that
Canada is a founding member of;

(d) the European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development, established by the Agreement
Establishing the European Bank for Reconstruction
and Development and approved by the European
Bank for Reconstruction and Development
Agreement Act (Canada), that Canada is a founding
member of;

(e) the Inter-American Development Bank,
established by the Agreement establishing the Inter-
American Development Bank which became
effective December 30, 1959, as amended from
time to time, that Canada is a member of;

(f) the International Bank for Reconstruction
and Development, established by the Agreement for
an International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development approved by the Bretton Woods and
Related Agreements Act (Canada);

(9) the International Finance Corporation,
established by Articles of Agreement approved by
the Bretton Woods and Related Agreements Act
(Canada).

(2) The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade in any of the
following:

(d) the European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development, established by the Agreement
Establishing the European Bank for Reconstruction
and Development and approved by the European
Bank for Reconstruction and Development
Agreement Act (Canada), that Canada is a founding
member of;

(e) the Inter-American Development Bank,
established by the Agreement establishing the Inter-
American Development Bank which became
effective December 30, 1959, as amended from
time to time, that Canada is a member of;

() the International Bank for Reconstruction
and Development, established by the Agreement for
an International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development approved by the Bretton Woods and
Related Agreements Act (Canada); and

(9) the International Finance Corporation,
established by Articles of Agreement approved by
the Bretton Woods and Related Agreements Act
(Canada).

(2) The dealer registration
requirement does not apply to a trade of a debt
security

(a) of or guaranteed by the Government of
Canada or the government of a jurisdiction of
Canada,

(b) of or guaranteed by a government of a
foreign jurisdiction if the debt security has an
approved credit rating from an approved credit
rating organization,

under a resolution adopted by the United Nations
Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the
Pacific in 1965;

(c) the Caribbean Development Bank,
established by the Agreement Establishing the
Caribbean Development Bank which came into
force on January 26, 1970, as amended, that
Canada is a founding member of;

(d) the European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development, established by the Agreement
Establishing the European Bank for Reconstruction
and Development and approved by the European
Bank for Reconstruction and Development
Agreement Act (Canada), that Canada is a founding
member of;

(e) the Inter-American Development Bank,
established by the Agreement establishing the Inter-
American Development Bank which became
effective December 30, 1959, as amended from
time to time, that Canada is a member of;

() the International Bank for Reconstruction
and Development, established by the Agreement for
an International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development approved by the Bretton Woods and
Related Agreements Act (Canada); and

(9) the International Finance Corporation,
established by Articles of Agreement approved by
the Bretton Woods and Related Agreements Act
(Canada).

(2) The dealer registration
requirement does not apply te in respect of a trade
in any of the following:
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(a) a debt security issued by or guaranteed by
the Government of Canada or the government of a
jurisdiction of Canada;

(b) a debt security issued by or guaranteed by
a government of a foreign jurisdiction if the debt
security has an approved credit rating from an
approved credit rating organization;

(c) a debt security issued by or guaranteed by
a municipal corporation in Canada;

(d) a debt security secured by or payable out
of rates or taxes levied under the law of a
jurisdiction of Canada on property in the jurisdiction
and collectible by or through the municipality in
which the property is situated;

(e) a debt security issued by or guaranteed by
a Canadian financial institution or a Schedule Il
bank, other than debt securities that are subordinate
in right of payment to deposits held by the issuer or
guarantor of those debt securities;

() a debt security issued by the Comité de
gestion de la taxe scolaire de I'lle de Montréal;

(9) a debt security issued by or guaranteed by
a permitted supranational agency if the debt
securities are payable in the currency of Canada or
the United States of America.

3) Paragraphs (2)(a), (c) and (d) do not apply
in Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario, exemptions from the dealer

(c) of or guaranteed by any municipal
corporation in Canada, or secured by or payable out
of rates or taxes levied under the law of a
jurisdiction of Canada on property in the jurisdiction
and to be collected by or through the municipality in
which the property is situated,

(d) of or guaranteed by a Canadian financial
institution or a Schedule Ill bank, other than debt
securities that are subordinate in right of payment to
deposits held by the issuer or guarantor of those
debt securities,

(e) of the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire
de I'lle de Montréal, or

(f) of or guaranteed by a permitted
supranational agency if the debt securities are
payable in the currency of Canada or the United
States of America.

(a) a debt security(a)-of.issued by or
guaranteed by the Government of Canada or the

government of a jurisdiction of Canada;;

(b) of a debt security issued by or guaranteed
by a government of a foreign jurisdiction if the debt

security has an approved credit rating from an
approved credit rating organization;;

(c) of a debt security issued by or guaranteed

by any a municipal corporation in Canada;-er;

(d) a debt security secured by or payable out

of rates or taxes levied under the law of a
jurisdiction of Canada on property in the jurisdiction
and te-be-collected collectible by or through the
municipality in which the property is situated;;

(e) a debt security issued by or
guaranteed by a Canadian financial institution or a
Schedule Ill bank, other than debt securities that are
subordinate in right of payment to deposits held by
the issuer or guarantor of those debt securities;;

{e)—-of(f) a debt security issued by the
Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de I'lle de
Montréal.-or;

{fF—of a debt security issued by or
guaranteed by a permitted supranational agency if
the debt securities are payable in the currency of
Canada or the United States of America.

(3) Paragraphs (2)(a), (c) and (d) do not apply
in Ontario.
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registration requirement similar to those in
paragraphs 8.21(a), (c) and (d) are provided under
paragraph 2 of subsection 35(1) of the Securities
Act (Ontario).]

I N0 - - E
aragraphs 8.21(a), (c) and (d) are provided under

paragraph 2 of subsection 35(1) of the Securities
Act (Ontario).

8.22 Small security holder selling and purchase
arrangements

(1) In this section

“exchange” means

(a) TSX Inc.,

(b) TSX Venture Exchange Inc., or
(c) an exchange that

0] has a policy that is substantially similar to
the policy of the TSX Inc., and

(i) is designated by the securities regulatory
authority for the purpose of this section;

“policy” means,

(a) in the case of TSX Inc., sections 638 and
639 [Odd lot selling and purchase arrangements] of
the TSX Company Manual, as amended from time
to time,

(b) in the case of the TSX Venture Exchange
Inc., Policy 5.7 Small Shareholder Selling and
Purchase Arrangements, as amended from time to
time, or

[3.6 45-106]

N/A
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(c) in the case of an exchange referred to in
paragraph (c) of the definition of “exchange”, the
rule, policy or other similar instrument of the
exchange on small shareholder selling and
purchase arrangements.

(2) The dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect of a trade by an issuer or its
agent, in securities of the issuer that are listed on an
exchange, if all of the following apply:

(a) the trade is an act in furtherance of
participation by the holders of the securities in an
arrangement that is in accordance with the policy of
that exchange;

(b) the issuer and its agent do not provide
advice to a security holder about the security
holder’s participation in the arrangement referred to
in paragraph (a), other than a description of the
arrangement’s operation, procedures for
participation in the arrangement, or both;

(c) the trade is made in accordance with the
policy of that exchange, without resort to an
exemption from, or variation of, the significant
subject matter of the policy;

(d) at the time of the trade after giving effect to
a purchase under the arrangement, the market
value of the maximum number of securities that a
security holder is permitted to hold in order to be
eligible to participate in the arrangement is not more
than $25 000.

(3) For the purposes of subsection (2)(c), an
exemption from, or variation of, the maximum
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number of securities that a security holder is
permitted to hold under a policy in order to be
eligible to participate in the arrangement provided
for in the policy is not an exemption from, or
variation of, the significant subject matter of the

policy.

Division 2 Exemptions from adviser
registration
8.23 Dealer without discretionary authority Exemption from adviser registration for dealers Exemption from-adviser registration for dealers 8.23

The adviser registration requirement does not apply
to a registered dealer, or a dealing representative
acting on behalf of the dealer, that provides advice
to a client if the advice is

(a) in connection with a trade in a security that
the dealer and the representative are permitted to
make under his, her or its registration,

without discretionary authority

2.4 The adviser registration requirement does
not apply to a registered dealer that advises a client
in connection with a security in which the dealer is
permitted to trade if

(a) the advice is provided by a dealing
representative, and

Dealer without discretionary authority

24——The adviser registration requirement does
not apply to a registered dealer—that—ad%es ora
lin resentativ in half of th

dealer ;hg; provides advice ;g a client if the advice
is

(@ in connection with a trade in a security in
which that the dealer is and the representative are
permitted to trade-if make under his, her or its

(b) provided by the representative, and (b) the dealer does not manage the client’s . .
investment portfolio through discretionary authority registration,
. granted by the client.
(CI:‘) t not in respect of a managed account of the (ab) ice-is-provided by a-dealing the
client. representative, and
(c) not in respect of a managed account of the
client.
P
.(b) ¢ edeaﬁ © doeshot Aa ag.et eene ts_
Sromtoe e sliont
8.24 IIROC members with discretionary Exemption from adviser registration for IDA Exemption-from-adviserregistration-forDA8.24

authority

The adviser registration requirement does not apply
to a registered dealer, or a dealing representative
acting on behalf of the dealer, that acts as an

members with discretionary authority

25 The adviser registration requirement does
not apply to an IDA member that manages a client’s
investment portfolio through discretionary authority

IIROC members with discretionary
authority

2.5———The adviser registration requirement does

not apply to antDA-member-thatmanages-a-client's
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adviser in respect of a client's managed account if
the registered dealer is a member of IROC and the
advising activities are conducted in accordance with
the rules of IIROC.

granted by the client.

- : -
granted-by-the-client a registered dealer, or a
dealing representative acting on behalf of the
dealer, that acts as an adviser in respect of a
client’'s managed account if the registered dealer is

a member of IROC and the advising activities are
n in rdance with the rul f IROC.

8.25 Advising generally

(1) For the purposes of subsections (3) and
(4), “financial or other interest” includes the
following:

(a) ownership, beneficial or otherwise, in the
security or in another security issued by the same
issuer;

(b) an option in respect of the security or
another security issued by the same issuer;

(c) a commission or other compensation
received, or expected to be received, from any
person or company in connection with the trade in
the security;

(d) a financial arrangement regarding the
security with any person or company;

(e) a financial arrangement with any
underwriter or other person or company who has
any interest in the security.

(2) The adviser registration requirement does
not apply to a person or company that acts as an
adviser if the advice the person or company
provides does not purport to be tailored to the

Advising generally

8.14 (1) The adviser registration
requirement does not apply to a person or company
that engages in, or holds himself, herself or itself out
as engaging in, the business of advising others,
either through direct advice or through publications
or other media, as to the investing in or the buying
or selling of securities, including classes of
securities and the securities of a class of issuers,
not purporting to be tailored to the needs of the
person or company receiving the advice.

(2) If a person or company that is
exempt from the adviser registration requirement by
reason of subsection (1) recommends buying,
selling or holding a specified security, a class of
securities or the securities of a class of issuers in
which any of the following has a financial or other
interest, the adviser must disclose the interest
concurrently with providing the advice:

(a) the adviser;

(b) any partner, director or officer of the
adviser;

(c) any person or company that would be an

insider of the adviser if the adviser were a reporting
issuer.

8.25  Advising generally

814——(1) For the purposes of subsections

3) and (4), “financial or other interest” includes the
following:
a ownership, beneficial or otherwise, in the

security or in another security issued by the same
issuer;

(b) an option in respect of the security or
another security issued by the same issuer;

(c) a_commission or other compensation
received, or expected to be received, from any
person or company in connection with the trade in

(d) a financial arrangement regarding the
security with any person or company;

(e) a financial arrangement with any

underwriter or other person or company who has
any interest in the ri

(2) The adviser registration requirement does
not apply to a person or company that engages-in;

3 3

. ¢ nelvrict i .
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needs of the person or company receiving the
advice.

3) If a person or company that is exempt
under subsection (2) recommends buying, selling or
holding a specified security, a class of securities or
the securities of a class of issuers in which any of
the following has a financial or other interest, the
person or company must disclose the interest
concurrently with providing the advice:

(a) the person or company;

(b) any partner, director or officer of the
person or company;

(c) any other person or company that would
be an insider of the first-mentioned person or
company if the first-mentioned person or company
were a reporting issuer.

(4) If the financial or other interest of the
person or company includes an interest in an option
described in paragraph (b) of the definition of
“financial or other interest” in subsection (1), the
disclosure required by subsection (3) must include a
description of the terms of the option.

(5) This section does not apply in Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario, measures similar to those in
section 7.24 are in section 34 of the Securities Act
(Ontario).]

(3) For the purpose of subsection (2),
“financial or other interest” includes

(a) ownership, beneficial or otherwise, in the
security or in another security issued by the same
issuer,

(b) an option in the security, including the
terms of the option,

(c) a commission or other compensation
received, or expected to be received, from any
person or company in connection with a trade in the
security,

(d) a financial arrangement regarding the
security with any person or company, and

(e) a financial arrangement with any
underwriter or other person or company who has
any interest in the securities.

. S i " ‘

a-class-ofissuers;-notpurporting acts as an adviser

if the advice the person or company provides does
not purport to be tailored to the needs of the person

or company receiving the advice.

(23)

If a person or company that is
exempt i : : j
reasen-of under subsection (42) recommends
buying, selling or holding a specified security, a
class of securities or the securities of a class of
issuers in which any of the following has a financial
or other interest, the adviser person or company
must disclose the interest concurrently with
providing the advice:

(a) the adviser person or company;

(b) any partner, director or officer of the
adviser person or company;

(c) any_other person or company that would
be an insider of the adviserif-the-adviser first-

. if first-menti l
person or company were a reporting issuer.
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{¢)——a commission or other compensation

sedondiosoreinor oo e ean o e beo
a y j te est i t e Seeu .t.es.

(4) If the financial or other interest of the

person or company includes an interest in an option
described in paragraph (b) of the definition of
“financial or other interest” in subsection (1), the
w. . f i i -

5 This section does not apply in Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario, measures similar to those in
section 7.24 are in section 34 of the Securities Act

(Ontario).

8.26 International adviser

(1) Despite section 1.2, in Alberta, British
Columbia, New Brunswick and Saskatchewan, a
reference to “securities” in this section excludes
“exchange contracts”.

(2) In this section

“aggregate consolidated gross revenue” does not
include the gross revenue of an affiliate of the
adviser if the affiliate is registered in a jurisdiction of

International adviser
8.16 (1) In this section

“international adviser” means an adviser that

(a) has its head office or principal place of
business in a foreign jurisdiction,

(b) is registered, or operates under an
exemption from registration, under the securities
legislation of the foreign jurisdiction in which its

8.26 International adviser

1 Despi ion 1.2, in Al British
Columbia, New Brunswick and Saskatchewan, a
“oxcl : >

(2) In this section

‘aggregate consolidated gross revenue” does not
incl he gr reven f an affili f th

adviser if the affiliate is reqistered in a jurisdiction of
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Canada;

“foreign security” means

(a) a security issued by an issuer
incorporated, formed or created under the laws of a
foreign jurisdiction, and

(b) a security issued by a government of a
foreign jurisdiction;

“permitted client” has the meaning given to the term
in section 1.1 [definitions] except that it excludes a
person or company registered under the securities
legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as an adviser
or dealer.

3) The adviser registration requirement does
not apply to a person or company in respect of its
acting as an adviser to a permitted client if the
adviser does not advise in Canada on securities of
Canadian issuers, unless providing that advice is
incidental to its providing advice on a foreign
security.

(4) The exemption under subsection (3) is not
available unless all of the following apply:

(a) the adviser’s head office or principal place
of business is in a foreign jurisdiction;

(b) the adviser is registered, or operates under
an exemption from registration, under the securities
legislation of the foreign jurisdiction in which its
head office or principal place of business is located,
in a category of registration that permits it to carry
on the activities in that jurisdiction that registration

head office or principal place of business is located
in a category of registration that permits it to carry
on the activities in that jurisdiction that a registered
adviser is permitted to carry on in the local
jurisdiction, and

(c) engages in the business of an adviser in
the foreign jurisdiction in which its head office or
principal place of business is located.

(2) The adviser registration
requirement does not apply to an international
adviser that is acting as an adviser for a permitted
client if

(a) it delivers to the securities regulatory
authority, before relying on this subsection, an
executed Form 31-103F2 Submission to Jurisdiction
and Appointment of Agent for Service,

(b) it notifies the client, before advising the
client,

0] that it is not registered in Canada,

(ii) of the international adviser’s jurisdiction of
residence,

(iii) of the name and address of the agent for

service of process of the international adviser in the
local jurisdiction, and

(iv) that there may be difficulty enforcing legal
rights against the international adviser because it is
resident outside Canada and all or substantially all

of its assets are situated outside Canada,

Canada;
“foreign security” means

a a security issued by an issuer

incorporated, formed or created under the laws of a
foreign jurisdiction, an

o

‘permitted client” has the meaning given to the term
in section 1.1 [definitions] except that it excludes a
person or company registered under the securities
leqgislation of a jurisdiction of Can n adviser
r ler.

(3) The adviser registration requirement does

not apply to a person or company in respect of its
acting as an adviser to a permitted client if the
adviser does not advise in Canada on securities of
Canadian issuers, unless providing that advice is
incidental to its providing advice on a foreign
security.

4 The exemption under subsection (3) is not
available unless all of the following apply:

(a) has-its the adviser’s head office or principal
place of business s in a foreign jurisdiction;;

(b) the adviser is registered, or operates under
an exemption from registration, under the securities
legislation of the foreign jurisdiction in which its

71




National Instrument 31-103 — Registration Requirements and Exemptions
Published July 17, 2009 compared to February 29, 2008 CSA Publication

JULY 17, 2009 PUBLICATION

FEBRUARY 29, 2008 PUBLICATION

BLACKLINE OF CHANGES

as an adviser would permit it to carry on in the local
jurisdiction;

(c) the adviser engages in the business of an
adviser in the foreign jurisdiction in which its head
office or principal place of business is located;

(d) during its most recently completed financial
year, not more than 10% of the aggregate
consolidated gross revenue of the adviser, its
affiliates and its affiliated partnerships was derived
from the portfolio management activities of the
adviser, its affiliates and its affiliated partnerships in
Canada;

(e) before advising a client, the adviser notifies
the client of all of the following:

0] the adviser is not registered in Canada;
(ii) the jurisdiction of residence of the adviser;
(iii) the name and address of the adviser's

agent for service of process in the local jurisdiction;

(iv) that there may be difficulty enforcing legal
rights against the adviser because it is resident
outside Canada and all or substantially all of its
assets may be situated outside of Canada;

(f) the adviser has submitted to the securities
regulatory authority a completed Form 31-103F2
Submission to Jurisdiction and Appointment of
Agent for Service.

(5) A person or company relying on subsection

(c) it does not advise clients in Canada with
respect to securities of Canadian issuers, unless
providing advice on securities of a Canadian issuer
is incidental to providing advice on securities of a
foreign issuer, and

(d) during its most recent fiscal year, not more
than ten per cent of the aggregate consolidated
gross revenue of the international adviser, its
affiliates and its affiliated partnerships is derived
from the portfolio management activities of the
international adviser, its affiliates and its affiliated
partnerships in Canada.

head office or principal place of business is located,
in a category of registration that permits it to carry
on the activities in that jurisdiction that aregistered

registration as an adviser is-permitted would permit
it to carry on in the local jurisdiction;and;

(c) the adviser engages in the business of an
adviser in the foreign jurisdiction in which its head
office or principal place of business is located:;

d during its most recently completed financial
year, not more than 10% of the agaregate
consolidated gross revenue of the adviser, its
affiliates and its affiliated partnerships was derived
from the portfolio management activities of the
Canada;

by——it (e) before advising a client, the

adviser notifies the client;-before-advising_of all of
the elient; following:

(i) that-it the adviser is not registered in
Canada;-;
(i) ofthe-international-adviser's jurisdiction of

residence;_of the adviser;
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(3) must notify the regulator 12 months after it first
submits a Form 31-103F2 under paragraph (4)(f),

and each year thereafter, if it continues to rely on

subsection (3).

(6) In Ontario, subsection (5) does not apply to
a person or company that complies with the filing
and fee payment requirements applicable to an
unregistered exempt international firm under Ontario
Securities Commission Rule 13-502 Fees.

(iii) ofthe name and address of the adviser's
agent for service of process of the-international
adviserin the local jurisdiction;and;

(iv) that there may be difficulty enforcing legal
rights against the international-adviser because it is
resident outside Canada and all or substantially all
of its assets are-situated-outside-Canada; may be
situated outside of Canada;

f h viser h mi to the securities
regulatory authority a completed Form 31-103F2

Submission to Jurisdiction and Appointment of
Agent for Service.

(5) A person or company relying on subsection
(3) must notify the regulator 12 months after it first
submits a Form 31-103F2 under paragraph (4)(f),
and each year thereafter, if it continues to rely on
subsection (3).

In Ontari ion n |
a person or company that complies with the filing
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I . .

Securities Commission Rule 13-502 Fees.

Division 3 Exemptions from investment fund
manager registration

Division3 ___Exemptions from investment fund

8.27 Private investment club

The investment fund manager registration
requirement does not apply to a person or company
in respect of its acting as an investment fund
manager for an investment fund if all of the following

apply:

(a) the fund has no more than 50 beneficial
security holders;

(b) the fund does not seek and has never
sought to borrow money from the public;

(c) the fund does not distribute and has never
distributed its securities to the public;

(d) the fund does not pay or give any
remuneration for investment management or
administration advice in respect of trades in
securities, except normal brokerage fees;

(e) the fund, for the purpose of financing its
operations, requires security holders to make
contributions in proportion to the value of the
securities held by them.

Private investment club —
exemption

investment fund manager

8.7 The investment fund manager registration

requirement does not apply to a person or company
that directs the business, operations or affairs of an
investment fund if the investment fund

(a) has no more than 50 beneficial security
holders,
(b) does not seek and has never sought to

borrow money from the public,

(c) does not and has never distributed its
securities to the public,

(d) does not pay or give any remuneration for
investment advice or in respect of trades in
securities, except normal brokerage fees, and

(e) for the purpose of financing the operations
of the investment fund, requires holders to make
contributions in proportion to the value of the
securities held by them.

8.27 Private investment club—investmentfund
manager exemption

8.7———The investment fund manager registration
requirement does not apply to a person or company
that-directsthe-business—operations-oraffairs-of in

respect of its acting as an investment fund manager
for an investment fund if all of the investmentfund

following apply:

(a) the fund has no more than 50 beneficial
security holders;;

(b) the fund does not seek and has never
sought to borrow money from the public;;

(c) the fund does not_ distribute and has never
distributed its securities to the public;;

(d) the fund does not pay or give any
remuneration for investment management or
administration advice er-in respect of trades in
securities, except normal brokerage fees;-and;

(e) the fund, for the purpose of financing the
its operations-of-the-investmentfund, requires
security holders to make contributions in proportion
to the value of the securities held by them.

8.28 Capital accumulation plan exemption

(1) In this section, “capital accumulation plan”

New Provision

2 ital mul lan exemption

(1) In this section, “capital accumulation plan”
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means a tax assisted investment or savings plan,
including a defined contribution registered pension
plan, a group registered retirement savings plan, a
group registered education savings plan, or a
deferred profit-sharing plan, established by a plan
sponsor that permits a member to make investment
decisions among two or more investment options
offered within the plan, and in Quebec and
Manitoba, includes a simplified pension plan.

(2) The investment fund manager registration
requirement does not apply to a person or company
that acts as an investment fund manager for an
investment fund if the person or company is only
required to be registered as an investment fund
manager because the investment fund is an
investment option in a capital accumulation plan.

sted .

including a defined contribution registered pension
plan, a group registered retirement savings plan, a
group registered education savings plan, or a
deferred profit-sharing plan, established by a plan
sponsor that permits a member to make investment

isions among two or more investmen ion
offered within the plan, and in Quebec and

Mani i on pl

(2) The investment fund manager registration
requirement does not apply to a person or company
that acts as an investment fund manager for an
investment fund if the person or company is only

r ir register n investment fun
manager because the investment fund is an

8.29 Private investment fund — loan and trust
pools
(1) The investment fund manager registration

requirement does not apply to a trust company or
trust corporation that administers an investment
fund if all of the following apply:

(a) the trust company or trust corporation is
registered or authorized by an enactment of Canada
or ajurisdiction of Canada to carry on business in
Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;

(b) the fund has no promoter or investment
fund manager other than the trust company or trust
corporation;

(c) the fund commingles the money of different
estates and trusts for the purpose of facilitating
investment.

Private investment fund - loan and trust pools

8.6 (1) The dealer registration
requirement does not apply in respect of a trade in a
security of an investment fund if the investment fund

(a) is administered by a trust company or trust
corporation that is registered or authorized by an
enactment of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada to
carry on business in Canada or a jurisdiction of
Canada,

(b) has no promoter or manager other than the
trust company or trust corporation referred to in
paragraph (a), and

(c) co-mingles the money of different estates
and trusts for the purpose of facilitating investment.

(2) Despite subsection (1), a trust
company or trust corporation registered under the

8.29 Private investment fund -—= loan and trust
pools

86—(1) The dealer investment fund
manager registration requirement does not apply in

respect-of a-trade-in-a-seeurity-of to a trust company

or trust corporation that administers an investment
fund if all of the investmentfund-following apply:

(a) is-administered-by-athe trust company or
trust corporation-that is registered or authorized by
an enactment of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada
to carry on business in Canada or a jurisdiction of
Canada;;

(b) the fund has no promoter or investment
fund manager other than the trust company or trust

corporationreferred-to-in-paragraph{a)and,

(c) co-mingles the fund commingles the
money of different estates and trusts for the purpose
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(2) The exemption in subsection (1) is not
available to a trust company or trust corporation
registered under the laws of Prince Edward Island
unless it is also registered under the Trust and Loan
Companies Act (Canada) or under comparable
legislation in another jurisdiction of Canada.

laws of Prince Edward Island that is not registered
under the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada)
or under comparable legislation in another
jurisdiction of Canada is not a trust company or trust
corporation for the purpose of paragraph (1)(a).

(3) The investment fund manager
registration requirement does not apply to a trust
company or trust corporation that administers an
investment fund referred to in subsection (1).

of facilitating investment.

(2)-Bespite_The exemption in subsection
(1);is_not available to a trust company or trust

corporation registered under the laws of Prince
Edward Island that unless it is ret also registered
under the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada)
or under comparable legislation in another
jurisdiction of Canada-is-het-a-trust company-or-trust
corporation for the purpose of paragraph (1)}(a).

— 3y ——Theinvestmentfund-manager
egistration fequireme tel.ees etapp? t.ga“St

Division 4 Mobility exemption — firms Division 4 Mobility exemption — firms
8.30 Client mobility exemption — firms Mobility exemption — registered firm Mobility-exemption — registered firm
lient mobility exemption — firm

The dealer registration requirement and the adviser
registration requirement do not apply to a person or
company if all of the following apply:

(a) the person or company is registered as a
dealer or adviser in its principal jurisdiction;

(b) the person or company does not act as a
dealer, underwriter or adviser in the local jurisdiction
other than as it is permitted to in its principal
jurisdiction according to its registration;

(c) the person or company does not act as a
dealer, underwriter or adviser in the local jurisdiction
other than in respect of 10 or fewer eligible clients;

(d) the person or company complies with Parts
13 [dealing with clients — individuals and firms] and
14 [handling client accounts — firms];

8.23 If the local jurisdiction is a non-principal
jurisdiction, the registration requirement does not
apply to a person or company if the person or
company

(a) is registered as a dealer or adviser in its
principal jurisdiction,

(b) is trading or advising in securities with an
eligible client,
(c) does not trade or advise in securities in the

local jurisdiction other than as it is permitted to in its
principal jurisdiction according to its category of
registration,

(d) has 10 or fewer eligible clients in the local
jurisdiction, and

3 22 ‘ o incinal
jurisdictionthe The dealer registration requirement
does and the adviser registration requirement do not
apply to a person or company if all of the following
apply:

(@) the person or company(a)- is registered as
a dealer or adviser in its principal jurisdiction;;

e.g.beele lt!

{e}———does-nottrade-oradvise-in-securities (b)
the person or company does not act as a
dealer, underwriter or adviser in the local jurisdiction
other than as it is permitted to in its principal
jurisdiction according to its eategery-efregistration;;
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(e) the person or company deals fairly,
honestly and in good faith in the course of its
dealings with an eligible client.

(e) complies with section 8.25 [mobility
exemption conditions].

Mobility exemption — registered individual

Mobility exemption conditions

8.25 For the purposes of paragraphs 8.23(e)
and 8.24(f) the person or company must

(b) act fairly, honestly and in good faith in the
course of its dealings with an eligible client.

{d)———Hhas (c) the person or company does not
jurisdiction other than in respect of 10 or fewer
eligible clients-in-the-loealjurisdiction,—and,

(d) the person or company complies with Parts
1 ling with clients — indivi Is and firm n
14 [handling clien nts — firms];

. . ion-8.25 | -

Mobili . . inclividual
Mebili . »

e e e e e
and-8:24(f)-(e) the person or company must{b}
——aet deals fairly, honestly and in good faith
in the course of its dealings with an eligible client.

Part 9 Membership in a self-regulatory PART 3 - SRO MEMBERSHIP
organization
9.1 IIROC membership for investment dealers | IDA membership for investment dealers 1BA9.1_IIROC membership for investment dealers

An investment dealer must not act as a dealer
unless the investment dealer is a “Dealer Member”,
as defined under the rules of IIROC.

3.1 (1) No person or company may be
registered as an investment dealer unless the
person or company is a member of the IDA.

S lecomen s commnam et b
registered-as-an An investment_dealer must not act

as a dealer unless the persen-orcompany-isa
member-ofthe1DA: investment dealer is a “Dealer

Member”, as defined under the rules of IIROC.

9.2 MFDA membership for mutual fund dealers

Except in Québec, a mutual fund dealer must not
act as a dealer unless the mutual fund dealer is a
“member”, as defined under the rules of the MFDA.

MFDA membership for mutual fund dealers

3.2 Except in Québec, no person or company
may be registered as a mutual fund dealer unless
the person or company is a member of the MFDA.

9.2 MFDA membership for mutual fund dealers

3.2—Except in Québec, ro-persen-orcompany
may-beregistered-as-a mutual fund_dealer must not
act as a dealer unless the person-or-company

mutual fund dealer is a ‘member’, as defined under
the rules of the MFDA.
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9.3 Exemptions from certain requirements for
SRO members

(1) An investment dealer that is a member of
IIROC is exempt from the following requirements to
the extent the provisions apply to the activities of an
investment dealer:

(a) section 12.1 [capital requirements];

(b) section 12.2 [notifying the regulator of a
subordination agreement];

(c) section 12.3 [insurance — dealer];
(d) section 12.6 [global bonding or insurance];
(e) section 12.7 [notifying the regulator of a

change, claim or cancellation];

(f) section 12.10 [annual financial
statements];

(9) section 12.11 [interim financial
information];

(h) section 12.12 [delivering financial
information — dealer];

0] subsection 13.2(3) [know your client];

3) section 13.3 [suitability];

Exceptions for SRO members

3.3 (1) A registrant that is a member of
the IDA, or a dealing representative of a member of
the IDA, is exempt from each requirement in the
following sections that applies to a registered
dealer, or a dealing representative, if the registrant
complies with the by-laws, regulations and policies
of the IDA that deal with the same subject matter:

(a) section 4.18 [capital requirement];
(b) section 4.19 [report capital deficiency];
(c) section 4.21 [insurance — dealer];

(d) section 4.25 [notice of change, claim, or
cancellation];

(e) section 4.26 [appointment of auditor];
() section 4.27 [direction to auditor];
(9) section 4.28 [delivering financial

information — dealer];

(h) section 5.4 [providing relationship
disclosure information];

0] section 5.5 [suitability];

3) section 5. 7 [margin];

Exeeptions9.3  Exemptions from certain
requirements for SRO members

) An investment dealer that is a member of
IIROC is exempt from the following requirements to

the extent the provisions apply to the activities of an
investmen ler:

(a) section 4-1812.1 [capital requirement
requirementsy;

(b) section A0 renerleapiiol deficiopey:
12.2 [notifying the regulator of a subordination
agreement];

(c) section 4.21412.3 [insurance — dealer];

(d) section 4.25 [notice of change, claim, or
cancellations}-12.6 [global bonding or insurance];

(e) section-4-26-fappointment-of auditer;: 12.7
notifying the regulator of a change, claim or
cancellation];

(f) section 4-27{direction-to-auditer12.10
[annual financial statements];

(9) section 4-28{delivering-financial
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(k) section 13.12 [restriction on lending to
clients];
o section 13.13 [disclosure when

recommending the use of borrowed money];

(m) subsection 14.2(2) [relationship disclosure
information];

(n) section 14.6 [holding client assets in trust];

(o) section 14.8 [securities subject to a
safekeeping agreement];

(p) section 14.9 [securities not subject to a
safekeeping agreement];

(q) section 14.12 [content and delivery of trade
confirmation].
(2) Despite subsection (1), if a registered firm

is a member of IIROC and is registered as an
investment fund manager, the firm is not exempt
from the following requirements:

(a) section 12.1 [capital requirements];

(b) section 12.2 [notifying the regulator of a
subordination agreement];

(c) section 12.7 [notifying the regulator of a
change, claim or cancellation];

(d) section 12.10 [annual financial statements];

(k) section 5.8 [disclosure when
recommending use of borrowed money];

0] section 5.10 [holding client assets in trust];

(m) section 5.11 [securities subject to
safekeeping agreement];

(n) section 5.12 [securities not subject to
safekeeping agreement];

(o) section 5.18 [confirmation of trade —
general];
(9) except in Québec, section 5.29 [dispute

resolution service].

(2) Except in Québec, the provisions
listed in subsection (1) do not apply to a registrant
that is a member or approved person of the MFDA if
the registrant complies with the by-laws, rules and
policies of the MFDA that deal with the same
subject matter.

(3) In Québec, the provisions listed in
subsection (1) do not apply to a mutual fund dealer
or a dealing representative of a mutual fund dealer if
the registrant complies with the regulation on mutual
fund dealer requirements in Québec.

(h) section S+ -foravidinerelolionshin
diselosure-information};12.12 [delivering financial

information — dealer];

(i) subsection 13.2(3) [know your client];

() section-5—7{margin};_13.3 [suitability];

(k) section 5.8-[disclosure-when
restriction on lending to clients];

13.12

) section

5-10-Theolding-client-assets-in
trust};:13.13 [disclosure when recommending the use
of borrowed money];

(m) section 5.11 [securities subject to
safekeeping-agreement}: subsection 14.2(2)

[relationship disclosure information];

(n) section £ 2 [seeusilics natoubioci s
sa#ekeepmg—ag;eemenﬂ- 4.6 [holding client assets
in trust];

(o) section 5.18 [confirmation of trade —
general}-14.8 [securities subject to a safekeeping
agreement];

(p) exceptin-Quebee-section 5-29{dispuie
resolution-serviee}-14.9 [securities not subject to a
safekeeping agreement];
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(e) section 12.11 [interim financial
information)].
3) A registered firm that is a member of the

MFDA is exempt from each requirement listed in
subsection (1) that applies to a mutual fund dealer
other than the following:

(a) subsection 13.2(3) [know your client];

(b) section 13.12 [restriction on lending to
clients].

(4) Despite subsection (3), if a registered firm

is a member of the MFDA and is registered as an
investment fund manager, the firm is not exempt
from the following requirements:

(a) section 12.1 [capital requirements];

(b) section 12.2 [notifying the regulator of a
subordination agreement];

(c) section 12.7 [notifying the regulator of a
change, claim or cancellation];

(d) section 12.10 [annual financial statements];
(e) section 12.11 [interim financial
information].

(5) Subsection (3) does not apply in Québec.

(6) In Québec, the requirements listed in
subsection (1), other than subsection 13.2(3) [know

(q) section 14.12 [content and delivery of trade
confirmation].

from the following requirements:

(a) section 12.1 [capital requirements];

ion 12.2 [notifying the r lator of
rdination agreement];

(d) section 12.10 [annual financial statements];

e section 12.11 [interim financial
information].

3 A regi | firm that | E

MFDA is exempt from each requirement listed in
subsection (1) that applies to a mutual fund dealer
other than the following:

(a) subsection 13.2(3) [know your client];
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your client] and section 13.12 [restriction on lending
to clients] do not apply to a mutual fund dealer if the
registrant complies with the applicable regulations
on mutual fund dealer in Québec.

: ton 13.12 [restrich .
clients].

4 Despite subsection (3), if a reqgistered firm
is a member of the MFDA and is register n

investment fund manager, the firm is not exempt

(a) section 12.1 [capital requirements];

(b) section 12.2 [notifying the regulator of a
subordination agreement];

ion 12.7 [notifying the r lator of
han laim or cancellation];

e section 12.11 [interim financial
information].
ion n ly in

+3)(6) In Québec, the provisions-requirements
listed in subsection (1), other than subsection
13.2(3) [know your client] and section 13.12
restriction on lending to clients] do not apply to a
mutual fund dealer er-a-dealingrepresentative-of a
mutualfund-dealerif the registrant complies with the

regulation-applicable regulations on mutual fund

dealer requirements-in Québec.
Part 10 Suspension and revocation of registration
— firms
Division 1 When a firm’s registration is
suspended
10.1 Failure to pay fees Failure to pay fees 10.1 Failure to pay fees
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(1) In this section, “annual fees” means

(a) in Alberta, the fees required under section
2.1 of the Schedule - Fees in Alta. Reg. 115/95 —
Securities Regulation,

(b) in British Columbia, the annual fees
required under section 22 of the Securities
Regulation, B.C. Reg. 196/97,

(c) in Manitoba, the fees required under
paragraph 1.(2)(a) of the Manitoba Fee Regulation,
M.R 491\88R,

(d) in New Brunswick, the fees required under
section 2.2 (c) of Local Rule 11-501 Fees,

(e) in Newfoundland and Labrador, the fees
required under section 143 of the Securities Act,

(f) in Nova Scotia, the fees required under
Part X1V of the Regulations,

(9) in Northwest Territories, the fees required
under sections 1(c) and 1(e) of the Securities Fee
regulations, R-066-2008;

(h) in Nunavut, the fees required under section
1(a) of the Schedule to R-003-2003 to the Securities
Fee regulation, R.R.N.W.T. 1990, c.20,

0] in Prince Edward Island, the fees required
under section 175 of the Securities Act R.S.P.E.I.,
Cap. S-3.1,

7.5 ) A registered firm is suspended on
the 30th day after the date its annual fees were due
if the firm has not paid its annual fees.

(2) In subsection (1), “annual fees”
means

(a) in Alberta, the fee required under section 8
of Alta. Reg. 115/95 — Securities Regulation,

(b) in British Columbia, the fee required under
section 22 of Securities Regulation B.C. Reg
196/97,

(c) in Québec, the fee required under section
271.5 of the Québec Securities Regulation,

(d) in Ontario, the participation fee required
under Ontario Securities Commission Rule 13-502
Fees, and

(e) in Saskatchewan, the annual registration
fee required to be paid by a registrant under section
176 of The Securities Regulations (Saskatchewan).

75 A . firrri
the 30th day after the date its annual fees were due

“2)(1) In subsection{Hthis section, “annual fees”
means
(a) in Alberta, the fee fees required under

section 82.1 of the Schedule - Fees in Alta. Reg.
115/95 — Securities Regulation,

(b) in British Columbia, the fee annual fees
required under section 22 of the Securities
Regulation, B.C. Reg. 196/97,

(c) in Québec, the fee required-under section
Manitoba, the fees required under paragraph
1.(2 f the Mani Fee Regulation, M.R

491\88R,

(d) in o, . .

5 ;. tsa © t. e EE;‘ te pe.t © eRe equ esdgg
Fees;and-New Brunswick, the fees required under
section 2.2 (c) of Local Rule 11-501 Fees,

(e) in Saskatchewan, the annual registration
mq&”ed@%ﬁm”a%“aw : i . 5 _
Newfoundland and Labrador, the fees required

under section 143 of the Securities Act

i) in Nova Scotia, the fees required under
Part X1V of the Regulations

(9) in Northwest Territories, the fees required
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1)) in Québec, the fees required under section
271.5 of the Québec Securities Regulation,

(k) in Saskatchewan, the annual registration
fees required to be paid by a registrant under
section 176 of The Securities Regulations
(Saskatchewan), and

) in Yukon, the fees required under O.1.C.
2009\66, pursuant to section 168 of the Securities
Act.

(2) If a registered firm has not paid the annual
fees by the 30th day after the date the annual fees
were due, the registration of the firm is suspended
until reinstated or revoked under securities
legislation.

.

(h) in Nunavut, the fees required under section
1(a) of the Schedule to R-003-2003 to the Securities
Fee requlation, R.R.N.W.T. 1990, c.20,

(i) in Prince Edward Island, the fees required
I ion 175 of the S itios ACt R.S.P.E
Cap. S-3.1,

() in Québec, the fees required under section
271.5 of the Québec Securities Regulation,

k in katchewan, the annual registration
fi r ir i reqgistrant under

ion 176 of The S ities R .
(Saskatchewan), and

1) in Yukon, the fees required under O.1.C.

2009\66, pursuant to section 168 of the Securities
Act.

2 If a registered firm has not paid the annual
f h h

fter th he annual f

were due, the registration of the firm is suspended ked =

legislation.

10.2 If IROC membership is revoked or
suspended

If IROC revokes or suspends a registered firm’s
membership, the firm'’s registration in the category
of investment dealer is suspended until reinstated or
revoked under securities legislation.

Suspension of IDA approval

7.3 (1) If the IDA revokes or suspends a
registered firm’s membership, the firm’s registration
in the category of investment dealer is suspended.

Suspension-of-ilDA-approval10.2  If IIROC
. ked —!

F3—1H——HthelDA I IROC revokes or

suspends a registered firm’s membership, the firm’s
registration in the category of investment dealer is

suspended_until reinstated or revoked under
securities legislation.
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10.3 If MFDA membership is revoked or
suspended

Except in Québec, if the MFDA revokes or
suspends a registered firm’s membership, the firm’s
registration in the category of mutual fund dealer is
suspended until reinstated or revoked under
securities legislation.

Suspension of MFDA approval

7.4 (1) If the MFDA revokes or suspends
a registered firm’s membership, the firm’s
registration in the category of mutual fund dealer is
suspended.

(3) This section does not apply in
Québec.

Suspension-0f10.3 f MFDA approval

o ked |
74 B I Except in Québec, if the MFDA

revokes or suspends a registered firm’s

membership, the firm’s registration in the category

of mutual fund dealer is suspended_until reinstated
r revok nder rities legislati

. Thi . .
Québec:

10.4 Activities not permitted while a firm’s
registration is suspended

If a registered firm’s registration in a category is
suspended, the firm must not act as a dealer, an
underwriter, an adviser, or an investment fund
manager, as the case may be, under that category.

Activities requiring registration are prohibited

71 If the registration of a registered firm or a
registered individual in a category is suspended, he,
she or it must not act as a dealer, an adviser, or an
investment fund manager in that category.

104 Activities requiring not permitted while a
firm’s registration are-prehibited is suspended

+1+——If theregistration-of-a registered firm-era

registered-individual’s reqgistration in a category is
suspended, he;-she-or-it the firm must not act as a

dealer, an underwriter, an adviser, or an investment

fund manager-in, as the case may be, under that

category.

Division 2 Revoking a firm’s registration
10.5 Revocation of a suspended registration — Revocation of registration 10.5 Revocation of a suspended registration_—
firm firm

If a registration has been suspended under this Part
and it has not been reinstated, the registration is
revoked on the 2™ anniversary of the suspension.

7.7 If a registration has been suspended under
this Part and it has not been reinstated, the
registration is revoked on the second anniversary
following the suspension.

+7——If a registration has been suspended under
this Part and it has not been reinstated, the
registration is revoked on the secend 2"
anniversary fellewing of the suspension.

10.6 Exception for firms involved in a hearing

Despite section 10.5, if a hearing concerning a
suspended registrant is commenced under
securities legislation or under the rules of an SRO,
the registrant’s registration remains suspended.

Exception — hearing

7.8 Despite 7.7 [revocation of registration], if a
hearing concerning a suspended registrant is
commenced under the Act, the registration remains
suspended until a decision has been made by the
regulator or the securities regulatory authority.

10.6 ___Exception —for firms involved in a hearing

+8—Despite #F{revocation-of
registration};section 10.5, if a hearing concerning a

suspended registrant is commenced under the-Act
rities legislation or under the rules of an SRO,
the_registrant’s registration remains suspended-untit
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— ; '

10.7 Application of Part 10 in Ontario

Other than section 10.4 [activities not permitted
while a firm’s registration is suspended], this Part
does not apply in Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario, measures governing suspension
in section 29 of the Securities Act (Ontario) are
similar to those in Parts 6 and 10.]

New Provision

10.7 Application of Part 10 in Ontario

Other than section 10.4 [activities not permitted

while a firm'’s registration is suspended], this Part
n ly in Ontario.

in section 29 of the Securities Act (Ontario) are
similar to those in Parts 6 and 10.]

Part 11 Internal controls and systems

Division 1 Compliance

11.1 Compliance system Compliance system 11.1 Compliance system

A registered firm must establish, maintain and apply | 5.23 (1) A registered firm must establish, S &H A registered firm must establish,

policies and procedures that establish a system of
controls and supervision sufficient to

(a) provide reasonable assurance that the firm
and each individual acting on its behalf complies
with securities legislation, and

(b) manage the risks associated with its
business in accordance with prudent business
practices.

maintain and apply a system of controls and
supervision sufficient to

(a) provide reasonable assurance that the firm
and each individual acting on its behalf complies
with securities legislation, and

(b) manage the risks associated with its
business in conformity with prudent business
practices.

(2) The system of controls referred to
in subsection (1) must be documented in the form of
written policies and procedures.

maintain and apply_policies and procedures that
establish a system of controls and supervision
sufficient to

(a) provide reasonable assurance that the firm
and each individual acting on its behalf complies
with securities legislation, and

(b) manage the risks associated with its
business in eenfermity accordance with prudent
business practices.

— {2y The-system-of-controlsreferred-to
. ) | . : .

11.2 Designating an ultimate designated person

(1) A registered firm must designate an
individual who is registered under securities

Ultimate designated person

2.9 (1) A registered firm must have an
individual who is registered under securities

Ultimate11.2 Designating an ultimate

designated person

29—((1) A registered firm must have
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legislation in the category of ultimate designated
person to perform the functions described in section
5.1 [responsibilities of the ultimate designated
person].

(2) A registered firm must not designate an
individual to act as the firm’s ultimate designated
person unless the individual is one of the following:

(a) the chief executive officer or sole proprietor
of the registered firm;

(b) an officer in charge of a division of the
registered firm, if the activity that requires the firm to
register occurs only within the division;

(c) an individual acting in a capacity similar to
that of an officer described in paragraph (a) or (b).

3) If an individual who is registered as a
registered firm’s ultimate designated person ceases
to meet any of the conditions listed in subsection
(2), the registered firm must designate another

legislation in the category of ultimate designated
person to perform the functions described in section
5.24 [ultimate designated person — functions].

(2) An individual must not act as the
ultimate designated person of a registered firm
unless the individual is

(a) the chief executive officer or sole proprietor
of the registered firm,

(b) an officer in charge of a division of the
registered firm, if the activity that requires the firm to
register occurs only within the division, or

(c) an individual acting in a capacity similar to
that of an officer described in paragraph (a) or (b).

designate an individual who is registered under
securities legislation in the category of ultimate
designated person to perform the functions

described in section 5:24-{5.1 [responsibilities of the
ultimate designated person—funetions].

(2)-An_A registered firm must not
designate an individual mustret {o act as the firm's
ultimate designated person-of-a-registered-firm
unless the individual is_one of the following:

(a) the chief executive officer or sole proprietor
of the registered firm;;

(b) an officer in charge of a division of the
registered firm, if the activity that requires the firm to
register occurs only within the division;-or;

(c) an individual acting in a capacity similar to
that of an officer described in paragraph (a) or (b).

(3) If an individual who is registered as a
registered firm’s ultimate designated person ceases

individual to act as its ultimate designated person. m ny of th nditions li in ion
(2), the reqistered firm must designate another
individual its ulti -

11.3 Designating a chief compliance officer Chief compliance officer Chief11.3 Designating a chief compliance
officer

(1) A registered firm must designate an 2.10 (1) A registered firm must have an

individual who is registered under securities individual who is registered under securities 240—(1) A registered firm must have

legislation in the category of chief compliance officer
to perform the functions described in section 5.2
[responsibilities of the chief compliance officer].

(2) A registered firm must not designate an
individual to act as the firm’s chief compliance
officer unless the individual has satisfied the

legislation in the category of chief compliance officer
to perform the functions described in section 5.25
[chief compliance officer — functions].

(2) An individual must not act as the
chief compliance officer for a registered firm unless
the individual is an officer or partner of the

designate an individual who is registered under
securities legislation in the category of chief
compliance officer to perform the functions

described in section 5:25-{5.2 [responsibilities of the
chief compliance officer—funetions].

(2)-An_A registered firm must not
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applicable conditions in Part 3 [registration
requirements — individuals] and the individual is one
of the following:

(a) an officer or partner of the registered firm;
(b) the sole proprietor of the registered firm.
(3) If an individual who is registered as a

registered firm’s chief compliance officer ceases to
meet any of the conditions listed in subsection (2),
the registered firm must designate another
individual to act as its chief compliance officer.

registered firm, or the firm’s sole proprietor.

designate an individual mustret {o act as the firm's
chief compliance officer-fer-aregistered-firm unless
the individual is-has satisfied the applicable
conditions in Part 3 [registration requirements —
individuals] and the individual is one of the following:

(@) an officer or partner of the registered firm;
oF;

gt_z) the-firm’s sole proprietor_of the registered
firm.

(3) If an individual who is registered as a

eglstered firm’s chief compliance officer ceases to
m f h nditions li in ion (2

hri firm m ign nother

...!! its chief . i

11.4 Providing access to board

A registered firm must permit its ultimate designated
person and its chief compliance officer to directly
access the firm’s board of directors, or individuals
acting in a similar capacity for the firm, at such times
as the ultimate designated person or the chief
compliance officer may consider necessary or
advisable in view of his or her responsibilities.

Access to board or partnership

5.26 A registered firm must permit its ultimate
designated person and its chief compliance officer
to directly access the board of directors or
partnership at such times as either of them may
independently deem necessary or advisable in view
of his or her responsibilities.

Acecess11.4 Providing access to board er
partnership

5.26——A registered firm must permit its ultimate
designated person and its chief compliance officer
to directly access the firm’s board of directors-er

partnership-atsuch-imes-as-eitherof-them-may

independently-deem, or individuals acting in a

similar capacity for the firm, at such times as the
Itim ign rson or the chief complian

officer may consider necessary or advisable in view

of his or her responsibilities.

Division 2 Books and records
11.5 General requirements for records Records — general requirements Records —generall11.5 General requirements_for
records

(1) A registered firm must maintain records to | 5.15 (1) A registered firm must maintain

records to - registered firm must maintain

ds t 545—(1 A registered fi t maintai

(a) accurately record its business activities, records to

(a) accurately record its business activities,
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financial affairs, and client transactions, and

(b) demonstrate the extent of the firm’s
compliance with applicable requirements of
securities legislation.

(2) The records required under subsection (1)
include, but are not limited to, records that do the
following:

(a) permit timely creation and audit of financial
statements and other financial information required
to be filed or delivered to the securities regulatory
authority;

(b) permit determination of the registered
firm’s capital position;

(c) demonstrate compliance with the
registered firm’s capital and insurance
requirements;

(d) demonstrate compliance with internal
control procedures;

(e) demonstrate compliance with the firm’s
policies and procedures;

(f) permit the identification and segregation of
client cash, securities, and other property;

(9) identify all transactions conducted on
behalf of the registered firm and each of its clients,
including the parties to the transaction and the
terms of the purchase or sale;

financial affairs, and client transactions, and

(b) demonstrate compliance with applicable
requirements of securities legislation.

(2) Such records must include, but
are not limited to, records that

(a) permit timely creation and audit of financial
statements and other financial information required
to be filed or delivered to the securities regulatory
authority,

(b) permit determination of the registered
firm’s capital position,

(c) demonstrate compliance with the
registered firm’s capital and insurance
requirements,

(d) demonstrate compliance with internal
control procedures,

(e) demonstrate compliance with the firm’s
policies and procedures,

(f) permit the identification and segregation of
client cash, securities, and other property,

(9) identify all transactions conducted on
behalf of the registered firm and each of its clients,
including the parties to the transaction and the
terms of the purchase or sale,

(h) provide an audit trail for

(a) accurately record its business activities,
financial affairs, and client transactions, and

(b) demonstrate_the extent of the firm's
compliance with applicable requirements of
securities legislation.

(2)-Sueh_The records must required under
subsection (1) include, but are not limited to,

records that do the following:

(a) permit timely creation and audit of financial
statements and other financial information required
to be filed or delivered to the securities regulatory
authority;;

(b) permit determination of the registered
firm’s capital position;;

(c) demonstrate compliance with the
registered firm’s capital and insurance
requirementss;;

(d) demonstrate compliance with internal
control procedures;;

(e) demonstrate compliance with the firm’s
policies and procedures;;

(f) permit the identification and segregation of
client cash, securities, and other property;;

(9) identify all transactions conducted on
behalf of the registered firm and each of its clients,
including the parties to the transaction and the
terms of the purchase or sale;;
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(h) provide an audit trail for
0] client instructions and orders, and
(ii) each trade transmitted or executed for a

client or by the registered firm on its own behalf;

0] permit the generation of account activity
reports for clients;

0 provide securities pricing as may be
required by securities legislation;

(k) document the opening of client accounts,
including any agreements with clients;

(h demonstrate compliance with sections 13.2
[know your client] and 13.3 [suitability];

(m) demonstrate compliance with complaint-
handling requirements;

(n) document correspondence with clients;

(o) document compliance and supervision
actions taken by the firm.

(i) client instructions and orders, and

(ii) each trade transmitted or executed for a
client or by the registered firm on its own behalf,

0] permit creation of account activity reports
for clients,
@) provide securities pricing as may be

required by securities legislation,

(k) demonstrate compliance with client
account opening requirements,

o document correspondence with clients,
and
(m) document compliance and supervision

actions taken by the firm.

(h) provide an audit trail for
(i) client instructions and orders, and
(ii) each trade transmitted or executed for a

client or by the registered firm on its own behalf;;

(i) permit ereation the generation of account
activity reports for clients;;

) provide securities pricing as may be
required by securities legislation;-;

(k) domensimiocomalionso il clionl

j i —document the

opening of client accounts, including any
agreements with clients;

| monstr. mpliance with ions 13.2

[know your client] and 13.3 [suitability];

(m) . . .
handling requirements;

(in) document correspondence with clients;
and;
(m0) document compliance and supervision

actions taken by the firm.

11.6 Form, accessibility and retention of records

(1) A registered firm must keep a record that it
is required to keep under securities legislation

Records — form, accessibility and retention

5.16 (1) A registered firm must keep its
records safe and in a durable form.

Records —form11.6 Form, accessibility and
retention 5-46—of records

(1) A registered firm must keep itsrecords a
record that it is required to keep under securities
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(a) for 7 years from the date the record is
created,

(b) in a safe location and in a durable form,
and

(c) in @ manner that permits it to be provided

to the regulator or the securities regulatory authority
in a reasonable period of time.

(2) A record required to be provided to the
regulator or the securities regulatory authority must
be provided in a format that is capable of being read
by the regulator or the securities regulatory
authority.

3) Paragraph (1)(c) does not apply in Ontario.

[Note: In Ontario, how quickly a registered firm is
require to provide information to the regulator is
addressed in subsection 19(3) of the Securities Act
(Ontario).]

(2) For a period of two years after the
creation of a record, a registered firm must keep the
record in a manner that permits it to be provided
promptly to the regulator, and thereafter the record
may be kept in a manner that permits it to be
provided to the regulator in a reasonable period of
time.

(3) A record provided under
subsection (2) must be in a form that is capable of
being read by the regulator.

(4) A registered firm must keep

(a) an activity record for seven years from the
date of the act, and

(b) a relationship record for seven years from
the date the person or company ceases to be a
client of the registered firm.

(5) In subsection (4),

“activity record” includes

(a) a confirmation of a transaction required
under section 5.18 [confirmation of trade — general],

(b) a communication between the registrant
and the client made in respect of a purchase or sale
of a security, including a record of an oral
communication,

(c) a statement of account and portfolio
required under section 5.22 [statements of account
and portfolio],

logislat

(a) for 7 years from the date the record is

created,

(b) in a safe |ocation and in a durable form-,
and

(2c)——Fora-period-of two-yearsafter the
. ’ . . .

may-be-kept in a manner that permits it to be

provided to the regulator_or the securities regulatory
authority in a reasonable period of time.

_ (32)*Arreeerd—previ'deekunder

subsestion{(2)___A record required to be provided
to the requlator or the securities regulatory authority
must be provided in a ferm format that is capable of

being read by the regulator_or the securities
regulatory authority.

Paragraph (1 n ly in Ontario.

w& ide inf . ! -
addressed in subsection 19(3) of the Securities Act
(Ontario).

| N ;
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oo o oo e e n e tennooa e e o
(d) a referral of the client that is subject to clientofthe-registered-firm-

Division 2 [referral arrangements] of Part 6; and
——{5}——In-subsection-{4}
“relationship record” means a document, other than

an activity record, that describes the relationship “activity record” includes

between a registrant and a client of the registrant

including
Q . ¢ . .
(a) a communication between the registrant
and the client not made in respect of a purchase or o .
sale of a security, including a record of an oral {b)———a-communication-between-the-registrant
communication, smdnoelionirnndodnnonoe o sueshoe s oo onle
ora-seeu t*. ‘euel g-a-fecord-of an-ofa
(b) an agreement entered into between the

registrant and the client,

(c) a client complaint, and-portiolio};

(d) relationship disclosure information () areforral-of the clientthat is-subiect to
provided to the client under section 5.4 [providing Division 2 [referral-arrangements]-of Part 6: and

relationship disclosure information].

91




National Instrument 31-103 — Registration Requirements and Exemptions
Published July 17, 2009 compared to February 29, 2008 CSA Publication

JULY 17, 2009 PUBLICATION

FEBRUARY 29, 2008 PUBLICATION

BLACKLINE OF CHANGES

{e)———a-clientcomplaint;

() . . ion 5.4 | .-
e at.e S .p dlse GSH e j e at.e O

Division 3 Certain business transactions

Division 3 Certain business transactions

11.7 Tied settling of securities transactions

A registered firm must not require a person or
company to settle that person's or company's
transaction with the registered firm through that
person's or company's account at a Canadian
financial institution as a condition, or on terms that
would appear to a reasonable person to be a
condition, of supplying a product or service, unless
this method of settlement would be, to a reasonable
person, necessary to provide the specific product or
service that the person or company has requested.

Settling securities transactions

6.9 A registered firm must not require a person
or company to settle that person's or company's
transaction with the registered firm through that
person's or company's account at a Canadian
financial institution as a condition, or on terms that
would appear to a reasonable person to be a
condition, of supplying a product or service, unless
this method of settlement is reasonably necessary
to provide the specific product or service that the
person or company has requested.

Sottl — .

11.7 Tied settling of securities transactions

6:9—A registered firm must not require a person
or company to settle that person's or company's
transaction with the registered firm through that
person's or company's account at a Canadian
financial institution as a condition, or on terms that
would appear to a reasonable person to be a
condition, of supplying a product or service, unless
this method of settlement isreaserably would be
to a reasonable person, necessary to provide the
specific product or service that the person or
company has requested.

11.8 Tied selling

A dealer, adviser or investment fund manager must
not require another person or company

(a) to buy, sell or hold a security as a
condition, or on terms that would appear to a
reasonable person to be a condition, of supplying or
continuing to supply a product or service, or

(b) to buy, sell or use a product or service as a
condition, or on terms that would appear to a
reasonable person to be a condition, of buying or
selling a security.

Tied selling

6.10 No person or company shall require
another person or company

(a) to buy, sell or hold particular securities as a
condition, or on terms that would appear to a
reasonable person to be a condition, of supplying or
continuing to supply products or services, or

(b) to buy, sell or use any products or services
as a condition, or on terms that would appear to a
reasonable person to be a condition, of buying or
selling particular securities.

11.8 Tied selling

; lepe|59 or-€0 pa 75 alAJjﬁ.a.lﬁ,

require another person or company

(a) to buy, sell or hold particularsecurities a

security as a condition, or on terms that would
appear to a reasonable person to be a condition, of
supplying or continuing to supply preduets a product

or services service, or

(b) to buy, sell or use any-products a product
or services service as a condition, or on terms that

would appear to a reasonable person to be a

condition, of buying or selling particularsecurities a
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security

11.9 Registrant acquiring a registered firm’s
securities or assets

(1) A registrant must give the regulator written
notice in accordance with subsection (2) if it
proposes to acquire any of the following:

(a) beneficial ownership of, or direct or indirect
control or direction over, a security of a registered
firm;

(b) beneficial ownership of, or direct or indirect
control or direction over, a security of a person or
company of which a registered firm is a subsidiary;

(c) all or a substantial part of the assets of a
registered firm.

(2) The notice required under subsection (1)
must be delivered to the regulator at least 30 days
before the proposed acquisition and must include all
relevant facts regarding the acquisition sufficient to
enable the regulator to determine if the acquisition is

(a) likely to give rise to a conflict of interest,

(b) likely to hinder the registered firm in
complying with securities legislation,

(c) inconsistent with an adequate level of
investor protection, or

(d) otherwise prejudicial to the public interest.

Acquiring a registered firm’s securities or assets

6.8 (1) A person or company must give
the regulator written notice at least 30 days before
the acquisition if it proposes to acquire,

(a) directly or indirectly, beneficial ownership
of, or control or direction over, ten per cent or more
of the securities of a registered firm, or

(b) a substantial part of the assets of a
registered firm.

(2) The notice required under
subsection (1) must include all relevant facts
regarding the acquisition to permit the regulator to
determine if itis

(i) likely to give rise to conflicts of interest,

(ii) likely to hinder the registered firm in
complying with securities legislation,

(iii) inconsistent with an adequate level of
investor protection, or

(iv) otherwise prejudicial to the public interest.

3) If, within 30 days of the
regulator’s receipt of a notice under subsection (1),
the regulator notifies the person or company making
the acquisition that the regulator objects to the
acquisition, the acquisition must not occur until the
regulator approves it.

iring11.9 Registrant acquiring a registered

firm’s securities or assets

6:8—(1) A person-or-company registrant
must give the regulator written notice atleast30
days-before-the-acquisition in accordance with
subsection (2) if it proposes to acquire;_any of the
following:

(a) directhy-or-indirectly;-beneficial ownership

of, or direct or indirect control or direction over, ten

per-cent-ormore-of the-securities a security of a

registered firm-or;

(b) beneficil hip of, or di .

control or direction over, a security of a person or
company of which a registered firm is a subsidiary;

(€) all or a substantial part of the assets of a
registered firm.

(2) The notice required under

subsection (1) must be delivered to the regulator at
least 30 days before the proposed acquisition and

must include all relevant facts regarding the
acquisition sufficient to permit enable the regulator
to determine if it the acquisition is

(ia) likely to give rise to eenflicts a conflict of
interest,
(Hb) likely to hinder the registered firm in

complying with securities legislation,
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(3) Subsection (1) does not apply to the
following:

(a) a proposed acquisition in connection with
an amalgamation, merger, arrangement,
reorganization or treasury issue if the beneficial
ownership of, or direct or indirect control or direction
over, the person or company whose security is to be
acquired will not change;

(b) a registrant who, alone or in combination
with any other person or company, proposes to
acquire securities that, together with the securities
already beneficially owned, or over which direct or
indirect control or direction is already exercised, do
not exceed more than 10% of any class or series of
securities that are listed and posted for trading on
an exchange.

(4) Except in Ontario and British Columbia, if,
within 30 days of the regulator’s receipt of a notice
under subsection (1), the regulator notifies the
registrant making the acquisition that the regulator
objects to the acquisition, the acquisition must not
occur until the regulator approves it.

(5) In Ontario, if, within 30 days of the
regulator’s receipt of a notice under subsection
(1)(a) or (c), the regulator notifies the registrant
making the acquisition that the regulator objects to
the acquisition, the acquisition must not occur until
the regulator approves it.

(6) Following receipt of a notice of objection
under subsection (4) or (5), the person or company
who submitted the notice to the regulator may
request an opportunity to be heard on the matter.

(4) Following receipt of a notice of
objection under subsection (3), the person or
company who submitted the notice to the regulator
may request the regulator to hold a hearing on the
matter.

(5) Subsection (1) does not apply to

(a) an acquisition by a registered firm in the
ordinary course of its business of trading in
securities, or

(b) an amalgamation, merger, arrangement or
reorganization in which the direct or indirect
beneficial ownership of a registered firm does not
change.

(Hic) inconsistent with an adequate level of
investor protection, or

(vd) otherwise prejudicial to the public interest.

(3) Subsection (1) does not apply to the
following:

( e . it
an amalgamation, merger, arrangement,
reorganization or treasury issue if the beneficial
ownership of, or direct or indirect control or direction
over, the person or company whose security is to be
acquired will not change;

registrant wh lone or in combination

with any other person or company, proposes to

acquire securities that, together with the securities
already beneficially owned, or over which direct or
indirect control or direction is already exercised, do
not exceed more than 10% of any class or series of
securities that are listed and posted for trading on
an exchange.

4 Ex in Ontario and British Columbia, if
W! ! ion (1) if
registrant making the acquisition that the regulator

objects to the acquisition, the acquisition must not
occur until the regulator approves it.

(35) - In Ontario, if, within 30 days of the
regulator’s receipt of a notice under subsection (1);

the regulator notifies the person-or company making

regulater-approves-it(a) or (c), the regulator notifies

the reqistrant making the acquisition that the
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(46) Following receipt of a notice of
objection under subsection (34) or (5), the person or
company who submitted the notice to the regulator
may request an opportunity to be heard on the
regulator to-hold-a hearing on the matter.

change-

11.10 Registered firm whose securities are
acquired
(1) A registered firm must give the regulator

written notice in accordance with subsection (2) if it
knows or has reason to believe that any person or
company, alone or in combination with any other
person or company, is about to acquire, or has
acquired, beneficial ownership of, or direct or
indirect control or direction over, 10% or more of
any class or series of voting securities of any of the
following:

(a) the registered firm;

(b) a person or company of which the
registered firm is a subsidiary.

[6.7 of Feb 2007]

Acquisition of securities or assets of a registrant

6.7 (1) A person or company must give prior written
notice to the regulator of the direct or indirect
acquisition of

(a) beneficial ownership of, or control or direction
over,

(i) ten per cent or more of the securities of a
registrant; and

Proposed NI 31-103 Registration Requirements
Supplement to the OSC Bulletin

February 23, 2007 51 (2007) 30 OSCB (Supp-2)

(i) any increase thereafter of more than 5 per cent
of the outstanding securities of the

. jsiti 11.10
Registered firm whose securities er-assets

of-aregistrant are acquired

6 .( 3/ POFSOR-OF COMPany .ustgu.e PHOFW ten
etee. .te. ¢ eﬁegu ato Fel.t e-d eetl © Fd’ egi

A registered firm m ive the regulator
written notice in rdance with ion (2) if i

knows or has reason to believe that any person or

person or company, is about to acquire, or has
acquired, beneficial ownership of, or direct or
indirect control or direction over,{i}-tenpercent 10%
or more of the any class or series of voting
securities of a-registrant-and any of the following:
S'SE%EQ 3 I 93; Iste;gEst at.e Requirements
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(2) The notice required under subsection (1)
must,

(a) be delivered to the regulator as soon as
possible,

(b) include the name of each person or

company involved in the acquisition, and

(c) after the registered firm has applied
reasonable efforts to gather all relevant facts,
include facts regarding the acquisition sufficient to
enable the regulator to determine if the acquisition is

(i) likely to give rise to a conflict of interest,

(ii) likely to hinder the registered firm in
complying with securities legislation,

(iii) inconsistent with an adequate level of
investor protection, or

(iv) otherwise prejudicial to the public interest.
(3) This section does not apply to an
amalgamation, merger, arrangement, reorganization
or treasury issue in which the beneficial ownership
of a registered firm does not change.

(4) This section does not apply if notice of the
transaction was provided under section 11.9
[registrant acquiring a registered firm’s securities or
assets].

(5) Except in British Columbia and Ontario, if,
within 30 days of the regulator’s receipt of a notice

registrant; and

(b) a substantial part of the assets of a registrant.

(2) The notice in subsection (1) must

(a) be filed with the regulator at least 30 days before
the acquisition; and

(b) include all relevant facts to permit the regulator
to determine if the acquisition

(i) is likely to give rise to conflicts of interest;

(ii) is likely to hinder the registrant in complying with
the conditions of registration applicable to

it;

(iii) is inconsistent with an adequate level of investor
protection; or

(iv) is otherwise prejudicial to the public interest.

(3) If the regulator gives written notice of objection
to the acquisition within 30 days of the regulator’s
receipt of a

notice under subsection (1), the acquisition shall not
occur until the regulator approves it.

(4) Following receipt of a notice of objection under
subsection (3), the person or company who
submitted the

notice to the regulator may request the regulator to
hold a hearing on the matter.

(5) Subsection (1) does not apply to an acquisition

(a) the reqgistered firm;

(b) a person or company of which the
registered firm is a subsidiary.

(2) The notice in required under subsection (1)

must,

(a) be filed-with delivered to the regulator at
least 30-days-before as soon as possible,

b include the name of each person or

company involved in the acquisition;, and

{b)inetude (c) __ after the registered firm has
applied reasonable efforts to gather all relevant
facts-to-permit

. include facts regarding the
acquisition sufficient to enable the regulator to
determine if the acquisition{i) is

(@) likely to give rise to eenflictsa conflict of
interest;,

(iiy4is-  likely to hinder the registrant registered firm
in complying with the-conditions-of registration
applicable-te securities legislation

it;

(iii)-is-  inconsistent with an adequate level of
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under subsection (1), the regulator notifies the
person or company making the acquisition that the
regulator objects to the acquisition, the acquisition
must not occur until the regulator approves it.

(6) In Ontario, if, within 30 days of the
regulator’s receipt of a notice under subsection
(1)(a), the regulator notifies the person or company
making the acquisition that the regulator objects to
the acquisition, the acquisition must not occur until
the regulator approves it.

(7) Following receipt of a notice of objection
under subsection (5) or (6), the person or company
proposing to make the acquisition may request an
opportunity to be heard on the matter.

by a registrant in the ordinary course of its business
of dealing

in securities.

investor protection;, or

(iv)Hs-  otherwise prejudicial to the public interest.

Thi ion n | n
amalgamation, merger, arrangement, reorganization

(4) This section does not apply if notice of the
transaction was provided under section 11.9
registrant acquiring a registered firm’s securities or
assets].

w.w E lator plof .

under subsection (1), the regulator notifies the
person or company making the acquisition that the
regulator objects to the acquisition, the acquisition
must not occur until the regulator approves it.

In Ontario, if, within f th

receipt of a notice under ion

(1)(a), the regulator notifies the person or company

making the acquisition that the regulator objects to
the acquisition, the acquisition must not occur until
the regulator approves it.

) Following receipt of a notice of objection
under subsection (35) or (6), the person or company
whe-submitted-the-netice proposing to make the
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regulator acquisition may request the-regulatorto
held-a-hearing an opportunity to be heard on the

matter.

(8) . .E ) . ) ‘ .
of dealing
j Seeu .t.es-

Part 12 Financial condition

Division 1 Working capital

121 Capital requirements

1) If, at any time, the excess working capital
of a registered firm, as calculated using Form 31-
103F1 Calculation of Excess Working Capital, is
less than zero, the registered firm must notify the
regulator as soon as possible.

(2) A registered firm must ensure that its
excess working capital, as calculated using Form
31-103F1 Calculation of Excess Working Capital, is
not less than zero for 2 consecutive days.

3) For the purpose of completing Form 31-
103F1 Calculation of Excess Working Capital, the
minimum capital is

(a) $25,000, for a registered adviser that is not
also a registered dealer or a registered investment
fund manager,

(b) $50,000, for a registered dealer that is not
also a registered investment fund manager, and

(c) $100,000, for a registered investment fund
manager.

Capital requirement

4.18 (1) A registered firm must ensure that
its excess working capital, as calculated using Form
31-103F1 Calculation of excess working capital, is
not less than zero.

(2) For the purpose of completing
Form 31-103F1 Calculation of excess working
capital, the minimum capital is

(a) $25,000, for an adviser,
(b) $50,000, for a dealer, and
(c) $100,000, for an investment fund manager.

(3) A registered firm must calculate
its excess working capital as at the end of each
month by completing Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
excess working capital no later than the 20th
business day after the end of the month.

Report capital deficiency

121 Capital requirerment requirements

1) If, at any time, the excess working capital
of a registered firm, as calculated usmg Form 31-
103F1 Calculation of is
less than zero, the registered firm must notify the

regulator as soon as possible.

4148—(42) A registered firm must ensure that
its excess working capital, as calculated using Form
31 103F1 Calculation of excess-working-capital

Excess Working Capital, is not less than zero-_for 2
consecutive days.

(23) For the purpose of completing

Form 31-103F1 Calculation of excess-werking

capital Excess Working Capital, the minimum capital
is

(a) $25 000 for anﬂadwsepggﬂ
r th | register ler or

W

(b) $50,000, for a dealer registered dealer that

is not also a registered investment fund manager,
and
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(4) Paragraph (3)(c) does not apply to a
registered investment fund manager that is exempt
from the dealer registration requirement under
section 8.6 [adviser — non-prospectus qualified
investment fund] in respect of all investment funds
for which it acts as adviser.

4.19 If, at any time, the excess working capital
of a registered firm, as calculated using Form 31-
103F1 Calculation of excess working capital, is less
than zero, the registered firm must notify the
regulator as soon as practicable.

(c) $100,000, for an a registered investment
fund manager.

4 Paragraph (3)(c) does not apply to a

registered investment fund manager that is exempt
from the dealer registration requirement under

ion 8. viser — non-pr. lifi
investment fund] in respect of all investment funds
7 hich i ;

- -~ - practicable:
12.2 Notifying the regulator of a subordination Subordination agreement — notice requirement Suberdination12.2 Notifying the regulator of
agreement a subordination agreement—neoticerequirement

If a registered firm has executed a subordination
agreement, the effect of which is to exclude an
amount from its long-term related party debt as
calculated on Form 31-103F1 Calculation of Excess
Working Capital, the firm must notify the regulator 5
days before it

(a) repays the loan or any part of the loan, or

(b) terminates the agreement.

4.20 If a registered firm has executed a
subordination agreement for the purpose of
reducing its long-term related party debt on Form
31-103F1 Calculation of excess working capital, the
firm must notify the regulator 5 days before it

(a) repays the loan or any part of the loan, or

(b) terminates the agreement.

4-20——If a registered firm has executed a
subordination agreement-ferthe-purpose-of

) he off f which i
amount from its long-term related party debt as
calculated on Form 31-103F1 Calculation of exeess

working-capital Excess Working Capital, the firm
must notify the regulator 5 days before it

(a) repays the loan or any part of the loan, or

(b) terminates the agreement.
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Division 2 Insurance
12.3 Insurance — dealer Insurance — dealer 12.3 Insurance — dealer
(1) A registered dealer must maintain bonding | 4.21 (1) A registered dealer must maintain | 4.24—(1) A registered dealer must maintain

or insurance

(a) that contains the clauses set out in
Appendix A [bonding and insurance clauses], and

(b) that provides for a double aggregate limit
or a full reinstatement of coverage.

(2) A registered dealer must maintain bonding
or insurance in respect of each clause set out in
Appendix A and in the highest of the following
amounts for each clause:

(a) $50,000 per employee, agent and dealing
representative or $200,000, whichever is less;

(b) one per cent of the total client assets that
the dealer holds or has access to, as calculated
using the dealer's most recent financial records, or
$25,000,000, whichever is less;

(c) one per cent of the dealer’s total assets, as
calculated using the dealer’s most recent financial
records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

(d) the amount determined to be appropriate
by a resolution of the dealer’s board of directors, or
individuals acting in a similar capacity for the firm.

3) In Québec, this section does not apply to a
scholarship plan dealer or a mutual fund dealer
registered only in Québec.

bonding or insurance with a single loss limit in the
highest of the following amounts:

(a) $50,000 per employee, agent and dealing
representative or $200,000, whichever is less;

(b) one per cent of the total client assets that
the dealer handles, holds or has access to, as
calculated using the dealer’'s most recent financial
records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

(c) one per cent of the dealer’s total assets, as
calculated using the dealer’s most recent financial
records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

(d) the amount determined to be appropriate
by a resolution of the board of directors of the
dealer.

(2) A registered dealer must maintain
bonding or insurance, provided by an insurer
lawfully carrying on business in the local jurisdiction,

(a) that contains the clauses set out in
Appendix A,
(b) that provides for a double aggregate limit

or a full reinstatement of coverage, and

(c) whose terms are otherwise acceptable to
the regulator.

bonding or insurance-with-a-single-toss-limit

(a) that contains the clauses set out in
Appendix A [bonding and insurance clauses], and

(b) that provides for a double aggregate limit
or a full reinstatement of coverage.

(2) A registered dealer must maintain bonding

or insurance in respect of each clause set out in
Appendix A and in the highest of the following
amounts_for each clause:

(a) $50,000 per employee, agent and dealing
representative or $200,000, whichever is less;

(b) one per cent of the total client assets that
the dealer-handles; holds or has access to, as
calculated using the dealer's most recent financial
records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

(c) one per cent of the dealer’s total assets, as
calculated using the dealer’s most recent financial
records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

(d) the amount determined to be appropriate
by a resolution of the dealer’s board of directors-ef

the-dealer, or individuals acting in a similar capacity
for the firm.

—) - e,gsw.ed dealermustmainta
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(3) In Québec, this section does not
apply to a scholarship plan dealer.

s . . . Furisdiction:

{(¢)—whose terms are otherwise acceptable to
the regulator.
3) In Québec, this section does not

apply to a scholarship plan dealer or a mutual fund
dealer registered only in Québec.

12.4 Insurance — adviser

(1) A registered adviser must maintain
bonding or insurance

(a) that contains the clauses set out in
Appendix A [bonding and insurance clauses], and

(b) that provides for a double aggregate limit
or a full reinstatement of coverage.

(2) A registered adviser that does not hold or
have access to client assets must maintain bonding
or insurance in respect of each clause set out in
Appendix A and in the amount of $50,000 for each
clause.

3) A registered adviser that holds or has
access to client assets must maintain bonding or
insurance in respect of each clause set out in
Appendix A and in the highest of the following
amounts for each clause:

Insurance — adviser

4.22 (1) A registered adviser that does not
handle, hold, or have access to client assets,
including cheques and other similar instruments,
must maintain bonding or insurance with a single
loss limit of $50,000.

(2) A registered adviser that handles,
holds, or has access to client assets, including
cheques and other similar instruments, must
maintain bonding or insurance with a single loss
limit in the highest of the following amounts:

(a) one per cent of assets under management
that the adviser handles, holds, or has access to, as
calculated using the adviser's most recent financial
records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

(b) one per cent of the adviser’s total assets,
as calculated using the adviser’s most recent
financial records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

12.4 Insurance — adviser

4.22—(1)
maintain bonding or insurance

A registered adviser must

(a) that contains the clauses set out in

Appendix A [bonding and insurance clauses], and

(b) that provides for a double aggregate limit
or a full reinstatement of coverage.

(2) A reqistered adviser that does not handle;
hold; or have access to client assets;-including
cheques and other similarinstruments, must
maintain bonding or insurance W&hasmye%ss
limit of $50,000.

Appendix A and in the amount of $50,000 for each
clause.

(23) A registered adviser that handles;
holds; or has access to client assets;-including
cheques and other similarinstruments, must
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(a) one per cent of assets under management
that the adviser holds or has access to, as
calculated using the adviser’s most recent financial
records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

(b) one per cent of the adviser’s total assets,
as calculated using the adviser’s most recent
financial records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

() $200,000;

(d) the amount determined to be appropriate
by a resolution of the adviser’s board of directors or
individuals acting in a similar capacity for the firm.

() $200,000;

(d) the amount determined to be appropriate
by a resolution of the board of directors of the
adviser.

3) A registered adviser must
maintain bonding or insurance, provided by an
insurer lawfully carrying on business in the local
jurisdiction,

(a) that contains the clauses set out in
Appendix A,
(b) that provides for a double aggregate limit

or a full reinstatement of coverage, and

(c) whose terms are otherwise acceptable to
the regulator.

maintain bonding or insurance with-a-single-less
and in the highest of the following amounts_for each
clause:

(a) one per cent of assets under management
that the adviser handles;-holds; or has access to, as
calculated using the adviser’s most recent financial
records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

(b) one per cent of the adviser’s total assets,
as calculated using the adviser’s most recent
financial records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

() $200,000;

(d) the amount determined to be appropriate
by a resolution of the adviser’s board of directors of
the-adviser- or individuals acting in a similar
capacity for the firm.

12.5 Insurance — investment fund manager

Insurance — investment fund manager

12.5 Insurance — investment fund manager
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(1) A registered investment fund manager
must maintain bonding or insurance

(a) that contains the clauses set out in
Appendix A [bonding and insurance clauses], and

(b) that provides for a double aggregate limit
or a full reinstatement of coverage.

(2) A registered investment fund manager
must maintain bonding or insurance in respect of
each clause set out in Appendix A and in the
highest of the following amounts for each clause:

(a) one per cent of assets under management,
as calculated using the investment fund manager’s
most recent financial records, or $25,000,000,
whichever is less;

(b) one per cent of the investment fund
manager’s total assets, as calculated using the
investment fund manager’s most recent financial
records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

() $200,000;

(d) the amount determined to be appropriate
by a resolution of the investment fund manager’s
board of directors or individuals acting in a similar
capacity for the firm.

4.23 (1) A registered investment fund
manager must maintain bonding or insurance with a
single loss limit in the highest of the following
amounts:

(a) one per cent of assets under management,
as calculated using the investment fund manager’s
most recent financial records, or $25,000,000,
whichever is less;

(b) one per cent of the investment fund
manager’s total assets, as calculated using the
investment fund manager’s most recent financial
records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

() $200,000;

(d) the amount determined to be appropriate
by a resolution of the directors of the investment
fund manager.

(2) A registered investment fund
manager must maintain bonding or insurance,
provided by an insurer lawfully carrying on business
in the local jurisdiction,

(a) that contains the clauses set out in
Appendix A,
(b) that provides for a double aggregate limit

or a full reinstatement of coverage, and

(c) whose terms are otherwise acceptable to
the regulator.

423—(1) A registered investment fund
manager must maintain bonding or insurance with-a

single-loss-imit

(a) that contains the clauses set out in
Appendix A [bonding and insurance clauses], and

(b) that provides for a double aggregate limit
or a full reinstatement of coverage.

(2) A registered investment fund manager

must maintain bonding or insurance in respect of

each clause set out in Appendix A and in the
highest of the following amounts:_for each clause:

(a) one per cent of assets under management,
as calculated using the investment fund manager’s
most recent financial records, or $25,000,000,
whichever is less;

(b) one per cent of the investment fund
manager’s total assets, as calculated using the
investment fund manager’s most recent financial
records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

() $200,000;

(d) the amount determined to be appropriate
by a resolution of the directers-ef-the-investment
fund manager’s board of directors or individuals

acting in a similar capacity for the firm.
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. .
Appendix-A;

. : o
{e}——whose-terms-are-otherwise-accepiable-to
the-regulater:

12.6 Global bonding or insurance

A registered firm may not maintain bonding or
insurance under this Division that benefits, or
names as an insured, another person or company
unless the bond provides, without regard to the
claims, experience or any other factor referable to
that other person or company, the following:

(a) the registered firm has the right to claim
directly against the insurer in respect of losses, and
any payment or satisfaction of those losses must be
made directly to the registered firm;

(b) the individual or aggregate limits under the
policy may only be affected by claims made by or on
behalf of

0] the registered firm, or

(ii) a subsidiary of the registered firm whose
financial results are consolidated with those of the
registered firm.

Global financial institution bonds

4.24 For the purposes of this Division, a
registered firm may maintain bonding or insurance
that benefits, or names as an insured, another
person or company only if the bond provides that,
without regard to the claims, experience or any
other factor referable to that other person or
company,

(a) the registered firm has the right to claim
directly against the insurer in respect of losses, and
any payment or satisfaction of such losses must be
made directly to the registered firm, and

(b) the individual or aggregate limits under the
policy may only be affected by claims made by or on
behalf of

(i) the registered firm, or

(ii) a subsidiary of the registered firm whose
financial results are consolidated with those of the
registered firm.

12.6 Global financiakinstitution-bends bonding
or insurance

: —aA
registered firm may not maintain bonding or
insurance under this Division that benefits, or
names as an insured, another person or company
only-if unless the bond provides-that, without regard
to the claims, experience or any other factor
referable to that other person or company,_the

following:

(a) the registered firm has the right to claim
directly against the insurer in respect of losses, and
any payment or satisfaction of such those losses
must be made directly to the registered firm;-and;

(b) the individual or aggregate limits under the
policy may only be affected by claims made by or on
behalf of

(i) the registered firm, or

(ii) a subsidiary of the registered firm whose
financial results are consolidated with those of the
registered firm.
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12.7 Notifying the regulator of a change, claim
or cancellation

A registered firm must, as soon as possible, notify
the regulator in writing of any change in, claim made
under, or cancellation of any insurance policy
required under this Division.

Notice of change, claim or cancellation

4.25 A registered firm must, as soon as
practicable, notify the regulator in writing of any
change in, claim made under, or cancellation of any
insurance policy required under this Division.

Netice12.7 Notifying the regulator of a

change, claim or cancellation

4.25— A registered firm must, as soon as
practicable possible, notify the regulator in writing of
any change in, claim made under, or cancellation of
any insurance policy required under this Division.

Division 3 Audits
12.8 Direction by a regulator to conduct an audit | Direction to auditor 12.8 Direction te-auditor by a regulator to
or review n n it or review

A registered firm must direct its auditor in writing to
conduct any audit or review required by the
regulator during its registration and must submit a
copy of the direction to the regulator

(a) with its application for registration, and

(b) no later than the 7th day after the
registered firm changes its auditor.

4.27 (1) A registered firm must direct its
auditor in writing to conduct any audit or review
required by the regulator during its registration and
must deliver a copy of the direction to the regulator

(a) with its application for registration, and

(b) no later than the 5th business day after the
registered firm changes its auditor.

(2) The regulator may order a
registered firm to direct its auditor, at the registered
firm’s expense, to conduct any audit or review
required by the regulator and deliver the audit or
review to the regulator as soon as practicable.

4.27——1)———A registered firm must direct its

auditor in writing to conduct any audit or review
required by the regulator during its registration and
must deliversubmit a copy of the direction to the
regulator

(a) with its application for registration, and

(b) no later than the 57th business-day after
the registered firm changes its auditor.

12.9 Co-operating with the auditor

A registrant must not withhold, destroy or conceal
any information or documents or otherwise fail to
cooperate with a reasonable request made by an
auditor of the registered firm in the course of an
audit.

Cooperation with auditor

4.33 A registrant must not withhold, destroy or
conceal any information or documents or otherwise
fail to cooperate with a reasonable request made by
an auditor of the registered firm in the course of an
audit.

Cooperation12.9 Co-operating with the auditor

4-33——A registrant must not withhold, destroy or
conceal any information or documents or otherwise
fail to cooperate with a reasonable request made by
an auditor of the registered firm in the course of an
audit.

Division 4 Financial reporting
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12.10  Annual financial statements

(1) The annual financial statements delivered
to the regulator under this Division must include the
following:

(a) an income statement, a statement of
retained earnings and a cash flow statement, each
prepared for the most recently completed financial
year and the financial year immediately preceding
the most recently completed financial year, if any;

(b) a balance sheet, signed by at least one
director of the registered firm, as at the end of the
most recently completed financial year and the
financial year immediately preceding the most
recently completed financial year, if any;

(c) notes to the financial statements.

(2) The annual financial statements delivered
to the regulator under this Division must be audited.

(3) The annual financial statements delivered
to the regulator under this Division must be
prepared in accordance with National Instrument
52-107 Acceptable Accounting Principles, Auditing
Standards and Reporting Currency, except that the
statements must be prepared on a non-consolidated
basis.

Content of annual financial statements

4.31 The annual financial statements delivered
to the regulator under this Division must include

(a) an income statement, a statement of
retained earnings and a statement of cash flows,
each for the fiscal year, and

(b) a balance sheet as at the end of the fiscal
year, signed by at least one director of the
registered firm.

Preparation of financial statements

4.32 ) The annual and quarterly financial
statements delivered to the regulator under this
Division must be prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, except
that the statements are to be prepared on an
unconsolidated basis.

(2) The annual financial statements
delivered to the regulator under this Division must
be accompanied by an auditor’s report that is
prepared in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards.

: : : -

12.10 ___Annual financial statements

4:31+(1) The annual financial statements delivered
to the regulator under this Division must include_the

following:

(a) an income statement, a statement of
retained earnings and a cash flow statement-ef-cash

ﬂews—eaeh—ier—the—ﬂseal—yea#and— each prepared

for the m ntl mpl financial ran
he financi I rimm i ly pr he m

(b) a balance sheet-as-at-the-end-ofthefiscal
year, signed by at least one director of the
registered firm-, as at the end of the most recently
completed financial year and the financial year
immediately pr ing the most recentl mpl

financial year, if any;

: financi

5 ior of financi

2 The annual financial statements delivered
to the requlator under this Division must be audited.

432—(43) The annual-and-quarterly financial
statements delivered to the regulator under this
Division must be prepared in accordance with
generally-accepted-accounting-prineiples National
Instrument 52-107 Acceptable Accounting

Principles, Auditing Standards and Reporting
Currency, except that the statements are-te must be

prepared on an-unconselidated a non-consolidated
basis.
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12.11 Interim financial information

(1) The interim financial information delivered
to the regulator under this Division may be limited to
the following:

(a) an income statement for the interim period
and for the same period of the immediately
preceding financial year, if any;

(b) a balance sheet, signed by at least one
director of the registered firm, as at the end of the
interim period and for the same period of the
immediately preceding financial year, if any.

(2) The interim financial information delivered
to the regulator under this Division must be
prepared using the same accounting principles that
the registered firm uses to prepare its annual
financial statements.

New Provision

12.11 Interim financial information

(1) The interim financial information delivered
to the requlator under this Division may be limited to
the following:

a an income statement for the interim period

and for the same period of the immediately
r ing financial r, if any;

(b)  abalance sheet, signed by at least one
. E . T i

interim period and for the same period of the
immediately preceding financial year, if any.

2 The interim financial information delivered
he regulator under this Division m
repar ing th m rincipl h

ntin
W{. >

12.12  Delivering financial information — dealer

(1) A registered dealer must deliver the
following to the regulator no later than the 90th day
after the end of its financial year:

(a) its annual financial statements for the
financial year;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
Excess Working Capital, showing the calculation of

Delivering financial information — dealer

4.28 (1) A registered dealer must deliver
to the regulator no later than the 90th day after the
end of its fiscal year

(a) its annual financial statements for the fiscal
year, and

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
excess working capital, showing the calculation of

12.12 _ Delivering financial information — dealer

428—(1) A registered dealer must deliver
the following to the regulator no later than the 90th
day after the end of its fiseal financial year:

(a) its annual financial statements for the fiseal
financial year;and;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
excess-working-capital Excess Working Capital
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the dealer’'s excess working capital as at the end of
the financial year and as at the end of the
immediately preceding financial year, if any.

(2) A registered dealer must deliver the
following to the regulator no later than the 30th day
after the end of the first, second and third quarter of
its financial year:

(a) its interim financial information for the
quarter;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
Excess Working Capital, showing the calculation of
the dealer’s excess working capital as at the end of
the quarter and as at the end of the immediately
preceding quarter, if any.

the dealer’'s excess working capital as at the end of
the fiscal year and as at the end of the immediately
preceding fiscal year.

(2) A registered dealer must deliver
to the regulator no later than the 30th day after the
end of the first, second and third quarter of its fiscal
year

(a) its financial statements for the quarter, and

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
excess working capital, showing the calculation of
the dealer’s excess working capital as at the end of
the quarter and as at the end of the immediately
preceding quarter.

showing the calculation of the dealer’'s excess
working capital as at the end of the fiseal financial
year and as at the end of the immediately preceding
fiseal financial year, if any.

(2) A registered dealer must deliver
the following to the regulator no later than the 30th
day after the end of the first, second and third
quarter of its fiseal financial year:

(a) its interim financial statements information
for the quarter;—and;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
execess-working-capital Excess Working Capital,
showing the calculation of the dealer’s excess
working capital as at the end of the quarter and as
at the end of the immediately preceding quarter,_if

any.

3) Subsection (2) does not apply to an

exempt market dealer.
(3) Subsection (2) does not apply to an
exempt market dealer.

12.13  Delivering financial information — adviser Delivering financial information — adviser 12.13 _ Delivering financial information — adviser

A registered adviser must deliver the following to the
regulator no later than the 90th day after the end of
its financial year:

(a) its annual financial statements for the
financial year;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
Excess Working Capital, showing the calculation of
the adviser’s excess working capital as at the end of
the financial year and as at the end of the
immediately preceding financial year, if any.

4.29 A registered adviser must deliver to the
regulator no later than the 90th day after the end of
its fiscal year

(a) its annual financial statements for the fiscal
year, and

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
excess working capital, showing the calculation of
the adviser’s excess working capital as at the end of
the fiscal year and as at the end of the immediately
preceding fiscal year.

4.29— A registered adviser must deliver th

following to the regulator no later than the 90th day
after the end of its fiseal financial year:
(a) its annual financial statements for the fiseal

financial year;and;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
excess-working-capital Excess Working Capital,
showing the calculation of the adviser’s excess
working capital as at the end of the fiseal financial
year and as at the end of the immediately preceding
fiseal financial year, if any.
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12.14  Delivering financial information —
investment fund manager

(1) A registered investment fund manager
must deliver the following to the regulator no later
than the 90th day after the end of its financial year:

(a) its annual financial statements for the
financial year;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
Excess Working Capital, showing the calculation of
the investment fund manager’s excess working
capital as at the end of the financial year and as at
the end of the immediately preceding financial year,
if any;

(c) a description of any net asset value
adjustment made in respect of an investment fund
managed by the investment fund manager during
the financial year.

(2) A registered investment fund manager
must deliver the following to the regulator no later
than the 30th day after the end of the first, second
and third quarter of its financial year:

(a) its interim financial information for the
quarter;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
Excess Working Capital, showing the calculation of
the investment fund manager’s excess working
capital as at the end of the quarter and as at the end
of the immediately preceding quarter, if any;

Delivering financial information — investment fund
manager

4.30 (1) A registered investment fund
manager must deliver to the regulator no later than
the 90th day after the end of its fiscal year

(a) its annual financial statements for the fiscal
year,

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
excess working capital, showing the calculation of
the investment fund manager’s excess working
capital as at the end of the fiscal year and as at the
end of the immediately preceding fiscal year, and

(c) a description of any net asset value
adjustment made during the fiscal year.

(2) A registered investment fund
manager must deliver to the regulator no later than
the 30th day after the end of the first, second and
third quarter of its fiscal year

(a) its financial statements for the quarter,

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
excess working capital, showing the calculation of
the investment fund manager’s excess working
capital as at the end of the quarter and as at the end
of the immediately preceding quarter, and

(c) a description of any net asset value
adjustment made during the quarter.

3) A description of a net asset value

12.14 _ Delivering financial information —
investment fund manager

4-30-

(1) A registered investment fund manager
must deliver_the following to the regulator no later
than the 90th day after the end of its fiseal financial
year.

(a) its annual financial statements for the fiseal
financial year;-;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
excess-working-capital Excess Working Capital,
showing the calculation of the investment fund
manager’s excess working capital as at the end of
the fiseal financial year and as at the end of the
immediately preceding fiseal financial year, and if
any,

(c) a description of any net asset value
adjustment made in respect of an investment fund
managed by the investment fund manager during
the fiseal financial year.

(2) A registered investment fund
manager must deliver_the following to the regulator
no later than the 30th day after the end of the first,
second and third quarter of its fiseal financial year:

(a) its interim financial statements information
for the quarter;;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of
excess-working-capital Excess Working Capital,
showing the calculation of the investment fund
manager’s excess working capital as at the end of
the quarter and as at the end of the immediately
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(c) a description of any net asset value
adjustment made in respect of an investment fund
managed by the investment fund manager during
the quarter.

(3) A description of a net asset value
adjustment referred to in this section must include
the following:

(a) the name of the fund;

(b) assets under administration of the fund;
(c) the cause of the adjustment;

(d) the dollar amount of the adjustment;

(e) the effect of the adjustment on net asset

value per unit or share and any corrections made to
purchase and sale transactions affecting either the
investment fund or security holders of the
investment fund.

adjustment referred to in this section must include

(a) the cause of the adjustment,
(b) the dollar amount of the adjustment, and
(c) the effect of the adjustment on net asset

value per unit or share and any corrections made to
purchase and sale transactions affecting either the
investment fund or security holders of the
investment fund.

preceding quarter, and if any;

(c) a description of any net asset value
adjustment made in respect of an investment fund
managed by the investment fund manager during
the quarter.

(3) A description of a net asset value
adjustment referred to in this section must include

the following:

(a) the name of the fund;

(b) assets under administration of the fund;
(©) the cause of the adjustment;;

(bd) the dollar amount of the adjustment;—and;

(ee) the effect of the adjustment on net asset
value per unit or share and any corrections made to
purchase and sale transactions affecting either the
investment fund or security holders of the
investment fund.

Part 13 Dealing with clients — individuals and firms

Division 1 Know your client and suitability

13.1 Investment fund managers exempt from
this Division

This Division does not apply to an investment fund
manager.

Exemption for investment fund managers

51 This Division does not apply to an
investment fund manager.

Investment fund

Exemption-for-investment13.1

managers_exempt from this Division

5-4——This Division does not apply to an
investment fund manager.

13.2 Know your client Know-your-client 13.2 Know- your- client
(1) For the purpose of paragraph 2(b) in 5.3 (1) A registrant must take reasonable | 53— (1) For the purpose of paragraph 2(b)
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Ontario, Nova Scotia and New Brunswick, “insider”
has the meaning ascribed to that term in the
Securities Act except that “reporting issuer”, as it
appears in the definition of “insider”, is to be read as
“reporting issuer or any other issuer whose
securities are publicly traded”.

(2) A registrant must take reasonable steps to

(a) establish the identity of a client and, if the
registrant has cause for concern, make reasonable
inquiries as to the reputation of the client,

(b) establish whether the client is an insider of
a reporting issuer or any other issuer whose
securities are publicly traded,

(c) ensure that it has sufficient information
regarding all of the following to enable it to meet its
obligations under section 13.3 or, if applicable, the
suitability requirement imposed by an SRO:

(i) the client’s investment needs and
objectives;

(ii) the client’s financial circumstances;

(iii) the client’s risk tolerance, and

(d) establish the creditworthiness of the client

if the registered firm is financing the client’s
acquisition of a security.

(3) For the purpose of establishing the identity
of a client that is a corporation, partnership or trust
under paragraph (2)(a), the registrant must establish

steps to

(a) establish the identity of a client and, where
there may be cause for concern, the reputation of
the client,

(b) ascertain whether a client is an insider of
an issuer,
(c) ensure that it has sufficient information

about a client to enable it to meet its regulatory
obligations when it

(i) makes a recommendation to the client,

(ii) accepts an instruction to trade from the
client, or

(iii) makes a discretionary purchase or sale of

a security on behalf of the client, and

(d) establish the creditworthiness of a client, if
the registered firm is financing the client’s
acquisition of a security.

(2) For the purpose of establishing
the identity of a client that is a corporation under
paragraph (1)(a), the registrant must establish the
nature of the client’s business and the identity of
any individual who is a beneficial owner, directly or
indirectly, of more that ten per cent of the client.

(3) In paragraph (1)(b), “insider” has
the meaning ascribed to that term in the Act except
that “reporting issuer”, as it appears in the definition
of “insider”, is to be read as “issuer”.

" Ontario. Nova Scofi Now B .

“insider” has the meaning ascribed to that term in
the Securities Act except that “reporting issuer”, as it
appears in the definition of “insider”, is to be read as
“reporting issuer or any other issuer whose
securities are publicly traded”.

2) A registrant must take reasonable steps to

(a) establish the identity of a client and, where

there-may-be if the registrant has cause for concern,

make reasonable inquiries as to the reputation of
the client,

(b) aseertain establish whether a the client is
an insider of an-issuer-a reporting issuer or any
. = | ]

(c) ensure that it has sufficient information
abeuta-client regarding all of the following to enable
it to meet its regulatery-obligations when-it under
section 13.3 or, if applicable, the suitability
requirement imposed by an SRO:

(i) makes-a-recommendationto-the client-'s
investment needs and objectives;

(ii) aceepls-an-instruction-to-trade-from-the

clientor’s financial circumstances;

(iii) R e e
a-seeurity-on-behalf-of the client’s risk tolerance,

and
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the following:

(a) the nature of the client’s business;

(b) the identity of any individual who,

0] in the case of a corporation, is a beneficial
owner of, or exercises direct or indirect control or
direction over, more than 10% of the voting rights
attached to the outstanding voting securities of the
corporation, or

(ii) in the case of a partnership or trust,
exercises control over the affairs of the partnership
or trust.

(4) A registrant must take reasonable steps to
keep the information required under this section
current.

(5) This section does not apply if the client is a
registered firm, a Canadian financial institution or a
Schedule Il bank.

(6) Paragraph (2)(c) does not apply to a
registrant in respect of a permitted client if

(a) the permitted client has waived, in writing,
the requirements under subsections 13.3(1) and (2),
and

(b) the registrant does not act as an adviser in
respect of a managed account of the permitted
client.

(4) A registrant must make
reasonable efforts to keep the information required
under this section current.

(5) Paragraph (1)(c) does not apply if

(a) the client is a permitted client that has
waived, in writing, the requirements under
subsections 5.5(1) and (2) [suitability], or

(b) the client is a permitted client and the
registrant is an exempt market dealer.

(6) Paragraph (1)(d) does not apply if
the client is a permitted client and the registrant is
an exempt market dealer.

(7) Despite subsections (5) and (6),
this section does not apply if the client is a
registered firm, a Canadian financial institution or a
Schedule 11l bank.

(d) establish the creditworthiness of a the
client; if the registered firm is financing the client’s
acquisition of a security.

(23) For the purpose of establishing
the identity of a client that is a corporation,

partnership or trust under paragraph (42)(a), the
registrant must establish the following:

(@ the nature of the client’s business-and-;

(b) the identity of any individual who,

(i) in the case of a corporation, is a beneficial
owner-directly-erindirectly—of-more-that-ten-per
cent-of the-client:_of, or exercises direct or indirect
control or direction over, more than 10% of the
voting righ h h nding votin
riti f th rporation, or

(4) A registrant must make take
reasonable effoerts steps to keep the information
required under this section current.

— oo e coco ot enchn
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. 5.5 | (2) Jsuitability]

Seemtera e danla s

this(5)  This section does not apply if the client is a
registered firm, a Canadian financial institution or a
Schedule Il bank.

(a) the permitted client has waived, in writing,
the requirements under subsections 13.3(1) and (2)

n

@

]
o8

b the registrant does not act as an adviser in
f a man nt of th rmi

-

lient.

13.3 Suitability

(1) A registrant must take reasonable steps to
ensure that, before it makes a recommendation to
or accepts an instruction from a client to buy or sell
a security, or makes a purchase or sale of a security
for a client's managed account, the purchase or sale
is suitable for the client.

(2) If a client instructs a registrant to buy, sell
or hold a security and in the registrant’s reasonable
opinion following the instruction would not be

Suitability

5.5 1) A registrant must take reasonable
steps to ensure that before it makes a
recommendation to, or accepts instructions from, a
client or makes a discretionary purchase or sale of a
security on behalf of a client, the proposed purchase
or sale is suitable for the client with reference to the
client’s

(a) financial circumstances,

13.3 Suitability

55—(1) A registrant must take reasonable
steps to ensure that, before it makes a
recommendation to; or accepts instructions an
instruction from; a client to buy or sell a security, or
makes a diseretionary-purchase or sale of a security
en-behalf-of for a client’'s managed account, the
propesed purchase or sale is suitable for the client
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suitable for the client, the registrant must inform the
client of the registrant’s opinion and must not buy or
sell the security unless the client instructs the
registrant to proceed nonetheless.

(3) This section does not apply if the client is a
registered firm, a Canadian financial institution or a
Schedule Il bank.

(4) This section does not apply to a registrant
in respect of a permitted client if

(a) the permitted client has waived, in writing,
the requirements under this section, and

(b) the registrant does not act as an adviser in
respect of a managed account of the permitted
client.

(b) risk tolerance,
(c) investment knowledge, and
(d) investment needs and objectives.
(2) If a client instructs a registrant to

buy, sell or hold a security and in the registrant’s
opinion, acting reasonably, following the instruction
would not be suitable for the client, the registrant
must inform the client of the registrant’s opinion and
must not buy or sell the security unless the client
instructs the registrant to proceed nonetheless.

3) This section does not apply in
respect of a permitted client if

(a) the permitted client has waived, in writing,
the requirements under subsections (1) and (2), or

(b) the registrant is an exempt market dealer.

(4) Despite subsection (3), this
section does not apply if the client is a registered
firm, a Canadian financial institution or a Schedule
Il bank.

(2) If a client instructs a registrant to
buy, sell or hold a security and in the registrant’s
reasonable opinion;-actingreasenably; following the
instruction would not be suitable for the client, the
registrant must inform the client of the registrant’s
opinion and must not buy or sell the security unless
the client instructs the registrant to proceed
nonetheless.

(3) This section does not apply if the client is a
registered firm, a Canadian financial institution or a
Schedule |l bank.

(34) This section does not apply_to a
registrant in respect of a permitted client if

(a) the permitted client has waived, in writing,

the requirements under subsections{1H-and-{2),-or

this section, and

(b) the registrant is-an-exempt-market-dealer-
| Despi ion (3)_thi

firrna-C o f y Hhe-cHen 95
| o f

Division 2 Conflicts of interest
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13.4 Identifying and responding to conflicts of
interest
(1) A registered firm must take reasonable

steps to identify existing material conflicts of
interest, and material conflicts of interest that the
registered firm in its reasonable opinion would
expect to arise, between the firm, including each
individual acting on the firm's behalf, and a client.

(2) A registered firm must respond to an
existing or potential conflict of interest identified
under subsection (1).

(3) If a reasonable investor would expect to be
informed of a conflict of interest identified under
subsection (1), the registered firm must disclose, in
a timely manner, the nature and extent of the
conflict of interest to the client whose interest
conflicts with the interest identified.

(4) This section does not apply to an
investment fund manager in respect of an
investment fund that is subject to National
Instrument 81-107 Independent Review Committee
for Investment Funds.

Identifying and responding to conflicts of interest

6.1 (1) A registered firm must make
reasonable efforts to identify existing conflicts of
interest and conflicts the registered firm, acting
reasonably, would expect to arise between the firm,
including each individual acting on the firm's behalf,
and its clients.

(2) A registered firm must respond to
a conflict of interest identified under subsection (1).

3) If a client, acting reasonably,
would expect to be informed of a conflict of interest
identified under subsection (1), the registered firm
must disclose the nature and extent of the conflict of
interest to the client.

(4) This section does not apply to an
investment fund manager in respect of an
investment fund that is subject to National
Instrument 81-107 Independent Review Committee
for Investment Funds.

134 Identifying and responding to conflicts of
interest
64+—(1) A registered firm must maketake

reasonable effoerts steps to identify existing material
confllcts of interest, and material conflicts_of interest

that the registered firm.-acting-reasenably. in its
M n would expect to arise, between

the firm, including each individual acting on the
firm's behalf, and its-clients a client.

(2) A registered firm must respond to
a an existing or potential conflict of interest identified
under subsection (1).

3) Ifa cbon—cetinsrooconalhs
reasonable investor would expect to be informed of
a conflict of interest identified under subsection (1),
the registered firm must disclose, in a timely
manner, the nature and extent of the conflict of
interest to the client.whose interest conflicts with the
interest identified.

(4) This section does not apply to an
investment fund manager in respect of an
investment fund that is subject to National
Instrument 81-107 Independent Review Committee
for Investment Funds.

13.5 Restrictions on certain managed account
transactions
(1) In this section, “responsible person”

means, for a registered adviser,

(a) the adviser,

(b) a partner, director or officer of the adviser,

Prohibition on certain managed account
transactions

6.1 (1) In this section, “responsible
person” means, for a registered adviser,

(a) the adviser, and

(b) each of the following who has access to, or

13.4 _ Prohibition Restrictions on certain
managed account transactions

62—(1) In this section, “responsible
person” means, for a registered adviser,

(a) the adviser,

(b) a partner, director or officer of the adviser
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and

(c) each of the following who has access to, or
participates in formulating, an investment decision
made on behalf of a client of the adviser or advice to
be given to a client of the adviser:

(i) an employee or agent of the adviser;
(ii) an affiliate of the adviser;
(iii) a partner, director, officer, employee or

agent of an affiliate of the adviser.

(2) A registered adviser must not knowingly
cause an investment portfolio managed by it,
including an investment fund for which it acts as an
adviser, to do any of the following:

(a) purchase a security of an issuer in which a
responsible person or an associate of a responsible
person is a partner, officer or director unless

(i) this fact is disclosed to the client, and

(ii) the written consent of the client to the
purchase is obtained before the purchase;

(b) purchase or sell a security from or to the
investment portfolio of any of the following:

(i) a responsible person;

(ii) an associate of a responsible person;

participates in formulating, an investment decision
to be made on behalf of a client of the adviser or
advice to be given to a client of the adviser:

0] a partner, director, officer, employee or
agent of the adviser,

(ii) an affiliate of the adviser,

(iii) a partner, director, officer, employee or
agent of an affiliate of the adviser,

(iv) an associate of a person or company listed
in subparagraph (i), (i) or (iii).

(2) A registered adviser must not
cause an investment portfolio managed by it to

(a) purchase or sell a security of an issuer in
which a responsible person is a partner, officer,
director, or employee, or for which a responsible
person is an agent, unless this fact is disclosed to
the client and the written consent of the client to the
purchase is obtained before the purchase,

(b) purchase or sell a security in which a
responsible person has direct or indirect beneficial
ownership, or over which a responsible person
exercises control or direction, unless this fact is
disclosed to the client and the client consents to the
purchase in writing before the purchase,

(c) purchase or sell a security from or to
another investment portfolio managed by the
adviser or a responsible person including an
investment fund for which the adviser or responsible
person acts as adviser, or

and

(bc) each of the following who has access to, or
participates in formulating, an investment decision
te-be-made on behalf of a client of the adviser or
advice to be given to a client of the adviser:

mpl r nt of th viser;

(i) n
(ii) an affiliate of the adviser;

(lii) a partner, director, officer, employee or
agent of an affiliate of the adviser;

v ¢ assee_a}e__e a_p__else oF-company isted

(2) A registered adviser must not
knowingly cause an investment portfolio managed
by it-te, including an investment fund for which it
acts as an adviser, to do any of the following:

(a) purchase-er-sell a security of an issuer in
which a responsible person or an associate of a

responsible person is a partner, officer;_or director;
—or for- whic! . .
agent; unless

(i) this fact is disclosed to the client, and

(ii) the written consent of the client to the
purchase is obtained before the purchase;;

(b)—purchase or sell a security in which a

responsible person-has direct or-indirect beneficial
5. ) "
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(iii) an investment fund for which a responsible
person acts as an adviser;

(c) provide a guarantee or loan to a
responsible person or an associate of a responsible
person.

(d) provide a guarantee or loan to a
responsible person.

exereises control oF direction, unless this factis
e )

purchase or sell a security from or to
another the investment portfolio managed-by of any
of the adviser-orfollowing:

(i) aresponsible person-including;

i iate of : _

(iii}) an investment fund for which the-adviseror
a responsible person acts as adviser-or an adviser;

(dc) provide a guarantee or loan to a
responsible person_or an associate of a responsible
person.
13.6 Disclosure when recommending related or | Recommendations Recommendations13.6 _ Disclosure when
connected securities recommending rel rconn riti
6.5 A registered firm must not make a

A registered firm must not make a recommendation
in any medium of communication to buy, sell or hold
a security issued by the registered firm, a security of
a related issuer or, during the security’s distribution,
a security of a connected issuer of the registered
firm, unless any of the following apply:

(a) the firm discloses, in the same medium of
communication, the nature and extent of the
relationship or connection between the firm and the
issuer;

(b) the recommendation is in respect of a
security of a mutual fund, a scholarship plan, an
educational plan or an educational trust that is an
affiliate of the registered firm and the names of the
registered firm and the fund, plan or trust, as the

recommendation in any medium of communication
to buy, sell or hold its own securities, securities of a
related issuer or, in the course of a distribution,
securities of a connected issuer of the registered
firm, unless

(a) the recommendation is in a publication that

(i) is published or distributed by the registered
firm regularly in the ordinary course of its business,
and

(ii) includes in a conspicuous position and
large type, a complete statement of the relationship
or connection between the registered firm and the
issuer,

6.5———A registered firm must not make a
recommendation in any medium of communication
to buy, sell or hold its-ewn-securities;-securitiesa

security issued by the registered firm, a security of a
related issuer or, in-the-course-of-a during the

security’s distribution, seeurities a security of a
connected issuer of the registered firm, unless any

of the following apply:

(a) the recommendation-s firm discloses, in a
o

E.) §pub SI red-or distributed b’:. e-egiste e,d

and- (i) —includes-in-a conspicuous position-and
large-type—a-complete-statement the same medium

of communication, the nature and extent of the
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case may be, are sufficiently similar to indicate that
they are affiliated.

(b) the registered firm is acting as an
underwriter in a distribution of the securities,

(c) the recommendation is in respect of a
security of a mutual fund that is an affiliate of the
registered firm and the names of the registered firm
and the fund are sulfficiently similar to disclose that
they are affiliated, or

(d) the recommendation is in respect of a
security of a scholarship or educational plan or trust
that is an affiliate of the registered firm and the
names of the registered firm and the scholarship or
educational plan or trust are sufficiently similar to
disclose that they are affiliated.

relationship or connection between the registered
firm and the issuer;-;

(b) .the. mgﬂered—ﬂ#m—s—aeﬁng—as—an

——therecommendation is in respect of a

security of a mutual fund,_a scholarship plan, an
educational plan or an educational trust that is an
affiliate of the registered firm and the names of the
registered firm and the fund,_plan or trust, as the
case may be, are sufficiently similar to diselese
indicate that they are affiliated.;-or

{eh——the-recommendation-is-inrespectof-a
secu ty-o a.s_el olarship o .edueatle. a+plan oF trust
thatis-an-a |ate_etee_gsteed adte_

ames of the fegiste ed-firm-a Fdﬁ_t_ne SCROIAFSHP-O
diselose-thatthey-are-affiliated-

Division 3 Referral arrangements

Division 2:-3 Referral arrangements

13.7 Definitions — referral arrangements

In this Division

“client” includes a prospective client;

“referral arrangement” means any arrangement in
which a registrant agrees to pay or receive a referral
fee;

“referral fee” means any form of compensation,
direct or indirect, paid for the referral of a client to or
from a registrant.

Definitions — referral arrangements

6.11 For the purposes of this section to section
6.15 [application and transition to prior referral
arrangements]

“client” includes a prospective client;

“referral arrangement” means any arrangement in
which a registrant agrees to pay or receive a referral
fee; and

“referral fee” means any form of compensation,
direct or indirect, paid for the referral of a client to or
from a registrant.

13.7 Definitions — referral arrangements

55_ 5 I_e t. & purposeso b sse_ete Fte sectio
i et ]

In this Division
“client” includes a prospective client;

“referral arrangement” means any arrangement in
which a registrant agrees to pay or receive a referral
fee; and

“referral fee” means any form of compensation,
direct or indirect, paid for the referral of a client to or
from a registrant.
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13.8 Permitted referral arrangements

A registrant must not participate in a referral
arrangement unless,

(a) before a client is referred by or to the
registrant, the terms of the referral arrangement are
set out in a written agreement between

(i) the registrant,

(i) the person or company making or receiving
the referral, and

(iii) if the registrant is a registered individual,
the registered firm on whose behalf the registered
individual acts,

(b) the registrant or, if the registrant acts on
behalf of a registered firm, the registered firm,
records all referral fees on its records, and

(c) the registrant ensures that the information
prescribed by subsection 13.10(1) [disclosing
referral arrangements to clients] is provided to the
client in writing before the earlier of the opening of
the client’s account or any services are provided to
the client by the person or company receiving the
referral.

Permitted referral arrangements

6.12 A registrant must not participate in a
referral arrangement unless,

(a) before a client is referred by or to the
registrant, the terms of the referral arrangement are
set out in a written agreement between

(i) the registrant,

(i) the person or company making or receiving
the referral, and

(iii) if the registrant is a registered individual,
the registered firm on whose behalf the registered
individual acts,

(b) the registrant or, if the registrant acts on
behalf of a registered firm, the registered firm,
records all referral fees on its records, and

(c) the registrant ensures that the information
prescribed by subsection 6.13(1) [disclosing referral
arrangements to clients] is provided to the client in
writing before the earlier of opening the client’s
account or any services are provided to the client
under the referral arrangement.

13.8 _ Permitted referral arrangements

6-42——A registrant must not participate in a
referral arrangement unless,

(a) before a client is referred by or to the
registrant, the terms of the referral arrangement are
set out in a written agreement between

(i) the registrant,

(i) the person or company making or receiving
the referral, and

(iii) if the registrant is a registered individual,
the registered firm on whose behalf the registered
individual acts,

(b) the registrant or, if the registrant acts on
behalf of a registered firm, the registered firm,
records all referral fees on its records, and

(c) the registrant ensures that the information
prescribed by subsection 6:4313.10(1) [disclosing
referral arrangements to clients] is provided to the
client in writing before the earlier of the opening of
the client’s account or any services are provided to
the client under by the person or company receiving

the referral-arrangement—.

13.9 Verifying the qualifications of the person or
company receiving the referral

A registrant that refers a client to another person or
company must take reasonable steps to satisfy
himself, herself or itself that the person or company
has the appropriate qualifications to provide the
services, and if applicable, is registered to provide

Reasonable diligence when referring clients

6.14 A registrant that refers a client to another
person or company must take reasonable steps to
satisfy itself that the person or company has the
appropriate qualifications to provide the services,
and if applicable, is registered to provide those

Reasonable diligence when referring clients13.9
Verifying the qualifications of the person or
company receiving the referral

6-14——A registrant that refers a client to another
person or company must take reasonable steps to
satisfy himself, herself or itself that the person or
company has the appropriate qualifications to
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those services.

services.

provide the services, and if applicable, is registered
to provide those services.

13.10 Disclosing referral arrangements to clients

(1) The written disclosure of the referral
arrangement required by subsection 13.8(c)
[permitted referral arrangements] must include the
following:

(a) the name of each party to the referral
arrangement;
(b) the purpose and material terms of the

referral arrangement, including the nature of the
services to be provided by each party;

(c) any conflicts of interest resulting from the
relationship between the parties to the referral
arrangement and from any other element of the
referral arrangement;

(d) the method of calculating the referral fee
and, to the extent possible, the amount of the fee;

(e) the category of registration of each
registrant that is a party to the agreement with a
description of the activities that the registrant is
authorized to engage in under that category and,
giving consideration to the nature of the referral, the
activities that the registrant is not permitted to
engage in;

(f) if a referral is made to a registrant, a
statement that all activity requiring registration
resulting from the referral arrangement will be

Disclosing referral arrangements to clients

6.13 (1) Written disclosure of the referral
arrangement as required by subsection 6.12(c)
[permitted referral arrangements] must include the
following:

(a) the name of each party to the referral
arrangement;
(b) the purpose and material terms of the

referral arrangement, including the nature of the
services to be provided by each party;

(c) any conflicts of interest resulting from the
relationship between the parties to the referral
arrangement and from any other element of the
referral arrangement;

(d) the method of calculating the referral fee
and, to the extent possible, the amount of the fee;

(e) the category of registration of each
registrant that is a party to the agreement with a
description of the activities that the registrant is
authorized to engage in under that category and,
giving consideration to the nature of the referral, the
activities that the registrant is not permitted to
engage in;

() if a referral is made to a registrant, a
statement that all activity requiring registration
resulting from the referral arrangement will be

13.10 _ Disclosing referral arrangements to clients

6143—(1) Written The written disclosure of
the referral arrangement as-required by subsection
6-1213.8(c) [permitted referral arrangements] must
include the following:

(a) the name of each party to the referral
arrangement;
(b) the purpose and material terms of the

referral arrangement, including the nature of the
services to be provided by each party;

(c) any conflicts of interest resulting from the
relationship between the parties to the referral
arrangement and from any other element of the
referral arrangement;

(d) the method of calculating the referral fee
and, to the extent possible, the amount of the fee;

(e) the category of registration of each
registrant that is a party to the agreement with a
description of the activities that the registrant is
authorized to engage in under that category and,
giving consideration to the nature of the referral, the
activities that the registrant is not permitted to
engage in;

(f) if a referral is made to a registrant, a
statement that all activity requiring registration
resulting from the referral arrangement will be
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provided by the registrant receiving the referral;

(9) any other information that a reasonable
client would consider important in evaluating the
referral arrangement.

(2) If there is a change to the information set
out in subsection (1), the registrant must ensure that
written disclosure of that change is provided to each
client affected by the change as soon as possible
and no later than the 30th day before the date on
which a referral fee is next paid or received.

provided by the registrant receiving the referral; and

(9) any other information that a reasonable
client would consider important in evaluating the
referral arrangement.

(2) If there is a change to the
information set out in subsection (1), the registrant
must ensure that written disclosure of that change is
provided to each client affected by the change as
soon as practicable and no later than the 30th day
before the date on which a referral fee is next paid
or received.

provided by the registrant receiving the referral; and

(9) any other information that a reasonable
client would consider important in evaluating the
referral arrangement.

(2) If there is a change to the
information set out in subsection (1), the registrant
must ensure that written disclosure of that change is
provided to each client affected by the change as
soon as praeticable possible and no later than the
30th day before the date on which a referral fee is
next paid or received.

13.11  Referral arrangements before this
Instrument came into force

(1) This Division applies to a referral
arrangement entered into before this Instrument
came into force if a referral fee is paid under the
referral arrangement after this Instrument comes
into force.

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply until 6
months after this Instrument comes into force.

Application and transition to prior referral
arrangements

6.15 (1) Sections 6.12 [permitted referral
arrangements] to 6.14 [reasonable diligence when
referring clients] apply to a referral arrangement
entered into before this Instrument came into force if
a referral fee is paid under the referral arrangement
after this Instrument comes into force.

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply
until the 180th day after this Instrument comes into
force.

13.11

Referral arrangements_before Ihis.
Instrument came into force

o644 | o ;
referring-clients}-apphy(1) _This Division applies to a

referral arrangement entered into before this
Instrument came into force if a referral fee is paid
under the referral arrangement after this Instrument
comes into force.

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply
until the-180th-day6 months after this Instrument
comes into force.

Division 4 Loans and margin
13.12  Restriction on lending to clients Margin Margin-13.12 Restriction on lendin lien
A registrant must not lend money, extend credit or 5.7 A registrant must not lend, extend credit or | 574——A registrant must not lend_money, extend

provide margin to a client.

provide margin to a client.

credit or provide margin to a client.

13.13  Disclosure when recommending the use of
borrowed money

Disclosure when recommending use of borrowed
money

13.13 _ Disclosure when recommending the use of
borrowed money
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(1) If a registrant recommends that a client
should use borrowed money to finance any part of a
purchase of a security, the registrant must, before
the purchase, provide the client with a written
statement that is substantially similar to the
following:

“Using borrowed money to finance the
purchase of securities involves greater risk than a
purchase using cash resources only. If you borrow
money to purchase securities, your responsibility to
repay the loan and pay interest as required by its
terms remains the same even if the value of the
securities purchased declines.”

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply if

(a) the registrant has provided the client with
the statement described under subsection (1) no
earlier than the 180th day before the date of the
proposed purchase,

(b) the proposed purchase is on margin and
the client’s margin account is maintained at a
registered firm that is a member of IROC or the
MFDA, or

5.8 (1) If a registrant recommends that a
client should use borrowed money to finance any
part of a purchase of a security, the registrant must,
before the purchase, provide the client with a written
statement in substantially the following form:

“Using borrowed money to finance the purchase of
securities involves greater risk than a purchase
using cash resources only. If you borrow money to
purchase securities, your responsibility to repay the
loan and pay interest as required by its terms
remains the same even if the value of the securities
purchased declines.”

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply if

(a) the registrant has provided the client with
the statement described under subsection (1) no
earlier than the 180th day before the date of the
proposed purchase,

(b) the proposed purchase is on margin and
the client’'s margin account is maintained with a
registered firm that is a member of the IDA or the
MFDA, or

58—(1) If a registrant recommends that a
client should use borrowed money to finance any
part of a purchase of a security, the registrant must,
before the purchase, provide the client with a written
statement in that is substantially similar to the
following-form:

“Using borrowed money to finance the
purchase of securities involves greater risk than a
purchase using cash resources only. If you borrow
money to purchase securities, your responsibility to
repay the loan and pay interest as required by its
terms remains the same even if the value of the
securities purchased declines.”

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply if

(a) the registrant has provided the client with
the statement described under subsection (1) no
earlier than the 180th day before the date of the
proposed purchase,

(b) the proposed purchase is on margin and
the client’s margin account is maintained withat a
registered firm that is a member of the IDAIIROC or
the MFDA, or

(c) the client is a permitted client.
(c) the client is a permitted client. (c) the client is a permitted client.
Division 5 Complaints
13.14  Application of this Division Exemption for investment fund managers and B = e e

(1) This Division does not apply to an
investment fund manager.

(2) A registered firm in Québec is deemed to
comply with this Division if it complies with sections

exempt market dealers
5.27 This Division does not apply to

(a) an investment fund manager, or

e
13.14  Application of this Division

6:27-(1) This Division does not apply to {a)—an
investment fund manager;-er.
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168.1.1 to 168.1.3 of the Securities Act (Québec).

(b) an exempt market dealer in respect of a
permitted client.

5.32 A registered firm in Québec complies with
Division 6 if it complies with sections 168.1.1 to
168.1.3 of the Québec Securities Act.

(b)—an exempt market dealer in respect of a

5:32(2) A registered firm in Québec complies is
deemed to comply with this Division-6 if it complies
with sections 168.1.1 to 168.1.3 of the Québee

Securities Act_(Québec).

13.15  Handling complaints

A registered firm must document and, in a manner
that a reasonable investor would consider fair and
effective, respond to each complaint made to the
registered firm about any product or service offered
by the firm or a representative of the firm.

Complaints

5.28 A registered firm must document, and
effectively and fairly respond to, each complaint
made to the registered firm about any product or
service offered by the firm or a representative of the
firm.

Complaints13.15 Handling complaints

5.28— A registered firm must document;and
effectively-and-fairly and, in a manner that a

r nable inv r woul nsider fair an
effective, respond to; each complaint made to the
registered firm about any product or service offered
by the firm or a representative of the firm.

13.16  Dispute resolution service

(1) A registered firm must ensure that
independent dispute resolution or mediation
services are made available, at the firm’s expense,
to a client to resolve a complaint made by the client
about any trading or advising activity of the firm or
one of its representatives.

(2) If a person or company makes a complaint
to a registered firm about any trading or advising
activity of the firm or one of its representatives, the
registered firm must as soon as possible inform the
person or company of how to contact and use the
dispute resolution or mediation services which are
provided to the firm’s clients.

Dispute resolution service

5.29 (1) A registered firm must participate
in an independent dispute resolution service unless
required by securities legislation to use the dispute
resolution service provided by the securities
regulatory authority.

(2) If a person or company makes a
complaint to a registered firm about any trading or
advising activity of the firm or one of its
representatives, the registered firm must as soon as
practicable inform the person or company of how to
contact and use

(a) the dispute resolution service in which the
firm participates, or

(b) the dispute resolution service of the
securities regulatory authority, if it provides a
dispute resolution service.

13.16 __ Dispute resolution service

529—((1) A registered firm must participate
ir-an ensure that independent dispute resolution

o unloss reauired o o
use-the-dispute-resolution-service-provided-by-the
seeuritiesregulatory-autherity or mediation services mgd ation services
rem vailabl he firm’ n lien

- -

ww. visi ivity of i i
representatives.

(2) If a person or company makes a
complaint to a registered firm about any trading or
advising activity of the firm or one of its
representatives, the registered firm must as soon as
prascticable possible inform the person or company
of how to contact and use{a)——— the dispute
resolution service-in-which-the-firm-participates;
orth)——the-dispute-reselution-service-ot-the
disputereseolution-serviee- or mediation services
which are provided to the firm’s clients.
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Part 14 Handling client accounts — firms

Division 1 Exemption for investment fund
managers
141 Investment fund managers exempt from Exemption for investment fund managers and 141 Exemption-forinvestment Investment fund

Part 14

Other than section 14.6[holding client assets in
trust], this Part does not apply to an investment fund
manager.

exempt market dealers

5.17 This Division does not apply to
(a) an investment fund manager, or
(b) an exempt market dealer that does not

handle, hold, or have access to client assets,
including cheques and other similar instruments.

managers-and-exempt-market-dealers_exempt from
Part 14

547—This Division Other than section
14.6[holdin in tr does not
apply to f&)———-an investment fund manager;-or

S . _

Division 2 Disclosure to clients

14.2 Relationship disclosure information

(1) A registered firm must deliver to a client all
information that a reasonable investor would
consider important about the client's relationship
with the registrant.

(2) The information required to be delivered
under subsection (1) includes all of the following:

(a) a description of the nature or type of the
client’s account;

(b) a discussion that identifies the products or
services the registered firm offers to a client;

(c) a description of the types of risks that a
client should consider when making an investment
decision;

Providing relationship disclosure information

54 (1) A registrant must provide a client
with relationship disclosure information before the
registrant first

(a) purchases or sells a security for the client,
or
(b) advises the client to purchase, sell or hold
a security.

(2) If there is a significant change to

the relationship disclosure information provided to a
client under subsection (1), the registrant must
make reasonable efforts to notify its clients of the
change in a timely manner, and wherever
practicable before the registrant next

(a) purchases or sells a security for the client,

Providingrelationship14.2 Relationship disclosure
information

> (1)———Afegistrant must provide & client
Wit eateﬁ_s p-disclosure-information-before the
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(d) a description of the risks to a client of using
borrowed money to finance a purchase of a
security;

(e) a description of the conflicts of interest that
the registered firm is required to disclose to a client
under securities legislation;

(f) disclosure of all costs to a client for the
operation of an account;

(9) a description of the costs a client will pay in
making, holding and selling investments;

(h) a description of the compensation paid to
the registered firm in relation to the different types of
products that a client may purchase through the
registered firm;

0] a description of the content and frequency
of reporting for each account or portfolio of a client;

1)) disclosure that independent dispute
resolution or mediation services are available to a
client, at the firm’s expense, to mediate any dispute
that might arise between the client and the firm
about a product or service of the firm;

(k) a statement that the firm has an obligation
to assess whether a purchase or sale of a security
is suitable for a client prior to executing the
transaction or at any other time;

() the information a registered firm must
collect about the client under section 13.2 [know
your client].

or
(b) advises the client to purchase, sell or hold
a security.

(3) For the purpose of this section,
“relationship disclosure information” means
information that a reasonable client would consider
important respecting the client's relationship with the
registrant and includes, subject to subsections (4),
(5) and (6), the following:

(a) a description of the nature of the client’s
account or the type of account held by the client;

(b) a discussion that identifies which products
or services offered by the registered firm will meet
the client’s investment objectives and how they will
do so;

(c) a discussion of investment risk factors and
types of risks that should be considered by the client
when making an investment decision, including the
risk of using borrowed money to finance a purchase
of a security;

(d) a description of the conflicts of interest that
the registered firm is required to disclose under
securities legislation;

(e) disclosure of all service fees and charges
in respect of the operation of the client’s accounts;

() a description of the costs the client will pay
in making and holding investments and the
compensation paid to the registered firm in relation
to the different types of products that the client may

information that a reasonable elient investor would
consider important respecting-about the client's
relationship with the registrant-and-includes,subject
to-subsections{4—(5)rand-(6)

3 =

2 The information requir liver
under subsection (1) includes all of the following:

(a) a description of the nature of-the-client's
accountor-the or type of aseountheld-by-the client's
account;

(b) a discussion that identifies which the
products or services effered-by-the registered firm

they-willdo-so offers to a client;

© adi . ‘i sk £
description of the types of risks that sheuld-be

considered-by-the a client_should consider when

making an investment decision;-including-the-risk;

(d) a description of the risks to a client of using
borrowed money to finance a purchase of a
security;

(ce) a description of the conflicts of interest that
the registered firm is required to disclose to a client
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(3) A registered firm must deliver to a client
the information in subsection (1) before the firm first

(a) purchases or sells a security for the client,
or

(b) advises the client to purchase, sell or hold
a security.

(4) If there is a significant change to the

information delivered to a client under subsection
(1), the registered firm must take reasonable steps
to notify the client of the change in a timely manner
and, if possible, before the firm next

(a) purchases or sells a security for the client,
or

(b) advises the client to purchase, sell or hold
a security.

(5) This section does not apply if the client is a

registered firm, a Canadian financial institution or a
Schedule 11l bank.

(6) This section does not apply to a registrant
in respect of a permitted client if

(a) the permitted client has waived, in writing,
the requirements under this section, and

(b) the registrant does not act as an adviser in
respect of a managed account of the permitted
client.

purchase through the registered firm;

(9) a description of the content and frequency
of reporting for each account or portfolio of the
client;

(h) information about how the client can
contact the firm;

(i) notice that a dispute resolution service is
available to mediate any dispute that might arise
between the client and the firm regarding a product
or service of the firm;

@) the information a registered firm is required
to collect about the client under section 5.3 [know-
your-client].

(4) Despite subsection (3),
relationship disclosure information provided by an
exempt market dealer to a client is not required to
include the information referred to in paragraphs
(3)(a), (e) and (g) if the dealer does not handle, hold
or have access to the client’s assets, including
cheques and other similar instruments.

(5) In addition to the information
required under subsection (3), relationship
disclosure information provided by a dealer must
include a description of the nature and scope of the
firm’s obligation to assess whether a purchase or
sale of a security is suitable for a client prior to
executing the transaction or at any other time.

(6) In addition to the information
required under subsection (3), relationship
disclosure information provided by an adviser must

under securities legislation;

(ef) disclosure of all service-fees-and-charges
inrespect-of costs to a client for the operation of the

client's-accounts an account;

(fg) a description of the costs the a client will
pay in making-and, holding and selling investments
and;

(h) a description of the compensation paid to

the registered firm in relation to the different types of
products that the a client may purchase through the
registered firm;

(¢i) a description of the content and frequency
of reporting for each account or portfolio of the a
client;

i . .

(i) notice disclosure that a independent
dispute resolution service-is or mediati i

are available to a client, at the firm's expense, to

mediate any dispute that might arise between the
client and the firm regarding about a product or
service of the firm;
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include the following:

(a) if the client’s account is a fully-managed
account, a description of the adviser’s discretionary
authority;

(b) a description of how the adviser will ensure
that investments made are suitable for the client
based on the information provided by the client;

(c) a statement that there is no guarantee,
implied or otherwise, that the investments made will
be successful;

(d) a discussion of investment risk factors and
types of risks that should be considered by the client
when deciding to invest using an adviser;

(e) if the client’s account is a fully-managed
account and a person or company exempted from
registration under section 8.17 [sub-advisers]
provides advice in respect of the account,
information about the role of the person or company
and their relationship to the client.

(7) This section does not apply to an
exempt market dealer in respect of a permitted
client.

E }EE}’ {E) ane (g) II t e deale dees et = ld €; leld

'sk)

a statement that the firm has an obligation
to assess whether a purchase or sale of a security
is suitable for a client prior to executing the
transaction or at any other time-;

| the information a registered firm must

collect about the client under section 13.2 [know
your client].

3) : . | f . I
the information in subsection (1) before the firm first

(a) purchases or sells a security for the client

(S

(b) advises the client to purchase, sell or hold
a security.

4) If there is a significant change to the
information delivered to a client under subsection

(1), the reqistered firm must take reasonable steps
to notify the client of the change in a timely manner
and, if possible, before the firm next

(@) purchases or sells a security for the client

S

b advises the client to purchase, sell or hold
a security.
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%@@M i C ian fi ial instituti
Schedule Il bank.

requ ed un.dﬁe sula.seete (.3) rolations : P
include the following:

This section does not apply to a registrant
in respect of a permitted client if

@ the permitted client has waived, in writing,

he r iremen nder thi ion, an

(b) a-deseription-of-how-the_registrant does not
act as an adviser will-ensure-that-investments-made
are.suitable for i . ho inf i
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in respect of a managed account of
the permitted client.

14.3 Disclosure to clients about the fair
allocation of investment opportunities

A registered adviser must deliver to a client a
summary of the policies required under section 11.1
[compliance system] that provide reasonable
assurance that the firm and each individual acting
on its behalf complies with section 14.10 [allocating
investment opportunities fairly] and that summary
must be delivered

(a) when the adviser opens an account for the
client, and
(b) if there is a significant change to the

summary last delivered to the client, in a timely
manner and, if possible, before the firm next

Allocating investment opportunities fairly

6.7 (2) A registered adviser must provide a client
with a copy of the written policies required under
section 5.23 [compliance system] that respond to
the requirement under subsection (1)

(a) when the adviser opens an account for the
client, and
(b) if there is a significant change to the

policies last provided to the client, the earlier of

0] the 45th day after the date the policies
were changed, or

Allocating14. Disclosur lien he fair
allocation of investment opportunities fairly

6-7(2)—A regqistered adviser must provide deliver
to a client with-a eepy summary of the writter

policies required under section 5:2311.1
[compliance system] that respond-te-the
reqwementundepsubseemnmm

nabl ran hat the firm an h
indivi | in half complies with ion
14.10 [al T ities fairly]
that summary must be delivered

(a) when the adviser opens an account for the
client, and

(b) if there is a significant change to the

(ii) as soon as practicable after next advising | poticies summary last provided delivered to the
(0 purchases or sells a security for the client, | the lient to purchase, sell or hold a security. client, the-earlier-of in a timely manner and, if
’ possible, before the firm next

or

(i) advises the client to purchase, sell or hold

a security. ) ' . .
(i purchases or sells a security for the client,
or
(i)
advises the client to purchase, sell or hold a
security.

14.4 When the firm has a relationship with a Disclosure when opening an account in a financial Disclosure-when-epening-an-acecountinl4d.4 When

financial institution

(1) If a registered firm opens a client account
to trade in securities, in an office or branch of a

Canadian financial institution or a Schedule Il bank,

institution

5.9 (1) If a registered firm opens a client
account to trade in securities in an office or branch
of a Canadian financial institution or a Schedule Il

the firm has a relationship with a financial institution

59—(1) If a registered firm opens a client
account to trade in securities, in an office or branch
of a Canadian financial institution or a Schedule Il

129




National Instrument 31-103 — Registration Requirements and Exemptions
Published July 17, 2009 compared to February 29, 2008 CSA Publication

JULY 17, 2009 PUBLICATION

FEBRUARY 29, 2008 PUBLICATION

BLACKLINE OF CHANGES

the registered firm must give the client a written
notice stating that it is a separate legal entity from
the Canadian financial institution or Schedule lll
bank and, unless otherwise advised by the
registrant, securities purchased from or through the
registrant

(a) are not insured by a government deposit
insurer,
(b) are not guaranteed by the Canadian

financial institution or Schedule Ill bank, and

(c) may fluctuate in value.

(2) A registered firm that is subject to
subsection (1) must receive a written confirmation
from the client that the client has read and
understood the notice before the registered firm

bank, the registered firm must give the client a
written notice stating that it is a separate legal entity
from the Canadian financial institution or Schedule
Ill bank and, unless otherwise advised by the
registrant, securities purchased from or through the
registrant

(a) are not insured by a government deposit
insurer,
(b) are not guaranteed by the Canadian

financial institution or Schedule Ill bank, and

(c) may fluctuate in value.

(2) A registered firm that is subject to
subsection (1) must receive a written confirmation
from the client that the client has read and
understood the notice before the registered firm

bank, the registered firm must give the client a
written notice stating that it is a separate legal entity
from the Canadian financial institution or Schedule
Ill bank and, unless otherwise advised by the
registrant, securities purchased from or through the
registrant

(a) are not insured by a government deposit
insurer,
(b) are not guaranteed by the Canadian

financial institution or Schedule Ill bank, and

(c) may fluctuate in value.

(2) A registered firm that is subject to
subsection (1) must receive a written confirmation
from the client that the client has read and
understood the notice before the registered firm

(a) purchases or sells a security for the client, (a) purchases or sells a security for the client, (a) purchases or sells a security for the client,
or or or

(b) advises the client to purchase, sell or hold (b) advises the client to purchase, sell or hold (b) advises the client to purchase, sell or hold
a security. a security. a security.

(3) This section does not apply to a registered (3) This section does not apply to a 3) This section does not apply to a
firm if the client is a permitted client. registered firm if the client is a permitted client. registered firm if the client is a permitted client.

14.5 Notice to clients by non-resident registrants | Notice to clients 14.5 Notice to clients_by non-resident reqgistrants

A registered firm whose head office is not located in
the local jurisdiction must provide its clients in the
local jurisdiction with a statement in writing
disclosing the following:

(a) the non-resident status of the registrant;

5.33 A registered firm whose head office is not
located in the local jurisdiction must provide its
clients in the local jurisdiction

(a) a statement in writing disclosing the non-
resident status of the registrant,

5:33——A registered firm whose head office is not
located in the local jurisdiction must provide its
clients in the local jurisdiction {a)-with a statement in
writing disclosing the following:

@ the non-resident status of the registrant;;
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(b) the registrant's jurisdiction of residence;

(c) the name and address of the agent for
service of process of the registrant in the local
jurisdiction;

(d) the nature of risks to clients that legal
rights may not be enforceable in the local
jurisdiction.

(b) the registrant's jurisdiction of residence,

(c) the name and address of the agent for
service of process of the registrant in the local
jurisdiction, and

(d) the nature of risks to clients that legal
rights may not be enforceable in the local
jurisdiction.

(b) the registrant's jurisdiction of residence;;

(c) the name and address of the agent for
service of process of the registrant in the local
jurisdiction;and-;

(d) the nature of risks to clients that legal
rights may not be enforceable in the local
jurisdiction.

Division 3 Client assets

14.6 Holding client assets in trust

A registered firm that holds client assets must hold
the assets

(a) separate and apart from its own property,
(b) in trust for the client, and
(c) in the case of cash, in a designated trust

account at a Canadian financial institution, a
Schedule Il bank, or a member of IROC.

Holding client assets in trust

5.10 (1) A registered firm that holds client
assets, including cheques and other similar
instruments, must hold the assets separate and

apart from its own property and in trust for the client.

(2) A registered firm that holds cash
on behalf of a client must hold the cash separate
and apart from the property of the firm in a
designated trust account with a Canadian financial
institution or a Schedule Il bank.

14.6 Holding client assets in trust

A registered firm that holds client assets must hold
the assets

540——(1H——A-registered-firm-that-holds-client
' ; a)

separate and apart from its own property
and-,

(b) in trust for the client:,_and

) A . . |
on-behalf of a client must hold the cash separate
B e = e ()] in the
case of cash, in a designated trust account with at a
Canadian financial institution-er, a Schedule IlI
bank, or a member of [IROC.

14.7 Holding client assets — non-resident
registrants

(1) A registered firm whose head office is not
located in a jurisdiction of Canada must ensure that
all client assets are held

Custody of assets

5.35 (1) A registered firm whose head
office is not located in a jurisdiction of Canada must
make reasonable efforts to ensure that all client
assets are held

Custody-of14.7 Holding client assets_- non-
- -
535—(1) A registered firm whose head

office is not located in a jurisdiction of Canada must
make-reasonable-efforts-to-ensure that all client
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(a) in the client’'s name,

(b) on behalf of the client by a custodian or
sub-custodian that

0] meets the guidelines prescribed for acting
as a sub-custodian of the portfolio securities of a
mutual fund in Part 6 of National Instrument 81-102
Mutual Funds, and

(i) is subject to the Bank for International
Settlements’ framework for international
convergence of capital measurement and capital
standards, or

(c) on behalf of the client by a registered
dealer that is a member of an SRO and that is a
member of Canadian Investor Protection Fund or
other comparable compensation fund or
contingency trust fund.

(2) Section 14.6 [holding client assets in trust]
does not apply to a registered firm that is subject to
subsection (1).

(a) directly by the client,

(b) on behalf of the client by a custodian or
sub-custodian that

0] meets the guidelines prescribed for acting
as a sub-custodian of the portfolio securities of a
mutual fund in Part 6 of National Instrument 81-102
Mutual Funds, and

(ii) is subject to the Bank for International
Settlements’ framework for international
convergence of capital measurement and capital
standards, or

(c) on behalf of the client by a registered
dealer that is a member of an SRO that is a member
of Canadian Investor Protection Fund or other
comparable compensation fund or contingency trust
fund.

(2) Section 5.10 [holding client assets
in trust] does not apply to a registered firm that is
subject to subsection (1).

assets are held

(a) direethy-by in the client's name,

(b) on behalf of the client by a custodian or
sub-custodian that

(i) meets the guidelines prescribed for acting
as a sub-custodian of the portfolio securities of a
mutual fund in Part 6 of National Instrument 81-102
Mutual Funds, and

(ii) is subject to the Bank for International
Settlements' framework for international
convergence of capital measurement and capital
standards, or

(c) on behalf of the client by a registered
dealer that is a member of an SRO and that is a
member of Canadian Investor Protection Fund or
other comparable compensation fund or
contingency trust fund.

(2) Section 5-4814.6 [holding client
assets in trust] does not apply to a registered firm
that is subject to subsection (1).

14.8 Securities subject to a safekeeping
agreement

A registered firm that holds unencumbered
securities for a client under a written safekeeping
agreement must

(a) segregate the securities from all other
securities,

Securities subject to safekeeping agreement

5.11 A registered firm that holds unencumbered
securities for a client under a written safekeeping
agreement must

(a) segregate the securities from all other
securities,
(b) identify the securities as being held in

14.8 _ Securities subject to a safekeeping
agreement

5141
A registered firm that holds unencumbered

securities for a client under a written safekeeping
agreement must

(a) segregate the securities from all other
securities,
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(b) identify the securities as being held in
safekeeping for the client in

safekeeping for the client in

(b) identify the securities as being held in
safekeeping for the client in

0] the registrant’s security position record,
0] the registrant’s security position record, 0] the registrant’s security position record,
(ii) the client’s ledger, and
(ii) the client’s ledger, and (ii) the client’s ledger, and
(iii) the client’s statement of account, and
(iii) the client’s statement of account, and (iii) the client’s statement of account, and
(c) release the securities only on an instruction
(c) release the securities only on an instruction | from the client. (c) release the securities only on an instruction
from the client. from the client.
14.9 Securities not subject to a safekeeping Securities not subject to safekeeping agreement 149  Securities not subject to a safekeeping
agreement agreement
5.12 (1) A registered firm that holds
(1) A registered firm that holds unencumbered | unencumbered securities for a client that are either | 542—(1) A registered firm that holds

securities for a client other than under a written
safekeeping agreement must

(a) segregate and identify the securities as
being held in trust for the client, and

(b) describe the securities as being held in
segregation on

(i) the registrant’s security position record,

(ii) the client’s ledger, and

(iii) the client’s statement of account.

(2) Securities described in subsection (1) may

be segregated in bulk.

fully paid for or are excess margin securities, but
that are not held under a written safekeeping
agreement, must

(a) segregate and identify the securities as
being held in trust for the client, and

(b) describe the securities as being held in
segregation on

(i) the registrant’s security position record,
(ii) the client’s ledger, and
(iii) the client’s statement of account.

(2) If a client is indebted to a

registered firm, the registered firm may sell or lend
the securities described in subsection (1), but only
to the extent reasonably necessary to cover the

unencumbered securities for a client that-are-either

3

that-are-net-held other than under a written
safekeeping agreement; must

(a) segregate and identify the securities as
being held in trust for the client, and

(b) describe the securities as being held in
segregation on

(i) the registrant’s security position record,
(ii) the client’s ledger, and
(iii) the client’s statement of account.

. o clientis i

egistered firm. the registered |_ayse, orlend
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indebtedness.

3) Securities described in subsection
(1) may be segregated in bulk.

fe—thoesdopirnocenabhonnossenn e conim i fin
indebtedness.

(32) Securities described in subsection
(1) may be segregated in bulk.

Division 4 Client accounts

14.10  Allocating investment opportunities fairly

A registered adviser must ensure fairness in
allocating investment opportunities among its
clients.

Allocating investment opportunities fairly

6.7 (1) A registered adviser must ensure
fairness in allocating investment opportunities
among its clients.

14.10 ___ Allocating investment opportunities fairly

6. 7—(1H———A registered adviser must ensure

fairness in allocating investment opportunities
among its clients.

14.11  Selling or assigning client accounts

If a registered firm proposes to sell or assign a
client’s account in whole or in part to another
registrant, the registered firm must, prior to the sale
or assignment, give a written explanation of the
proposal to the client and inform the client of the
client’s right to close the client’s account.

Sale or assignment of client account

5.6 If a registered firm proposes to sell or
assign a client’s account in whole or in part to
another registrant, the registered firm must, prior to
the sale or assignment, give a written explanation to
the client of the proposal and inform the client of the
client’s right to withdraw the client’s account.

Sale14.11 Selling or assignment-of assigning
client aceeunt accounts

5.6—If a registered firm proposes to sell or
assign a client’s account in whole or in part to
another registrant, the registered firm must, prior to
the sale or assignment, give a written explanation te
the-elient-of the proposal to the client and inform the
client of the client’s right to withdraw close the
client’s account.

Division 5 Account activity reporting

14.12  Content and delivery of trade confirmation

(1) Subject to subsection (2), a registered
dealer that has acted on behalf of a client in
connection with a purchase or sale of a security
must promptly deliver to the client a written
confirmation of the transaction, setting out the
following:

(a) the quantity and description of the security
purchased or sold;

(b) the price per security paid or received by
the client;

Confirmation of trade — general

5.18 (1) Subject to subsection (2), a
registered dealer that has acted on behalf of a client
in connection with a trade or series of trades in a
security must promptly send or deliver to the client,
or to a registered adviser acting for the client if the
client consents, a written confirmation of the
transaction, setting out,

(a) the quantity and description of the security
traded,
(b) the consideration,

Confirmation14.12 Content and delivery of
trade —general confirmation

548—(1) Subject to subsection (2), a
registered dealer that has acted on behalf of a client
in connection with a trade purchase or series sale of
trades-in a security must promptly send-or-deliver to
the client-orto-a-registered-adviser-acting-forthe
client-ifthe-client-consents; a written confirmation of
the transaction, setting out;_the following:

(a) the quantity and description of the security

traded; purchased or sold;
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(c) the commission, sales charge, service
charge and any other amount charged in respect of
the transaction;

(d) whether the registered dealer acted as
principal or agent;

(e) the date and the name of the marketplace,
if any, on which the transaction took place, or if
applicable, a statement that the transaction took
place on more than one marketplace or over more
than one day;

() the name of the dealing representative, if
any, in the transaction;

(9) the settlement date of the transaction;

(h) if applicable, that the security is a security
of the registrant, a security of a related issuer of the
registrant or, if the transaction occurred during the
security’s distribution, a security of a connected
issuer of the registered dealer.

(2) If a transaction under subsection (1)
involved more than one transaction or if the
transaction took place on more than one
marketplace the information referred to in
subsection (1) may be set out in the aggregate if the
confirmation also contains a statement that
additional details concerning the transaction will be
provided to the client upon request and without
additional charge.

(3) Paragraph (1)(h) does not apply if the
security is a security of a mutual fund that is an

(c) the commission, sales charge, service
charge and any other amount charged in respect of
the trade,

(d) whether the registered dealer acted as
principal or agent,

(e) the date and the name of the marketplace,
if any, on which the transaction took place, or if
applicable, a statement that the transaction took
place on more than one marketplace or over more
than one day,

(f) the name of the dealing representative, if
any, in the transaction,

(9) the settlement date of the trade, and

(h) if applicable, that the security is a security
of the registrant, a security of a related issuer of the
registrant or, in the course of a distribution, a
security of a connected issuer of the registrant.

(2) If the transaction involved more
than one trade or if the transaction took place on
more than one marketplace the information referred
to in subsection (1) above may be set out in the
aggregate if the confirmation also contains a
statement that additional details concerning the
transaction will be provided to the client upon
request and without additional charge.

(3) If a trade is made in a security of
a mutual fund, scholarship plan, educational plan or
educational trust, the confirmation required under
subsection (1) must contain, in addition to the

(b} the consideration,
(b) the price per security paid or received by
the client;

(c) the commission, sales charge, service
charge and any other amount charged in respect of
the trade; transaction;

(d) whether the registered dealer acted as
principal or agent;;

(e) the date and the name of the marketplace,
if any, on which the transaction took place, or if
applicable, a statement that the transaction took
place on more than one marketplace or over more
than one day;;

() the name of the dealing representative, if
any, in the transaction;;

(9) the settlement date of the trade,and
transaction;

(h) if applicable, that the security is a security
of the registrant, a security of a related issuer of the
registrant or, in-the-course-ofa if the transaction
occurred during the security's distribution, a security

of a connected issuer of the registrant registered
dealer.

(2) If the a transaction_under
subsection (1) involved more than one trade
transaction or if the transaction took place on more
than one marketplace the information referred to in
subsection (1) abeve may be set out in the
aggregate if the confirmation also contains a
statement that additional details concerning the
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affiliate of the registered dealer and the names of
the dealer and the fund are sufficiently similar to
indicate that they are affiliated.

(4) For the purpose of paragraph (1)(f), a
dealing representative may be identified by means
of a code or symbol if the confirmation also contains
a statement that the name of the dealing
representative will be provided to the client on
request of the client.

requirements of subsection (1), the price per share
or unit at which the trade was effected.

(4) Paragraph (1)(h) does not apply if
the security is a security of a mutual fund that is an
affiliate of the registered dealer and the names of
the dealer and the fund are sufficiently similar to
disclose that they are affiliated.

(5) For the purpose of paragraph
(1)(f), a dealing representative may be identified by
means of a code or symbol if the confirmation also
contains a statement that the name of the dealing
representative will be provided to the client on
request of the client.

transaction will be provided to the client upon
request and without additional charge.

(43) Paragraph (1)(h) does not apply if
the security is a security of a mutual fund that is an
affiliate of the registered dealer and the names of
the dealer and the fund are sufficiently similar to
disclese indicate that they are affiliated.

(54) For the purpose of paragraph
(1)(f), a dealing representative may be identified by
means of a code or symbol if the confirmation also
contains a statement that the name of the dealing
representative will be provided to the client on
request of the client.

14.13  Semi-annual confirmations for certain
automatic plans

The requirement under section 14.12 [content and
delivery of trade confirmation] to deliver a
confirmation promptly does not apply to a registered
dealer in respect of a transaction if all of the
following apply:

(a) the client gave the dealer prior written
notice that the transaction is made pursuant to the
client's participation in an automatic payment plan,
including a dividend reinvestment plan, or an
automatic withdrawal plan in which a transaction is
made at least monthly;

Semi-annual confirmations for certain automatic
plans

5.20 The requirement under section 5.18
[confirmation of trade — general] to send or deliver a
confirmation promptly does not apply to a registered
dealer in respect of a trade if

(a) the client gave the dealer prior written
notice that the trade is made under the client's
participation in an automatic payment plan or an
automatic withdrawal plan in which a trade is made
at least monthly,

(b) the registered dealer sent a confirmation
as required under section 5.18 [confirmation of trade

14.13 __Semi-annual confirmations for certain
automatic plans

520

The requirement under section 5-48-{14.12 [content
and delivery of trade confirmation eftrade—general]

to send-er deliver a confirmation promptly does not
apply to a registered dealer in respect of a trade-if

transaction if all of the following apply:

(a) the client gave the dealer prior written
notice that the trade transaction is made under
pursuant to the client's participation in an automatic
payment plan,_includin ividend reinv

plan, or an automatic withdrawal plan in which a
trade transaction is made at least monthly;;
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(b) the registered dealer delivered a
confirmation as required under section 14.12
[content and delivery of trade confirmation] for the
first transaction made under the plan after receiving
the notice referred to in paragraph (a);

(c) the transaction is in a security of a mutual
fund, scholarship plan, educational plan or
educational trust;

(d) the registered dealer delivers the
information required under section 14.12 [content
and delivery of trade confirmation] for the
transaction semi-annually to the client or, if the
client consents, to a registered adviser acting for the
client.

— general] for the first trade made under the plan
after receiving the notice referred to under
paragraph (a),

(c) the trade is in a security of a mutual fund,
scholarship plan, educational plan or educational
trust, and

(d) the registered dealer sends or delivers the
information required under section 5.18
[confirmation of trade — general] for the trade semi-
annually to the client or, if the client consents, to a
registered adviser acting for the client.

(b) the registered dealer sent delivered a
confirmation as required under section 5-48-{14.12
content and delivery of trade confirmation-ef-trade—
general] for the first trade transaction made under
the plan after receiving the notice referred to under
in paragraph (a);

(c) the trade fransaction is in a security of a
mutual fund, scholarship plan, educational plan or
educational trust;-and;

(d) the registered dealer sends-er-delivers the
information required under section 5-48-{14.12
content and delivery of trade confirmation-eftrade—
general] for the trade fransaction semi-annually to
the client or, if the client consents, to a registered
adviser acting for the client.

14.14  Client statements

(1) A registered dealer must deliver a
statement to a client at least once every 3 months.

(2) Despite subsection (1), a registered dealer,
other than a mutual fund dealer, must deliver a
statement to a client at the end of a month if any of
the following apply:

(a) the client has requested receiving
statements on a monthly basis;

(b) during the month, a transaction was
effected in the account other than a transaction
made under an automatic withdrawal plan or an
automatic payment plan, including a dividend
reinvestment plan.

(3) Except if the client has otherwise directed,

Statements of account and portfolio

5.22 (1) A registered dealer must send or
deliver a statement of account to each client not
less than once every three months showing any
debit or credit balance and the details of securities
held for or owned by the client, unless the client has
requested statements on a monthly basis in which
case the registered dealer must send or deliver
statements monthly.

(2) The statement required by
subsection (1) must list the securities held for the
client and indicate clearly which securities are held
for safekeeping or in segregation.

3) Subject to subsection (4), a
registered adviser must send or deliver to each
client not less than once every three months, a
statement of the portfolio of the client under the
registered adviser's management, unless the client

Statements-of account and portfolio14.14 Client

statements

) A reqistered dealer must deliver a

men lien | n very 3 months.

— L heclelomannbonouind by
se'lsseets| .'( .) ustiistthe-sect tles”eld or-the
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a registered adviser must deliver a statement to a
client at least once every 3 months.

(4) A statement delivered under subsection
(1), (2) or (3) must include all of the following
information for each transaction made for the client
during the period covered by the statement:

(a) the date of the transaction;

(b) whether the transaction was a purchase,
sale or transfer;

(c) the name of the security purchased or sold;
(d) the number of securities purchased or sold;
(e) the price per security paid or received by
the client;

(f) the total value of the transaction.

(5) A statement delivered under subsection

(1), (2) or (3) must include all of the following
information about the client’s account as at the end
of the period for which the statement is made:

(a) the name and quantity of each security in
the account;

(b) the market value of each security in the
account;
(c) the total market value of each security

position in the account;

has requested statements on a monthly basis in
which case the registered adviser must send or
deliver statements monthly.

(4) If a client has provided the
consent referred to in subsection 5.18(1)
[confirmation of trade — general], the registered
adviser must send or deliver to the client not less
than once every month, a statement of the portfolio
of the client under the registered adviser's
management.

2) D - ion (1 - ]
other than a mutual fund dealer, must deliver a
statement to a client at the end of a month if any of
the following apply:

(a) the client has requested receiving

men n a monthl is;

. .
MM{{ - I | -
made under an automatic withdrawal plan or an
automatic payment plan, including a dividend
reinvestment plan.

(3)—Subjectto-subsection{4)_Except if the client has
otherwise directed, a registered adviser must send
or deliver a_statement to each a client retless-than
at least once every three-months—a-statement-of-the
portfolio-of # : | . | -
management—unlessthe-clierthasrequested

monthhy: 3 months.

(4) A statement delivered under subsection
(1), (2) or (3) must include all of the following

information for each transaction made for the client
during the period covered by the statement:

h f the tran ion;

138




National Instrument 31-103 — Registration Requirements and Exemptions
Published July 17, 2009 compared to February 29, 2008 CSA Publication

JULY 17, 2009 PUBLICATION

FEBRUARY 29, 2008 PUBLICATION

BLACKLINE OF CHANGES

(d) any cash balance in the account;

(e) the total market value of all cash and
securities in the account.

(6) Subsections (1) and (2) do not apply to a
scholarship plan dealer if the dealer delivers to the
client a statement at least once every 12 months
that provides the information in subsections (4) and

®).

(b)  whether the transaction was a purchase,
sale or transfer;

c the name of the security purchased or sold;

(d) the number of securities purchased or sold;

() the total value of the transaction.

(5) A statement delivered under subsection

1), (2) or must include all of the followin
information he client’ n he en
f th riod for which th ment is m :

a | quantity of each security |

the account;

(b) the market value of each security in the

account;

h | market val f h ri
position in the account;

(d) __ any cash balance in the account;

e the total market value of all cash and
securities in the account.

ions (1) and (2) do n |

scholarship plan dealer if the dealer delivers to the

that provides the information in subsections (4) and
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(5).
Part 15 Granting an exemption
15.1 Who can grant an exemption Exemption Exemption15.1 _ Who can grant an exemption
(1) The regulator or the securities regulatory 9.1 ) The regulator or the securities 91+—(0) The regulator or the securities

authority may grant an exemption from this
Instrument, in whole or in part, subject to such
conditions or restrictions as may be imposed in the
exemption.

(2) Despite subsection (1), in Ontario only the
regulator may grant such an exemption.

(3) Except in Ontario, an exemption referred to
in subsection (1) is granted under the statute
referred to in Appendix B of National Instrument 14-
101 Definitions opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction.

regulatory authority may grant an exemption from
this Instrument, in whole or in part, subject to such
conditions or restrictions as may be imposed in the
exemption.

(2) Despite subsection (1), in Ontario
only the regulator may grant such an exemption.

(3) Except in Ontario, an exemption
referred to in subsection (1) is granted under the
statute referred to in Appendix B of National
Instrument 14-101 Definitions opposite the name of
the local jurisdiction.

regulatory authority may grant an exemption from
this Instrument, in whole or in part, subject to such
conditions or restrictions as may be imposed in the
exemption.

(2) Despite subsection (1), in Ontario
only the regulator may grant such an exemption.

(3) Except in Ontario, an exemption
referred to in subsection (1) is granted under the
statute referred to in Appendix B of National
Instrument 14-101 Definitions opposite the name of
the local jurisdiction.

Part 16 Transition

16.1 Change of registration categories —
individuals

On the day this Instrument comes into force, an
individual registered in a category referred to in

(a) column 1 of Appendix C [new category
names — individuals], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is registered as a dealing
representative,

(b) column 2 of Appendix C [new category
names — individuals], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is registered as an advising
representative, and

(c) column 3 of Appendix C [new category

Change of registration categories — individuals

10.2 On the date this Instrument comes into
force, an individual registered in a category referred
toin

(a) column 1 of Appendix D [new category
names — individuals], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed to be registered as a dealing
representative,

(b) column 2 of Appendix D [new category
names — individuals], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed to be registered as an
advising representative, and

(c) column 3 of Appendix D [new category

16.1 Change of registration categories —
individuals

46:2——O0n the date day this Instrument comes into
force, an individual registered in a category referred
toin

(a) column 1 of Appendix BC [new category
names — individuals], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed-te-be registered as a dealing
representative,

(b) column 2 of Appendix BC [new category
names — individuals], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is-deemed-to-be registered as an
advising representative, and
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names — individuals], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is registered as an associate advising
representative.

names — individuals], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed to be registered as an
associate advising representative.

(c) column 3 of Appendix BC [new category
names — individuals], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed-te-be registered as an
associate advising representative.

16.2 Change of registration categories — firms

On the day this Instrument comes into force, a
person or company registered in a category referred
toin

(a) column 1 of Appendix D [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is registered as an investment dealer,

(b) column 2 of Appendix D [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is registered as a mutual fund dealer,

(c) column 3 of Appendix D [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is registered as a scholarship plan
dealer,

(d) column 4 of Appendix D [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is registered as a restricted dealer,

(e) column 5 of Appendix D [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is registered as a portfolio manager, and

) column 6 of Appendix D [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is registered as a restricted portfolio
manager.

Change of registration categories — firms

10.1 On the date this Instrument comes into
force, a person or company registered in a category
referred to in

(a) column 1 of Appendix C [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed to be registered as an
investment dealer,

(b) column 2 of Appendix C [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed to be registered as a mutual
fund dealer,

(c) column 3 of Appendix C [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed to be registered as a
scholarship plan dealer,

(d) column 4 of Appendix C [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed to be registered as a
restricted dealer,

(e) column 5 of Appendix C [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed to be registered as a portfolio
manager, and

() column 6 of Appendix C [new category

16.2  Change of registration categories — firms

46-4——0n the date day this Instrument comes into
force, a person or company registered in a category
referred to in

(a) column 1 of Appendix €D [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed-to-be registered as an
investment dealer,

(b) column 2 of Appendix €D [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed-to-be registered as a mutual
fund dealer,

(c) column 3 of Appendix €D [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed-to-be registered as a
scholarship plan dealer,

(d) column 4 of Appendix €D [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed-to-be registered as a
restricted dealer,

(e) column 5 of Appendix €D [new category
names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed-to-be registered as a portfolio
manager, and

() column 6 of Appendix €D [new category
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names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed to be registered as a
restricted portfolio manager.

names — firms], opposite the name of the local
jurisdiction, is deemed-to-be registered as a
restricted portfolio manager.

16.3 Change of registration categories — limited
market dealers

(1) This section applies in Ontario and
Newfoundland and Labrador.

(2) On the day this Instrument comes into
force, a person or company registered as a limited
market dealer is registered as an exempt market
dealer.

3) On the day this Instrument comes into
force, an individual registered to trade on behalf of a
limited market dealer is registered as a dealing
representative of the dealer.

(4) Sections 12.1 [capital requirements] and
12.2 [notifying the regulator of a subordination
agreement] do not apply to a person or company
registered as an exempt market dealer under
subsection (2) until one year after this Instrument
comes into force.

(5) Sections 12.3 [insurance — dealer] and
12.7 [notifying the regulator of a change, claim or
cancellation] do not apply to a person or company
registered as an exempt market dealer under
subsection (2) until 6 months after this Instrument
comes into force.

Change of registration categories — firms

10.1 (2) In Ontario and Newfoundland and
Labrador, a person or company registered as a
limited market dealer or an international dealer on
the date this Instrument comes into force is deemed
to be registered as an exempt market dealer.

16.3 Change of registration categories — firms
limited mark

46-4——(21)—+~_This section applies in Ontario and
Newfoundland and Labrador.

(2) On the day this Instrument comes into
force, a person or company registered as a limited
market dealer eran-international-dealer-on-the-date
¢ S strument comes intoforee Sdee_.ad tellee

as an exempt market dealer.

(3) On the day this Instrument comes into
force, an individual registered to trade on behalf of a
limi mark ler is register lin
representative of th ler.

(4) ___ Sections 12.1 [capital requirements] and
12.2 [notifying the regulator of a subordination

agreement] do not apply to a person or compan

registered as an exempt market dealer under
subsection (2) until one year after this Instrument

mes into force.

12.7 [notifying the regulator of a change, claim or
cancellation] do not apply to a person or company
registered as an exempt market dealer under

subsection (2) until 6 months after this Instrument

comes into force.

16.4 Registration for investment fund managers
active when this Instrument comes into force

Registration of investment fund managers

10.3 (1) The requirement to register as an

16.4 Registration ef for investment fund
managers active when this Instrument comes into
force
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(1) The requirement to register as an
investment fund manager does not apply to a
person or company that is acting as an investment
fund manager on the day this Instrument comes into
force

(a) until one year after this Instrument comes
into force, or

(b) if the person or company applies for
registration as an investment fund manager within
one year after this Instrument comes into force, until
the regulator has accepted or refused the
registration.

(2) Subsection (1) is repealed one year after
this Instrument comes into force.

3) Section 12.5 [insurance — investment fund
manager] does not apply to a registered dealer or
registered adviser that is acting as an investment
fund manager on the day this Instrument comes into
force.

(4) Subsection (3) is repealed one year after
this Instrument comes into force.

investment fund manager does not apply to a
person or company that is acting as an investment
fund manager on the date this Instrument comes
into force

(a) until six months after this Instrument
comes into force, or

(b) if the person or company applies for
registration as an investment fund manager within
six months of this Instrument coming into force, until
the regulator has accepted or refused the
registration.

(2) Despite paragraph 4.18(2)(c)
[capital requirement], for the purpose of calculating
excess working capital, the minimum capital is
$50,000 for a registered dealer or registered adviser
that is acting as an investment fund manager on the
date this Instrument comes into force.

3) Subsection (2) expires six months
after this Instrument comes into force.

(4) Section 4.23 [insurance —
investment fund manager] does not apply to a
registered dealer or registered adviser that is acting
as an investment fund manager on the date this
Instrument comes into force.

(5) Subsection (4) expires six months
after this Instrument comes into force.

103——(1) The requirement to register as an
investment fund manager does not apply to a
person or company that is acting as an investment
fund manager on the date day this Instrument
comes into force

(a) until six-menths one year after this
Instrument comes into force, or

(b) if the person or company applies for
registration as an investment fund manager within
six-meonths-ofone year after this Instrument
eemingcomes into force, until the regulator has
accepted or refused the registration.

(3)2) Subsection (2)-expires-six
rmonths]) is repealed one year after this Instrument

comes into force.

(43) Section 4-2312.5 [insurance —
investment fund manager] does not apply to a
registered dealer or registered adviser that is acting
as an investment fund manager on the date day this
Instrument comes into force.

(54) Subsection (4)}-expires-six
months3) is repealed one year after this Instrument

comes into force.

16.5 Temporary exemption for Canadian

New Provision

16.5 Temporary exemption for Canadian

143




National Instrument 31-103 — Registration Requirements and Exemptions
Published July 17, 2009 compared to February 29, 2008 CSA Publication

JULY 17, 2009 PUBLICATION

FEBRUARY 29, 2008 PUBLICATION

BLACKLINE OF CHANGES

investment fund manager registered in its principal
jurisdiction

(1) An investment fund manager is not
required to register in the local jurisdiction if it is
registered, or has applied for registration, in the

WQ@M

1 An investment fund manager is not

required to register in the local jurisdiction if it is
registered, or has applied for registration, in the

jurisdiction of Canada in which its head office is jurisdiction of Can in which its h ffice i
located. located.

(2) Subsection (1) is repealed 2 years after

this Instrument comes into force . this Instrument comes into force .

16.6 Temporary exemption for foreign New Provision 16. Temporary exemption for foreign
investment fund managers investment fund managers

(1) The investment fund manager registration
requirement does not apply to a person or company
that is acting as an investment fund manager if its
head office is in not in a jurisdiction of Canada.

) The investment fund manager registration
requirement does not apply to a person or company
that is acting as an investment fund manager if its
head office is in not in a jurisdiction of Canada.

(2) Subsection (1) is repealed 2 years after 2 ion (1) is r led 2 rs after
this Instrument comes into force . this Instrument comes into force .
16.7 Registration of exempt market dealers Registration of exempt market dealers 16.7 Registration of exempt market dealers

(1) This section does not apply in Ontario and
Newfoundland and Labrador.

(2) In this section, “the exempt market” means
those trading and underwriting activities listed in
subparagraph 7.1(2)(d) [dealer categories].

3) The requirement to register as an exempt
market dealer does not apply to a person or
company that acts as a dealer in the exempt market
on the day this Instrument comes into force

(a) until one year after this Instrument comes

10.4 (1) In this section, “a dealer in the
exempt market” means

(a) a dealer who trades in securities referred
to in subparagraph 2.1(1)(d)(i) (A), (B) or (C), or

(b) a person or company who acts as an
underwriter in respect of a distribution of securities
that may be made under an exemption from the
prospectus requirement.

(2) Despite section 2.1 [dealer and
underwriter categories], a person or company that is

0.4 (1) Th . ly |
Ontario and Newfoundland and Labrador.

(2) In this section, “a-dealerin-the exempt
market” means_those trading and underwriting
activities listed in subparagraph 7.1(2)(d) [dealer
categories].

| . tios rof
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into force, or

(b) if the person or company applies for
registration as an exempt market dealer within one
year after this Instrument comes into force, until the
regulator has accepted or refused the registration.

(4) The requirement to register as a dealing
representative of an exempt market dealer does not
apply to an individual who acts as a dealer in the
exempt market on the day this Instrument comes
into force

(a) until one year after this Instrument comes
into force, or

(b) if the individual applies to be registered as
a dealing representative of an exempt market dealer
within one year after this Instrument comes into
force, until the regulator has accepted or refused the
registration.

a registered firm on the date this Instrument comes
into force and is a dealer in the exempt market on
that date, is not required to register as an exempt
market dealer

(a) until six months after this Instrument
comes into force, or

(b) if the dealer applies for registration as an
exempt market dealer within six months of this
Instrument coming into force, until the regulator has
accepted or refused the registration.

(3) Despite section 2.7 [individual
categories], an individual who is a registered
individual on the date this Instrument comes into
force and is a dealer in the exempt market on that
date, is not required to register as a dealing
representative of an exempt market dealer

(a) until six months after this Instrument
comes into force, or

(b) if the individual applies to be registered as
a dealing representative of an exempt market dealer
within six months of this Instrument coming into
force, until the regulator has accepted or refused the
registration.

(4) A person or company that is not
registered under securities legislation and is a
dealer in the exempt market on the date this
Instrument comes into force, is exempt from the
dealer registration requirement and the underwriter
registration requirement

(a) until six months after this Instrument

that may be made under an exemption fromthe

3 The requirement to register as an exempt

market dealer does not apply to a person or

company that acts as a dealer in the exempt market
n th his Instrumen mes into for:

(a) until six-menths one year after this
Instrument comes into force, or

(b) if the individual person or company applies
to-beregistered-as-a-dealing-representative-of for

registration as an exempt market dealer within six

rmonths-of one year after this Instrument eoming
comes into force, until the regulator has accepted or
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comes into force, or

(b) if the person or company applies for
registration as an exempt market dealer, or a
dealing representative of an exempt market dealer
within six months of this Instrument coming into
force, until the regulator has accepted or refused the
registration.

(5) Despite section 4.16
[grandfathered registrants], an individual who is a
dealer in the exempt market on the date this
Instrument comes into force is exempt from section
4.9 [exempt market dealer — dealing representative]
until 12 months after this Instrument comes into
force.

refused the registration.

(4)———"—someneresmonp dinobio norneintond
wmdoreosudicodocialotdon cndlie. The
requirement to reqister as a dealing representative
of an exempt market dealer does not apply to an
individual who acts as a dealer in the exempt
market on the date day this Instrument comes into
force, is exempt from the dealer registration
e

(a) until six-menths one year after this
Instrument comes into force, or

(b) if the persen-orcompany individual applies
registered as a dealing representative of an exempt
market dealer within six-menths-of one year after
this Instrument eeming comes into force, until the
regulator has accepted or refused the registration.

16.8
persons

Registration of ultimate designated

If a person or company is a registered firm on the
day this Instrument comes into force, section 11.2
[designating an ultimate designated person] does
not apply to the firm

(a) until 3 months after this Instrument comes

Registration of ultimate designated persons

10.5 If a person or company is a registered firm
on the date this Instrument comes into force, section
2.9 [ultimate designated person] does not apply to
the firm

(a) until one month after this Instrument comes

16.8 Registration of ultimate designated
persons

40-5——If a person or company is a registered firm
on the date day this Instrument comes into force,

section 2:9{11.2 [designating an ultimate

designated person] does not apply to the firm

(a) until ere-month3 months after this
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into force, or

(b) if an individual applies to be registered as
the ultimate designated person of the firm within 3
months after this Instrument comes into force, until
the regulator has accepted or refused the
registration.

into force, or

(b) if an individual applies to be registered as
the ultimate designated person of the firm within one
month of this Instrument coming into force, until the
regulator has accepted or refused the registration.

Instrument comes into force, or

(b) if an individual applies to be registered as
the ultimate designated person of the firm within ere
month-of 3 months after this Instrument eeming
comes into force, until the regulator has accepted or
refused the registration.

16.9 Registration of chief compliance officers

(1) If a person or company is a registered firm
on the date this Instrument comes into force, section
11.3 [designating a chief compliance officer] does
not apply to the firm

(a) until 3 months after this Instrument comes
into force, or

(b) if an individual applies to be registered as
the chief compliance officer of the firm within 3
months after this Instrument comes into force, until
the regulator has accepted or refused the
registration.

(2) If an individual applies to be registered as
the chief compliance officer of a registered firm
within 3 months after this Instrument comes into
force and the individual was identified on the
National Registration Database as the firm’s
compliance officer on the date this Instrument came
into force, the following sections do not apply in
respect of the individual so long as he or she
remains registered as the firm’s chief compliance
officer:

(a) section 3.6 [mutual fund dealer — chief
compliance officer], if the registered firm is a mutual
fund dealer;

Registration of chief compliance officers

10.6 (1) If a person or company is a
registered firm on the date this Instrument comes
into force, section 2.10 [chief compliance officer]
does not apply to the firm

(a) until one month after this Instrument comes
into force, or

(b) if an individual applies to be registered as
the chief compliance officer of the firm within one
month of this Instrument coming into force, until the
regulator has accepted or refused the registration.

(2) If an individual applies, within one
month of this Instrument coming into force, to be
registered as the chief compliance officer of a
person or company that is a registered firm on the
date this Instrument comes into force, Division 1
[proficiency requirements] of Part 4 does not apply
in respect of the individual.

3) Despite subsection (2), if an
individual applies, within six months of this
Instrument coming into force, to be registered as the
chief compliance officer of a person or company that
is acting as an investment fund manager on the
date this Instrument comes into force, section 4.15
[investment fund manager — chief compliance
officer] does not apply in respect of the individual

16.9 Registration of chief compliance officers

1 If a person or company is a registered firm
on the date this Instrument comes into force, section
11.3 [designating a chief compliance officer] does
not apply to the firm

ntil 3 months after this Instrumen m
into force, or
b if an individual applies to be registered as

the chief compliance officer of the firm within 3
months after this Instrument comes into force, until

the requlator has accepted or refused the

registration.

; £ inivi
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(b) section 3.8 [scholarship plan dealer — chief
compliance officer], if the registered firm is a
scholarship plan dealer;

(c) section 3.10 [exempt market dealer — chief
compliance officer], if the registered firm is an
exempt market dealer;

(d) section 3.13 [portfolio manager — chief
compliance officer], if the registered firm is a
portfolio manager.

(3) If an individual applies to be registered as
the chief compliance officer of a registered firm
within 3 months after this Instrument comes into
force and the individual was not identified on the
National Registration Database as the firm’s
compliance officer on the date this Instrument came
into force, the following sections do not apply in
respect of the individual until one year after this
Instrument comes into force:

(a) section 3.6 [mutual fund dealer — chief
compliance officer], if the registered firm is a mutual
fund dealer;

(b) section 3.8 [scholarship plan dealer — chief
compliance officer], if the registered firm is a
scholarship plan dealer;

(c) section 3.10 [exempt market dealer — chief
compliance officer], if the registered firm is an
exempt market dealer;

(d) section 3.13 [portfolio manager — chief
compliance officer], if the registered firm is a

until 12 months after this Instrument comes into
force.

(4) Despite subsection (2), if an
individual applies, within six months of this
Instrument coming into force, to be registered as the
chief compliance officer of a person or company that
is a dealer in the exempt market on the date this
Instrument comes into force, section 4.10 [exempt
market dealer — chief compliance officer] does not
apply in respect of the individual until 12 months
after this Instrument comes into force.

(5) In subsection (4), “a dealer in the
exempt market” means

(a) a dealer who trades in securities referred
to in subparagraph 2.1(1)(d)(i) (A), (B) or (C), or

(b) a person or company who acts as an
underwriter in respect of a distribution of securities
that may be made under an exemption from the
prospectus requirement.

i espeet 9 t e j d.V.dHa )
2) If an individual applies to be reqgistered as

www hin 3 I fter thi :
force and the individual was identified on the
National Registration Database as the firm's
compliance officer on the date this Instrument came
into force, the following sections do not apply in

r f the indivi | lon he or sh
remains registered as the firm's chief compliance
officer:

(a) section 3.6 [mutual fund dealer - chief
compliance officer], if the registered firm is a mutual

fund dealer;

lan dealer - chief
red firm i

b section 3.8 [scholarshi
mplian fficer], if the reqi
holarship plan ler;

compliance officer], if the registered firm is an
exempt market dealer;

d section 3.1 ortfolio manager - chief
mplian fficer], if the registered firm i
portfolio manager.
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portfolio manager.

(4) In Ontario and Newfoundland and
Labrador, despite paragraphs (2)(c) and (3)(c), if an
individual applies to be registered as the chief
compliance officer of an exempt market dealer
within 3 months after this Instrument comes into
force, section 3.10 [exempt market dealer — chief
compliance officer] does not apply in respect of the
individual until one year after this Instrument comes
into force.

—
saetl g-as an-investment fund EI 2 |a,ge| ont el_ 5
" ; iof | ficer]

If an indivi | li reqgister
he chief complian fficer of a reqgistered firm

National Registration Database as the firm's
compliance officer on the date this Instrument came
into force, the following sections do not apply in
respect of the individual until one year after this
Instrument comes into force:

(a)___section 3.6 [mutual fund dealer - chief ficer], i . firm |

fund dealer;

b section 3.8 [scholarship plan dealer - chief

compliance officer], if the registered firm is a
scholarship plan dealer;

(€) section 3.10 [exempt market dealer - chief
- fficer], if . firm |
exempt market dealer;

(d) section 3.13 [portfolio manager - chief
compliance officer], if the registered firm is a
portfolio manager.
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of m ficer]

: f the indivi 12

4 In Ontario and Newfoundland and
Labrador, despite paragraphs (2)(c) and c), if an
indivi

mplian fficer of an exempt mark ler

ithin 3 hs after thi .

force, section 3.10 [exempt market dealer — chief
compliance officer] does not apply in respect of the

individual until one year after this Instrument comes
into force.

prospectus requirement.

16.10  Proficiency for dealing and advising
representatives

1) Subject to subsections (2) and (3), if an
individual is registered as a dealing or advising
representative in a category referred to in a section
of Division 2 of Part 3 [education and experience
requirements] on the day this Instrument comes into
force, that section does not apply to the individual
so long as the individual remains registered in the
category.

(2) Section 3.7 [scholarship plan dealer —
dealing representative] does not apply to an

Grandfathered registrants

4.16 (1) If, on the date this Instrument
comes into force, an individual is registered in a
category referred to in a section of this Division, the
individual is exempt from that section.

(2) Despite subsection (1), an
individual who is a dealing representative of a
scholarship plan dealer on the date this Instrument
comes into force is exempt from section 4.7
[scholarship plan dealer — dealing representative]
until 12 months after this Instrument comes into

Cropdiatheredregietanic16.10 Proficiency for
dealing and advising representatives

into ’ Subj ! .

(2) and (3), if an individual is registered_as a dealing
or advising representative in a category referred to
in a section of this-Division-the-individualis-exempt

from-that-section Division 2 of Part 3 [education and

experience requirements] on the day this Instrument

mes into for: h ion n | h
indivi | lon he indivi | remain
- in )
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individual until one year after this Instrument comes
into force if the individual is registered as a dealing
representative of a scholarship plan dealer on the
day this Instrument comes into force.

3) In Ontario and Newfoundland and
Labrador, section 3.9 [exempt market dealer —
dealing representative] does not apply to an
individual until one year after this Instrument comes
into force if the individual is registered as a dealing
representative of an exempt market dealer on the
day this Instrument comes into force.

force.

(2)——Despite-subsection{1);-an
dealer — dealing representative] does not apply to

an individual until one year after this Instrument

comes into force if the individual is registered as a
dealing representative of a scholarship plan dealer

on the date day this Instrument comes into force-is
exemptirom sectior : tse ega SHPP af deale
Instrument comes-into-force.

3 In Ontario and Newfoundland and
Labrador, section 3.9 [exempt market dealer —

dealing representative] does not apply to an

indivi | until on r after this Instrumen m

into force if the individual is registered as a dealing

representative of an exempt market dealer on the
is | - 7

16.11  Capital requirements

(1) A person or company that is a registered
firm on the day this Instrument comes into force is
exempt from sections 12.1 [capital requirements]
and 12.2 [notifying the regulator of a subordination
agreement] if it complies with each provision listed
in Appendix E [non-harmonized capital
requirements] across from the name of the firm’s
principal jurisdiction.

(2) Subsection (1) is repealed one year after
this Instrument comes into force.

Capital requirements

1010 (1) A person or company that is a
registered firm on the date this Instrument comes
into force is exempt from sections 4.18 [capital
requirement] to 4.20 [subordination agreement —
notice requirement] if it complies with each provision
listed in Appendix E [non-harmonized capital
requirements] across from the name of the local
jurisdiction.

(2) Subsection (1) expires 12 months
after this Instrument comes into force.

16.11 _ Capital requirements

40-40—(1) A person or company that is a
registered firm on the date day this Instrument
comes into force is exempt from sections 4-4812.1
[capital requirement}-to-4-20-frequirements] and
12.2 [notifying the regulator of a subordination
agreement—neoticerequirement] if it complies with
each provision listed in Appendix E [non-
harmonized capital requirements] across from the

name of the leeal firm’s principal jurisdiction.

(2) Subsection (1) expires—+2-menths
is repealed one year after this Instrument comes
into force.

16.12  Continuation of existing discretionary relief

A person or company that was entitled to rely on an
exemption, waiver or approval granted to it by a
regulator or securities regulatory authority relating to

New Provision

16.12  Continuation of existing discretionary relief

A person or company that was entitled to rely on an

exemption, waiver or approval granted to it by a
regulator or securities regulatory authority relating to
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a requirement under securities legislation or
securities directions existing immediately before this
Instrument came into force is exempt from any
substantially similar provision of this Instrument to
the same extent and on the same conditions, if any,
as contained in the exemption, waiver or approval.

- ] ities legisia
Instrument came into force is exempt from any
substantially similar provision of this Instrument to

the same extent and on the same conditions, if any
as contained in the exemption, waiver or approval.

16.13  Insurance requirements

(1) A person or company that is a registered
firm on the day this Instrument comes into force is
exempt from sections 12.3 [insurance — dealer] to
12.7 [notifying the regulator of a change, claim or
cancellation] if it complies with each provision listed
in Appendix F [non-harmonized insurance
requirements] across from the name of the firm’s
principal jurisdiction.

(2) In Québec, subsection (1), does not apply
to a registered firm that is a mutual fund dealer or a
scholarship plan dealer on the day this Instrument
comes into force.

(3) Subsections (1) and (2) are repealed 6
months after this Instrument comes into force.

Insurance requirements

1011 (1) A person or company that is a
registered firm on the date this Instrument comes
into force is exempt from sections 4.21 [insurance —
dealer] to 4.25 [notice of change, claim or
cancellation] if it complies with each provision listed
in Appendix F - [non-harmonized insurance
requirements] across from the name of the local
jurisdiction.

(2) Subsection (1) expires 6 months
after this Instrument comes into force.

16.13 __Insurance requirements

10-H1—(1) A person or company that is a
registered firm on the date day this Instrument
comes into force is exempt from sections 4.2412.3
[insurance — dealer] to 4-25-fretice-of12.7 [notifying
the regulator of a change, claim or cancellation] if it

complies with each provision listed in Appendix F -
[non-harmonized insurance requirements] across
from the name of the leeal firm’s principal
jurisdiction.

comes into force.

(3) Subsections (1) and (2) are repealed 6

months after this Instrument comes into force.

16.14  Relationship disclosure information

(1) Section 14.2 [relationship disclosure
information] does not apply to a person or company
that is a registrant on the day this Instrument comes
into force.

(2) Subsection (1) is repealed one year after
this Instrument comes into force.

Relationship disclosure information

10.7 (1) Section 5.4 [providing relationship
disclosure information] does not apply to a person
or company that is a registrant on the date this
Instrument comes into force.

(2) Subsection (1) expires 6 months
after this Instrument comes into force.

16.14 _ Relationship disclosure information

107F+—1) Section 5:414.2 [previding
relationship disclosure information] does not apply
to a person or company that is a registrant on the
date day this Instrument comes into force.

(2) Subsection (1) expires-6-menths
is repealed one year after this Instrument comes
into force.
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16.15 Referral arrangements

(1) Division 3 [referral arrangements] of Part
13 does not apply to a person or company that is a
registrant on the day this Instrument comes into
force.

Referral arrangements

10.9 (1) Division 2 [referral arrangements]
of Part 6 does not apply to a person or company
that is a registrant on the date this Instrument
comes into force.

16.15 _ Referral arrangements

46:9—(1) Division 23 [referral
arrangements] of Part 613 does not apply to a
person or company that is a registrant on the date
day this Instrument comes into force.

(2) Subsection (1) is repealed 6 months after (2) Subsection (1) expires 6 months (2) Subsection (1) expires is repealed
this Instrument comes into force. after this Instrument comes into force. 6 months after this Instrument comes into force.
16.16  Complaint handling Complaint handling 16.16 _ Complaint handling

(1) In each jurisdiction of Canada except
Québec, section 13.16 [dispute resolution service]
does not apply to a person or company that is a
registered firm on the day this Instrument comes
into force.

(2) Subsection (1) is repealed 2 years after
this Instrument comes into force .

10.8 (1) In each jurisdiction of Canada
except Québec, a person or company that is a
registered firm on the date this Instrument comes
into force is exempt from section 5.29 [dispute
resolution service] and section 5.31 [reporting to
the securities regulatory authority].

(2) Subsection (1) expires 6 months
after this Instrument comes into force.

10-8—(1) In each jurisdiction of Canada
except Québec, section 13.16 [dispute resolution
service] does not apply to a person or company that
is a registered firm on the date day this Instrument
comes into force-is-exemptfrom-section-5:29

(2) Subsection (1) expires-6-months
is repealed 2 years after this Instrument comes into

force.

16.17  Client statements — mutual fund dealers

(1) Section 14.14 [client statements] does not
apply to a person or company that is a mutual fund
dealer on the day this Instrument comes into force.

New Provision

16.17 lien ments —m | fun ler

(1) Section 14.14 [client statements] does not
apply to a person or company that is a mutual fund
dealer on the day this Instrument comes into force.

(2) Subsection (1) is repealed 2 years after 2) Subsection (1) is repealed 2 years after
this Instrument comes into force . this Instrument comes into force .

16.18 Transition to exemption — international New Provision 16.18  Transition to exemption — international
dealers dealers

(1) This section applies in Ontario and 1 Thi i lies in Ontario an

Newfoundland and Labrador.

n
Newfoundland and Labr. r.
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(2) If a person or company is registered in the
category of international dealer on the day this
Instrument comes into force, its registration in that
category is revoked.

3) If a person or company is registered in the
category of international dealer on the day this
Instrument comes into force, paragraphs 8.18(3)(e)
and 8.18(4)(b) [international dealer] do not apply to
the person or company until one month after this
Instrument comes into force.

2 If a person or company is registered in the

category of international dealer on the day this
Instrument comes into force, its registration in that
category is revoked.

3 If a person or company is registered in the

category of international dealer on the day this
Instrument comes into force, paragraphs 8.18(3)(e)

and 8.18(4)(b) [international dealer] do not apply to
h rson or company until one month after thi
Instrument comes into force.

16.19  Transition to exemption — international
advisers

(1) This section applies in Ontario.

(2) If a person or company is registered in the
category of international adviser on the day this
Instrument comes into force, its registration in that
category is revoked one year after this Instrument
comes into force.

(3) If the registration of a person or company
is revoked under subsection (2), the registration of
each individual registered to act as an adviser on
behalf of the person or company is revoked.

(4) If a person or company is registered in the
category of international adviser on the day this
Instrument comes into force, paragraphs (e) and (f)
of subsection 8.26(4) [international adviser] do not
apply to the person or company until one year after
this Instrument comes into force.

New Provision

16.19  Transition to exemption — international
advisers

1 Thi ion lies in Ontario.

category of international adviser on the day this
Instrument comes into force, its registration in that

category is revoked one year after this Instrument
comes into force.

3) If the registration of a person or company
W_ ividual - ! .
behalf of the person or company is revoked.

4 If a person or company is registered in the

category of international adviser on the day this

Instrument comes into for ragraph nd (f

of subsection 8.26(4) [international adviser] do not

apply to the person or company until one year after
is | - :

16.20  Transition to exemption — portfolio
manager and investment counsel (foreign)

New Provision

16.20  Transition to exemption — portfolio
manager and investment counsel (foreign)
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(1) This section applies in Alberta.

(2) If a person or company is registered in the
category of portfolio manager and investment
counsel (foreign) on the day this Instrument comes
into force, its registration in that category is revoked
one year after this Instrument comes into force.

(3) If the registration of a person or company
is revoked under subsection (2), the registration of
each individual registered to act as an adviser on
behalf of the person or company is revoked.

(4) If a person or company is registered in the
category of portfolio manager and investment
counsel (foreign) on the day this Instrument comes
into force, paragraphs (e) and (f) of subsection

1 This section applies in Alberta.

counsel (foreign) on the day this Instrument comes
into force, its registration in that category is revoked
one year after this Instrument comes into force.

(3) If the registration of a person or company
is revoked under subsection (2), the registration of
h indivi | reqgister: n adviser on

behalf of the person or company is revoked.

(4) If a person or company is registered in the

category of portfolio manager and investment
counsel (foreign) on the day this Instrument comes

into force, paragraphs (e) and (f) of subsection

8.26(4) [international adviser] do not apply to the .26(4) [international adviser n | h
person or company until one year after this rson or company until on r after thi
Instrument comes into force. Instrument comes into force.

Part 17 When this Instrument comes into force

17.1 Effective date Effective date 17.1 Effective date

1) Except in Ontario, this Instrument comes
into force on September 28, 2009.

(2) In Ontario, this Instrument comes into force
on the later of the following:

(a) September 28, 2009;

(b) the day on which sections 4, 5 and
subsections 20(1) to (11) of Schedule 26 of the
Budget Measures Act, 2009 are proclaimed in force.

11.1

This instrument comes into force on [e].

1 Except in Ontario, this Instrument comes

into force on September 28, 2009.

2 In Ontario, this Instrument comes into for

on the later of the following:
(a) September 28, 2009;

(b) the day on which sections 4, 5 and
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subsections 20(1) to (11) of Schedule 26 of the
- M Act. 2008 med in f
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WORKING CAPITAL

Form 31-103F1 Calculation of excess working
capital
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WORKING CAPITAL

FORM 31-103F2 SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION
AND APPOINTMENT OF AGENT FOR SERVICE
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appointment of agent for service

FORM 31-103F2 SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION
AND APPOINTMENT OF AGENT FOR SERVICE
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